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tyre manufacturers prodiicing over 10°million tyres annually. Weare widering our

visibility natiorially and internationally with'our wide range of tyrs si"tulﬁe'é;{;:ng.;ﬂ‘é‘ps?, The

“hassle-free ride, even an the roads less travelied. .
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;_RPG Enterprlses is one of Indla sz?f:'f :
. leading business groups Wlth a’ |
'.;3,_-turnover of X 18 500 crore (USD
;.,,—':::_.4 15 bEHIDn) RF’G EntEl‘pi’lses e

-'-'power tyres reta:l mformatmn
j'-*ftechnology, carbon black
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Tyres
%)r a//

CEAT offers the widest range of tyres to all user segments and manufactures
world-class tyres for all indian vehicles comprising:
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Heavy-duty trucks and buses

Light commercial vehicles (LCV)

Earthmovers

Forllifts 5
Tractors
Trailers

Cars and |eeps

Mpotorcycles and scooters
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CEAT's objective is to think ahead of Its customers to dellver
better value, even in a resource-scarce environment. As 2 part

-of this strategy, we often question conventional approaches, _

think laterally and revisit old strategies. L
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" and-wastage.

Opposed to canventional thinking, micro’!
focus sometimes yields mega benefits. We - -
take 2 minute look at every aspect of the’ '
arganisation for.opportunities to get better.:::
Ezch and every process and productat EEAT

is approved by appropriate cemflcatmn CEAT

is India's first organisation to get the 150/T5
16949:2002 certification by the internat’!qﬁal
Automotive Task Force {(IATF) and japan
Automobile Manufacturers Association, This
certification ensures quality management and
a smaeth supply chain, minimising anomalies

Research (DSIR).

CEAT's advanced technology leverage and’ :
hign-end research and davelopment enhance
the on-rozd pleasure of end customers;:

The tyres are tested for best endurance

and performance, and are accredited by

the Oepartment of Scientific and Industna!

il///!fif//f e




n'ordet to-enhance visinitity significantly, the organisation is focusing on capacity énhancement S
of Its current manufacturing units in India, Besides, the Halol plant in Gujarat has alsa commancad
nperation. The plant’s advanced technology will help enhance the production of radial tyres, '
whiich has zn immense market potential. .

& we héh_a’_!al_sg"a’c_'quiréd the CEAT brand from Pirelli & C. SpA for 9 million Eure, The acquisition will
h I;r{_:EAT ht_er new markets, such as Latin America, Europe and the US in the radial tyre sepment.”

|givs CEAT to outsource tyres from any country under the CEAT brand.

Furthe
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Z220) Financial
% Highlights

e e T P Y S SR

ORI R

:
i
- Total Income ‘{'
' (:{ lacs) [T IHIIIIIH ||i||l||||||l||ﬂ||l||§ IIIIHHHIHIIHIHIIH |1||Il|IilllllliIIHIIIiIIII ]IIIHI|||IHII!IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIH ¢
|
!
/
EBIDTA t
(? Iacs) [TELTHI IIHII I| IIIEIHIIIllIIIHiIIHIHIIHII%H IIHIIIHI (1 IIIIIHIIIllli!IIHIIIIIHIHIIIHHIII IIiIIIiIIIIIIHIHIII '
g s 2 2
2 AR, = 2
{
/
PBT- | o - ‘:
oy 08 09 . 10 ikl ‘f
(? !acs) REHIB G s Hmmm R e e R (L ;
| & o § 8 ]
B B w| N |
}
PAT 07 ‘08|03 ' ' qaul m '
(? lEIES) I HI R R R H R IHIHEHIHNH R R Hmnnnmn .. Y
= ¥ @ = [ 1
< 3| = = = ’;
3 gl g & R !
‘."l
y
]

)).114, CEATLImlted.!'if!ifl/.’f.v'/l!!iia’/!.f.v’/I!.’/I!/i.v'.v'/f.v’f'ff//if//f!!/f!/i////!//I!/!////i!!//i!/l:’//!




Shareho[der 5 _ ' .
funds Iacs) 1 IIIHIE!IIIIIIi [T IIHI BN IIIIII || (TR I|I IHEIIIIIIIIHIIlIIltIItIIIIIIEII

628,7145
549,14.52

378,63.79
513,25.73
488,3815

Net Current o
Assets (% lacs) i IIHIIIIIHIiiIIIIIH!IHIIIIIIIHIIlIIE!IIlIIIiIIlIIiIII!lIIIllIIIII IiIIIIIIIIHII?!IIIIIHIIHIIHIlII]IIIIIIilIH

56,2234
218.45,80
12,2155
2414548
121,11.96

Earnings per - ' s Coe|
Share (?) I RO |IIIIIE!IHI|i IIHIIE TN ORI T

8.60
40.06
_ (4.71)
4703
B.51

Dividend ‘ ' . ' ‘
& Jorf - 08 | ‘09 : 10 . 1
(T per Share) NI I!IIHIIIIIIH|II|IEIIIHII!IIHII_%IIHI!EIIHIIIIIIIIHIIIII

1.80

+{ O = ™~
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Expanded capacity at the Nasik plant by aver
1000 tonnes per month

Commenced the first phase of production
of radial tyres at Halol, Gujarat

Acquired the global rights of the CEAT -
brand from Pirelli & C. SpA for 9
million Euro (T 55 crore)

introduced India’s first tractor tyre, meant
especially for rice field application

Launched India Road
Transportation Awards, first of
its kind in the Indian automobiie industry, to
recognise and honour high-performing truck
fleet and logistics companies for their
nnovations

Uﬂera tional
<throughs of 2070-17

Piloted the New-age CEAT Shoppe,

to enhance the tyre retailing experience

“Launched highly effective

advertisement campaigns:
Gross Rating Point (GRP) of first campaign is
1000; Cricket World Cup campaign generated
800 CRP; smart leverage of digital platform
to connect with youth

Enhanced rural visibility and channel
expansion: 750 dealers were
appointed in the rural markets
in the third and fourth quarters of 2010-11

Achieved elevated productivity levels, a
result of oreanisational initiatives, such as
Total Quality Management In

the entire wnrkforce

CEATLImited ¢/ /72707 F 700080l b b it i i r i ii it bbb bbb r bt it i rtisiririliitits
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' ‘Meeting Customer Dermands

ghermicage

:jthSt?ﬂq hEavy Strairs at .
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smg.-pruducthﬁt'y'. P

Truck PRO series

. Customer demands...

: da High mileage at high load o

-ﬂs High mileage _atihizghjs'p'eéd_

 cuper-heavy load

ve'gﬁéﬁrheaded th'e'd_é_ ‘|:cpmant',o_f_;M1LE _

RO and LUG XL PRO

Direct advantages
angh joad cafryinig capacity o
. Higher. s.urfa'r.e contact _';“:
- Survives high service conta

Excellent initial mileage

High fuel efficency -~ 7

. Innovationl n motor
+gycletyres o
if;.ﬁllzing'fﬁn e} y tpads can be a —:c_iang"ér_uué' aﬁaj;,:jf we
4:-en‘|:u_|._'1‘rj\ftér3§é'v walkers and café\@éSé{'drivers;}gﬁAT
intraduced the premium Gripp series 10 deal with the
. frequent prablems faced by the bikers onfgad. In the
gureent fiscal, it has completed the Grpp al
By, sizes, Besides, it has faunched

Direct advantages .

45 ‘Excefient grip and free-rall

g Excellent water pumping Eyeﬁ'whi\é_ comenng

_' -5 Maxlmtjm".éaning “'E’cnif:né:rﬁand stability at
* high speed G

—=v5 . High grip on \a:vﬁt:an'd' dry surfaces
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Innovation in

Services for enhanced
customer engagement

Spiralling rubber prices made it imperative for truck owners to seek new ways ta get the
most out of the oid tyre. Retreads are significantly cheaper than new tyres. CEAT has
developed its own brand of treads to provide high guality retread to the
truck owners through the CEAT Tyre Retread Centres (CTRC).

The CTRCs will be having an agreement with CEAT for retreading of trucks, buses and LCV
tyres for customers. The Pre-cured CEAT Tread Rubber belts as well as the allled materials -
Bonding Gum and Black Vulcanising Cement {BVC) - will be provided ta CTRCs, whereby the
CTRCs will use only CEAT treads and raw materials for tyre retreading,

(PCTR) volume, it aims to achieve sales of around 140 tonnes by the end of this fiscal.

CEAT is focusing on a pan-India presence for CTRCs, with an initlal target of launching 90
Tyre Retread Centres by the end of FY11-12. In terms of Pre-cured Tread Rubber . ‘%

CEAT Hub & CEAT Shoppe

To provide a platform for direct customer interaction and offer quality products and services,
CEAT has launched a one-stop tyre shop called CEAT HUB (for Trucl and LCV tyres)
and CEAT Shappe (for passenger cars). These retail gutlets act as a sultable platform
1o attract new customers, and also exert control over distribution networks.

The number of Hubs has increased to 335 in the current year, compared with 265 in
the previous year. Similarly, the number of CEAT Shoppes is expected to touch 200,
i_n:!udlng those jn Tier It and Tier il citles.

i
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CREVIEW -

il

To empaower the fleet owners with access of information and resources, CEAT launched its
knowledge series - CEAT PRQ. High level represent'atives from logistics, finance,
HR, commercial vehicle and other related sectors address a variety of
issues, such as driver training and shartage, new technologies, controlling credit to manage
hu‘siness and developing a platform to charge better rates for minimising acquisition cost.

In the past 20 months, CEAT PRO has covered 58 cities and benefited
4250 transporters, enjoying wide media publicity.

For improved communication between dealers and the Campany, CEAT nas launched 2

wah interface on Jznuary 1, 2071 A unigue user 1D and password is provided to each
tusiness partner, enabling first-hand information access of dealers’ Statement of Accounts with
the Company, their claim status, their invoice-wise sales, and thelr Credit/ Debit Notes. The

dealer portal also provides updates about discounts, schermes and new product launch details

and alerts on price hikes and roll backs.

'J’."/f:’.",’f.".’/!.f,’!f,"p’!.’f!.".f/."."l!.".’p’!.’/.u’f’f!f'//!ff'fa'/I!,".’/r'f‘ir’f‘f!!l‘f!f.’;’!/l!.".’/f’f Annual Report 2010-T1 21 B



Branding

strategies

Be Idiotsafe Campaign

. ThE Abaove The Line (ATL} campaign in bike tyre category had twa bursts of 800+ GRPs in the pan Indla target
- group. It has created high impact during the ICC Cricket World Cup, 2013, The digital association with the
campaign engaged 77,000+ fans on facebouk and 250,000+ visitors on www.beldiotsafe.com website,

It was further supported by Below The Line {BTL) campaign at Cafe Coffee Uay autlets, huardlngs and Point of Sales
deployments.

India Road Transportation Awards

To recngnlse the transporters who have contributed immensely to Indla's grnwth stury and to set a I:uanchmark

of excellence in the industry, CEAT organises the india Road Transportatiun Awards. The IRTA 2010 was a
resaundmg success with direct pamclpatmn of over 7000 ellglhle fleet owners. it re]nfurced our
* brand visihillty and facilltated the sharing of industry Imowledge am:l enhanced custamer satlsfactiun




STRATEGICREVIEW: -

tritegies to Stay Ahead ;Me_eti'né Custorner Demands - inriovation I Services {!‘_ndmr Stratézies

ST TR T

:EEAT Cncket Ratmg

=EE;B\T is one of thE tnp five hrands ‘assaiated with cricket, The CEAT Internatlunal Cricket Ratlng System was

"_furrnulated with direct intervention of cricketing legends (Clive leod lan Chappel and Sunil
;;Gavaskar) and today the CCR is highly respected among the ericket fans. glohally. Furthermore, tie-up
.. with Neo for the whole year for Asia Cup, TOI score card and points tally branding during IPL
- "and'-TZEl-Wor_ld Cup tre__ated a strong fo_otpr_lnt for CEAT in the internationat cricketing space.

Brands associated with CricketRating =~ (@ne Recall %)

T Maruti |
ST TR P £ TR LT 444 LI
-IcC
EAT (= = a5
: s
Castral :33

" Source: TNS India Private Limited, June 2010
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They say It Is always in seasan for the old

to learn. The trick is to bring home the
learning. CEAT organises workshops,

government certified training
programmes, and conducts skill-

we pick-some that refiect our values and bear direct
huilding se

financlal planning
= Skills development for women empldyees

Our deliberate pramotion and incluston of public interest

Tailoring classes to empower women

improve emﬁlovabllity

S

1oNs

t
lete

incormp
'S

th the people we touch_.
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CEAT tonducted during the last ane year,
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impact through core bus
seeks to honour the 'triple bottom line': peaple, planet and profit. This culture Is reflected notably at CEAT,

Sustainab
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‘trip
thout active efforts to preserve nature
elements and conserve natural resources.
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/. Corporat Soclal Résponsibilities

At CEAT, we believe today’s children will
1o the line of enterprising endeavours

of tomorrow. We have adopted the
Gyananubhava Vidyalaya at Karjat.

Through the year, we celebrated
Tearhers' day, and conducted sessions

on domestic and general safety, poliution

e

ot
-y L.

s et
Rt

ity
Vg

and its cantrol, art of living, yoga and health
and hyglene.

We also celebrated Senior Citizens’

day with Runanubandh, a
Heaithcare and awareness are canstant ¥ “ » 3 get together

initiatives on the CEAT [SR cell calendar.
We arzanised multiple health check-
ups for emplayees. These included bone

density tests, thyroid examination, eyes and

for the elderly of the community where
we had organised entertainment and
felicitations for all attendees,

Childsen of employees and the cammunity
ENT checks and a bane densitometry camp. were engaged in an art and craft

i Worsc i ir Diwali .
Blood donation and yoga camps were JGIE S0 during their Diwali break

also organised for employees. Apart from

these, to Create awareness on various aspects

of health, we observed the World Heart
Day to create awareness about cardiac

allments, World No-Tobacco Day to bring

¥
PLid by

to fare the ill effects of tabacro, gutkha and it
cigarette smoking and World AIDS Day. T ;f.:z L
i b
CEAT also supports underprivileged
cancer patients with monetary aid, to
which aur employees cantribute genarously.
ER G T VAR b it g s s RS LEETE LTS
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Notice

~ ™~

NOTICE is hershy given that the fifty-second Annual General Meeting of the Company will be feld at Ravindra Natya Mandir,
P. L. Deshpande Maharashtra Kala Academy, Sayani Road, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400 025, on Friday, August 26, 2011at3.30
p.m. to transact the following busingss:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1,

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2071 and Profit and Loss Account for the financial
year ended on that date, the Report of the Auditors thereon and the Report of the Directors.

To declare dividend on Equity shares.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. H. V. Goenka who retires by rotation and, being eligiole, has offered himself for
re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr, 5. Dareswamy who retires by rotation and, being eligible, has offered himself for
re-appointment.

To appaint a Director in place of Mr. Bansi 5. Mehta who retires by rotation and, being eligible, has offered himself for
re-appointment.

Ta appoint Messrs N. M. Raiji & Co., as Auditors of the Company to hold office fram the conclusion of this Annual Genesal
Meeting to the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

7.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resalution.

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. Vinay Bansal, who was appointed as a Director of the Company with effect from July 24, 2009 in the
casual vacancy caused due to the demise of Mr. M. A. Bakre, and who holds office under the provisions of Section 262 of
the Companies. Act, 1956 upto the date of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the Company has recaived a
notice in writing from a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director and wha Is eligible for appointment, be
and is hereby appointed as Oirector of the Company whose term of office shall be liable to retirement by rotation.”

NOTES

a)

b)

0

A member entitled ta attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy
need not be a member.

The instrument appainting the proxy should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than
forty-eight hours befare the commencement of the meeting.

Members are requasted to kindly refer the Chapter on Corporate Covernance Report in the Annual Repart for the information
in respart of re-appointment/appaintment of Directars, under Clause 43 of the Listing Agreement. Out of the Directors
seeking re-appaintment, oaly Mr. H. V. Goenka hotds 13,932 equity shares in the Company.

Mr H. V. Goenka is the father of Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka, Deputy Managing Director of the Company and the san of Dr. R.
P Goenlka, the Chairman of the Company. None of the other Directors seeking re-appointment is related to any member of
the Board of Diractors or to any Management Personnet.
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e) The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Boaks of the Company shall be closed from Friday, August 12, 2071 to Friday,
August 26, 2011 (both days inclusive).

f) ‘Pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, dividend for the financial year ended March 31,
2004, which remained unclaimed or unpaid for the period of seven years will be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established undér Section 205C of the Companles Act. 1956. Members who have not encashed their
dividend warrant(s} so far for the financial year ended March 31, 2004 or any subsequent financial years are requested to
make their claims to the office of our Registrar and Transfer Agents, TSR Darashaw Limited {Formerly Tata Share Registry
Limited), 6-10, Haji Moosa Patrawala Industrial Estate, 20, Or. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbal - 400 071, It may also be
noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to IEPF, as above, no claim shall lie in respect thereof. The dividend for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2004, if not clairmed, will be transferred to the aforesaid account on or after October 4,
20M.

g) For the convenience of the Members and for proper tonduct of the Meeting, entry to the place of the Meeting will be
regulated by the Attendance Slip, which is annexed to the Proxy Form. Members are requested to affix their signature at the
place provided on the Attendance Slip and hand it over at the entrance.

h) Members can avall of the nomination facllity, under Section 1094 of the Companies Act, 1956 by filing Form Na.2B with the
Company. Blank forms will be supplied on request.

i) If any of the members are holding shares in the same name or in the same order of names, under different folios, then
members are requested to notify the same to TSR Narashaw Limited at 6-10, Haji Moosa Patrawala Industrial Estate, 20,
Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011 for consolidation of their shareholding into a single folio.

i} Members are requested to notify immediately any cthange of address:
*  Totheir Depository Participants (OPs] in respect of their shares held in demat form, and

*  ToT5R Darashaw Limited at 6-10, Haji Moosa Patrawala Industrial Estate, 20, Or, E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi , Mumbal
- 400 07, in case of the shares being held in physical form.

k)  In case the Mailing Address mentioned on this Annual Repaort Is without a PINCODE, Members are requested to kindly
inform their PINCODE to the Company's Register and Transfer Agent at their address mentiened above.

) Asper Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corparate Affairs (MCA) bearing nos. 17/2011 and 18/2071 dated April 21, 261 and
April 28, 2011 respectively, members hoiding shares i dematerialised farm are requested to register their ermail addresses
with their Depositery Participant (DP) and members holding shares in physical form are requested to register thefr email
addresses with the Company at investors@ceat.in or with the Registrar and Transfer Agents viz. TSR Darashaw Limited at
csg-green@tsrdarashaw.com. : '

Under the Authority of the Board of Directars

Place : Mumbai H. N. Singh Rajpeot
Dsted : May 2, 2011 Company Secretary
Reglstered office:

463, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worii,
Mumbai - 400 030
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 Annexure to the Notice

- EXPLANATORY STATEMENT pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956.

1, In terms of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956, the following explanatory staiement sets out all the material facts
refating to ltem No. 7 of the accumpanying Notice dated May 2, 2011

2. ltemNo.7

At the meeting of the Board of Directors held on July 24, 2003, Mr. Vinay Bansal was appeinted as a Director in Casual
Vacancy with effect from july 24, 2009 caused due to the demise of Mr. M. A. Bakre, Director of the Company, in terms of
Saction 262 of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company has received a notice along with a deposit of ¥ 500/- as required
by Section 257 of the Companies Act, 1956, fram a member proposing Mr. Bansal for his appeintment as a Director of the
Company liabie to retire by rotation. ‘

The Board of Directors recommends the appointment of Mr. Bansal as a Directos of the Company. liable to retire hy rotation.

None of the Directors except Mr. Vinay Bansal is deemed to be concerned with or interested in the above resolution.

'

Under the Authority of the Board of Directors

Place : Mumbai ' H. N. Singh Rajpoot
Dated : May 2, 2011 Company Secretary
Registered office:

463, Or. Annie Besant Road, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 030

'(»{_’!f’if!f/i!/i!;’/i!!."i!//l!/.’l!/i!///a’/.’l!/!/‘r’f‘/!."/:’///!."fia'/f!//!//ff///f'/ff Annual Repart 20710-1 29 »



Directors’
Report

To,

T_he members of
CEAT Limited

The Directors present their fifty-second report, together with the audited accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011,
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" i Profit before Taxation ' 33.24 238.993
Provision for: _ '

£ Current Tax . . 714 74.09
short/(Excess) Pravision for earlier years (0732} -

: Deferred Tax 3,94 3.86 !
" Net Profit . 22.28 | 161.04 ;
Surplus brought farward from previous year . 237.31 08.44 ;
ﬁ&rm available for Appropriation : . 259.55 26948 ‘:S
1 Appropriations: l‘
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 6.85 137@

2 Corporate Tax on Proposed Dividend 1.06 ' 2.32 ;
Transfer to General Reserve 1.70 16.15 i’
Balance carried forward 249.98 2373 :§

:
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The Company’s revenue saw a growth of 23.5 per cent from
¥ 2,808 Crores in the previous to ¥ 3,463 Crores during the
year under review. Good growth was visible in all three market
segments viz. Replacement, QOriginal Equipment Manufacturers
(OEM) and Exports.

™~

DIVIDEND

The Directors are pleased to
recommend a dividend of ¥ 2.00 per
equity share of ¥10/- each (i.e. 20 per
cent) for the financial year ended March
1, 20M1.

CEAT'S PERFORMANCE

The year under review was one of the
most challenging in recent times with
regard to raw materlal cost. Natural
rubber prices touched an all time high
both in the international and domestic
markets. Poor crap in key rubber
producing countries and strong surge
in demand led to an unprecedented
increase in the price. Natural Rubber
and the entire spectrum of other raw
materials showed a rising trend in costs
as compared 1o the previous year with
Natural Rubber prices surging up by
67 per cent, synthetic rubber by 44 per
rent, carbon hiack by 14 per cent and
nylon fabric by 16 per cent. The pverall
basket of raw materials escalated

by 40 per cent and the upward trend
continues in the current year as well,

With domestlc competition intensifying
further, despite best efforts, the
Lompany coud not pass on the

gntire cost increase to the customers.
Consequently, margins saw significant
erosion and the net profit declined from
7161.04 Crores in the previous year to

7 22.28 Crores during the year under
review,

The Company's revenue saw a growth
of 23.5 per cent from ¥ 2,808 Crores
in the previous year to ¥ 3463 Crores

during the year under review. Good
growth was visible In alt three market
segments viz. Replacemenit, Original
Equipment Manufacturers (OEM) and
Exports. The industry also grew at
about the same rate resulting in market
share of the Company remaining at the
same levals. :

CEAT continues to be one of the largest
exparters of tyres. With better thrust
and continued focus, the Company was
able ta increase its exports to ¥ 624
Crares, as against ¥ 479 Crores for the
previous year registering a healthy
growth of mare than 30 per tent. The
market mix for exports also improved
significantly, leading to higher price
reafisation.

The Comgany has attained greater
strength in supply chain management
and logistirs. Hence, it Is now better
placed to outsource and develop a
|large base of vendors who supply
finished products under technical and
manufacturing supervision of the
Company. As a result, the Company has
succeeded in generating 23 per cent of
its revenue through outsourcing. CEAT
will continue its endeavor to explore
the outsourcing option to improve its
market share in key segments.

RADIAL PLANT AT HALOL, GUJARAT

The Company's state of the art radial
plant with an overaft planned capacity
pf 150 MT/day at Halol, Gujarat has
syccessfully been commissioned during
the year under review with an installed
capacity of 60 MT/day. Full capacity

f!/ff/if!."/!//I!/i!/i!!//!/ii!!i!f',’l!i//l.h’f.ff!.’,’/!//!/i!//f/f',’/.".’f!/f!ff Annual Report 2010-11

is expected to be commissioned
during July-September 2011 guarter.
This is one of the most eco-friendly
and highly efficient plants in india
and will manufacture both Truck and
Bus Radials (TBR) and Passengar Car
Radials (PCR}. Commercial production
has commenced from March 25, 207
which is expected to gradually reach full
capacity utilisation by the end of the
current finaneial year.

With the commencement of production
of Radial Tyres from the Halo! plant,
the Company is naw in a position to
cater to the rapidly growing domestic
market for Cornmercial and Passenger
segments as well as explait its
extensive channels in ey export
markets. Going forward, this glant is
expected to become the main source of
revenue for the Company.

BRAND ACQUISITION.

The Company historically had
pwnership rights on the "CEAT"
trademark in India and 8 other Asian
countries, During the year under reviaw,
the Company successfully acquired
worldwide ownership rights of the
“CEAT" trademark from Pireti 6 C.
5.p.A, italy for Eura 8 million. With

the acquisition of the brand which

is renowned worldwide, new and
hitherto unexplored markets will be
accessible to the Company and the
Company would be in a position to fully
explait the export market resulting

in increased volume and better price
realisatian from the year 2012,

1 »
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"INDUSTRY SCENARIO AND FUTURE
OUTLDODK

The Indian econamy has emerged from
the global financial crisis remarkably
and rapidly, with a robust growth

of over 8 per cent. The growth was
exhibited across all segmants of

the economy and the growth of the
automotive sector has exceeded
expectations. The tyre industry being
an ancillary of the automotive sectar
also experienced increased demand,
The tyre industry is a USD 140 hillion
industry globally and the Indian Tyre

Industry commands a share of only 4.5

per cent at US0 6.8 billion. The industry
is projected to grow at a CAGR of aver
15 per cent over the next five years.

As the Company embarks on a new
phase of its journey, it is better poised
to accept new challenges and take
full advantage of favourahle market
conditions. The Compary expects ta
grow at a goad pace in the next few
years and hopes to increase market
share in all seements pamcularly PCR
and Motorcycle.

A dampener on the good demand
cornditions, however, is the raw material
scenarin, particularly that of Natural
Rubber, which is experted to continue
1o exert prassure on margins in the first
quarter of 2012. We-are hopeful that
the raw material prices will stabilise
thereafter.
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RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Along with the radial plant at Halal,
Gujarat, the Company has set upa
new state-of-the-art-Resaarch and
Development Centre at the same
iocatian. This centre has the most
contemparary equipment for testing
and develapment of all types of
tyras, including tyres manufactured

for markets having difficult weather
conditfons. This will reduce the
dependency of the Company on _
external testing centres and will reduce
the need for field testing of tyres.

The year 2010-11 alsa saw significant
R&D efforts to develop new raw

f materials, new range of products and
@ 350 to enhance the quality of tyres.”
Innovative launches of first of its )
kind cancepts in'the fruck and farm
category during the year under rewew
have set into motion the process of
thought leadership by CEAT. In light
of the increasing raw material costs,
successful efforts were made in
development of cheaper substitutes
for costly raw materials without
compromising on quality parameters. -
This has helped the Company to not.
only reduce cost but alse in nptirnlsmg
material consumptlon

ASSOCIATED CEAT KELAN[ VENTURE
{Joint Venture in 5t Lanka)

The Company has acquired a stake
of 45.16 per cent in Assoclated CEAT
Huoldings Cormpany Private Limited
(ACHL), the Cnmpany 5 investment _
arm in 5ri Lanka during the year. With




b

Along with the radial plant at Halol, Gujarat, the
Company has set up a new state-of-the-art Research
and Development Centre at the same location. This
centre has the most contemporary equipment for
testing and development of ali types of tyres, inciuding
tyres manufactured for markets having difficult

weather conditions.

~

this acquisition, ACHL has become

a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Compaey. ACHL contrals 50 per cent
stake in the joint venture company viz.
CEAT %elani Holding Private Limited
which in turn has three wholly owned
tyre manufacturing companies. ACHL
consolidates 50 per cent of the joint
venture in i{s accounts as per 5ri
Lankan laws.

During the year under review, ACHL has
registered a revenue of LKR 3,730.83
million during 2010-11 as compared to
LKR 2,702.66 million in the previous
year, registering a growth of 51.50 per
cent. Profit after tax stood at LKR
277.89 million as compared ta profit
after tax of LKR 25148 miltion. The
Company has dominant market share In
all categories of tyres.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND DUTGO

A statement eiving details of
conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo, in accordance with the
Compganies (Disclosure of Particulars In
the Report of the Board of Directors)
Rules, 1388, is annexed hereto and
forms part of this repart.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company continues to focus on
performance management through
leveraging the Balanced Business
Score Card and triggering Culture
Transformation. Initiatives have also
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been taken towards driving preductivity
through Total Quality Management
{TQM) and in developing and retaining
critical talent through coaching and
mentaring. The TOM movement has
taken roots in the manufaciuring area
and a culture of strong cantinuous
improvements as well as brealthrough
results are setting in.

The Company has kick-started &
rampaign of impravement in employee
engagement through “MRM Connect”
a forum where the tap management
of the Company engages with the
employees on a guarterly basis and
share and exchange views on Company
performance. The Company has also
started a programme of rewards and
recognition far employees through

“guarterly awards for excellence

in performance, leadership and
impravement in cross functional
collaboration.

- EMPLOYEE STATEMENT

In terms of Section 217(2A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies (Particulars of Employees)
Rules, 1975, as amended, the names
arid other particulars of employees

- of the Company, are required to ge

sef out in this report. However, as per

" pravisions of Section 219 (1) (b) (iv)

of the sald Act, the Annual Report
excluding the aforesaid information is
being sent to all the members of the
Company. Those members who are
desifous of abtaining full information

are requested to write to the Company.

EER 4
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During the year under review, the Company successfully
acquired wotldwide ownership rights of the “CEAT”
trademark from Pirelli & C. 5.p.A, ttaly for Euro 9 million.
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANY

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs

has vide General Circular No. 2/2011
dated February 8, 2011 grantad
general exemption from attaching the
accounts and financial statements of
subsidiary companies as provided under
Section 212 {8) of the Companies Act,
1358, provided condftions specified

in the said Circular are fulfilled. The
Cornpany has complied with all the
conditions mentioned in the above
circular, Therefore, the Annual Accounts
of the wholly owned subsidiary of

the Company i.e. Associated CEAT
Holdings Company {Private) Limited
(ALHL) have not been annexed ta

this Report. However, the same are
open for inspection at the Registered
Office of the Company and also at

the Registered Office of ACHL, Any
member desirous of obtaining the
same may request the Campany in
writing, :

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Cormpanies Act,
1956 and Articles of Association, Mr. H.
V. Goenlka, Mr. S, Doreswamy and Mr.-
Banst 5. Mehta retlre by rotation and
being eligible, have-offered themselves
for re-appointment.

Mr. Vinay Bansal was appointed as

director of the Company in the casual
vacancy caused due to the demise of
Mr. M. A. Bakre. He would hald office
up to the date of this Annual General

Meeting. A Notice has been received
from a member proposing the name
of Mr. Vinay Bansal as Director retiring
by rotatlon, Members are requested to
appoint Mr. Vinay Bansal as Director at
this Annual General Meeting and the
Board of Directors recommends the
appointment of Mr. Vinay Bansal as
Director. - :

Mr. Paras K. Chowdhary was re-
appointed as the Mapaging Director-
of the Company for a period from
January 18, 201 to March 31, 2012. This
re-appointment was approved by the
Board of Directors at thelr meeting
held on Gctober 20, 2010 and by the
sharehalders vide a resblution passed
through Postal Ballot on March 11, 2011,

ISS5UE OF PREFERENTIAL
WARRANTS '

Pursuant to the Special Resolution
passed by the shareholders through
Postal Ballot on September 17, 2010, the
Company has on September 30, 2010 -
issued and allotted 1712,1770 Warrants
to the Promoters on a preferential

basls convertible into an equal number
of equity shares at a prica of ¥ 141.44

' per Warrant, Of the sald price, 25 per

cent has. been received up-front at the
time of allotment I.e. on September.30,
2010 and the Warrants are convertible
Into equity shares at the optlon of the
aliottees within.a perlod of 18 months
from the date of afiotrrient, the last day
for canversion’being March 31, 2012,
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

Putsuant to Section 237 (ZAA) of the
Companies Act, 1956, your Directors, ta
the best of their knowledge and belief,
confirm that: ‘

compliance of conditions of corporate
governance, as also the Management
Discussion and Analysis Report, as
stipulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement, are annexed to this
repori.

i) the applicable Accounting
Standards have been followed
in the preparation of the annual
accounts

AUDITORS

Messrs N. M. Raiji & Co., auditors of the
Lompany, retire at the ensuirg Annual -
General Meeting and being eligible,

i) such accounting policies have been vffer themselves for re-appaintment.

selected and applied consistently
and such judgements and
estimates have been made that are
reasonable and prudent so asto
give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company in the
Balance Sheat as at March 31, 20T
and of the Profit and Loss Account
for the said financial year viz. April
.1, 2010 to March 31, 201

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

vour Directors place on recard their
appreciation for the continued support
and cooperation received from the '
‘tustomers, suppliers, dealers, financlal
institutions, banks, members and
Central/State Lovernments towards
conducting the business of the
Company during the year under review.

L {il) proper and sufficient care has
been taken for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing

and detecting fraud and other
irregularities

On hehalf of the Board of Directors,

H.V. Goenka Paras K. Chowdhary
Vice Chairman Managing Directar

Piace : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 2011

iv) the znnual accounts have been
prepared on a going oncern basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on corporate governance,
along with a certificate from the
auditors of the Company, regarding the
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Annexure

fo the Directors’ Report

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO.
(Pursuant to the Companies (Disclosure of Particulars in the Repart of Board of Directors} Rules, 1988) '

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(a) The Company continued to give
major emphasis for conservation

of energy, and the measures taken

during the previous years were

continued. The Efficiency of Energy
Utilisation in each manufacturing
unit s monitored at the corporate

level every quarter, in order to
achieve effactive conservation
of energy. The significant Energy

Conservation measures during the

year were:

=& Identification and monitoring
* of operation of high energy

consuming foad centers and also
Specific loads like Compressors

and Briguette boiler etc.

Use of Energy Efficient Lighting
systems like T5 lamps, Compact

fluorescent lamps and T8
fluorescent tube lights with
electronic balfasts

@ Switching off machines/

equipment when not in use and

switching off tights in areas

net having adequate activity by

regrouping /repositioning the

activity so that there wifl not be

ary wastage of energy due to
lighting

& 12 Pneumatic hoist replaced
with electrical hoist
*ﬁ@‘

Automatic power factor
correction (KVAR) paral
connected in plant to achleve

unity power factor and reduction

in subsequent energy loss

~® Installation of compressar
controller system

» 36

§ 44 444

§ 4 44

Centralised Plant lighting circuit
and fixing of energy saving
lighting controller unit

Installation of energy efficient
screw compressar In utility area

Replacerment of old compressed
air pipe lines with new plpe lines

Banbury 2 speed reduction
through recipe

Dual fire burn_er with VFD

B5 watts CFL Iarﬁp for street
and dusting arez lighting

Conversion of Pneumatic
poking drill heads with
electromechanically drlll head- 5
nos,

Installation of APFC for reactive
power management

Energy efficlent ballast in place
of copper tallast

Fine tuning of the LT
transfarmer.voltages

Introduced heat recovery unlt in

- briquette boller systern to save

b )44

energy, saved 2 per cent fueal

Improved Condensate recovery
by 20 per cent

Reduction in steam/production
ratio by 30 percent

Replaced TD traps with ball flap
trags

New piate type heat exchangers
Installed

(b} Additional investments/Proposals
for reduction of Consumption of
energy,

Harmonic controller Fanels

")
37 kw Cold feed extruder in
place of 90 lkw.BC mill

® Centralised office lighting circuit
and fixing of energy saving
lighting controller unjt

~=F@ Replacement of old inefficient
compressor of instrumentation
air with energy efficient screw
compressor

Installation of energy efficient
pumps ‘

Compressed air lines
replacement

Energy efficient pump for HPCW
system

§ § 4 4

Pneurnatic poking machines
drill heads to be replaced with
electric on remaining machines

y

Energy afficient screw
tomprassors in place of
recipracating compressors

Maximising the capacity
utilisation of 8 x 10 CFE line

§ 4

Energy efficient air knife for
water removing on extruding
line

4

Conversion of oil fired boilers ta
“gas (PNG) fired boilers

CEAT Limlted 4’!//!//!!/.’a’/."/f!.".v'f’/."i.f.fr‘f.v'f’/!//I!."ffa'//a’.l’."f!f'."/.v’.fI'f/."/.v'."/l.v’l///f/!.’////ff/////!“




—=¥% Replacement of Briquetté Boiler
with Gas (PNG) fired Boiler

“F® New LP dome line far truck
PrESSES

() Impact of the measures at (a) and
{h) above for reduction of energy
consumption and consequent
impact on the cost of production of
goods.

The above efforts have helped in
reduction of power.consumption
per kg. of production. However, the
actual power consumption has gone
up due to change in product-mix.

(g} Total energy consumption and
energy consumption per unit of
"production, as per Form A.

NN R R RN RN RN N NN NN R NN NN Annual Report 2010-T1
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: FORM “A"

iiA, POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

i 1. ELECTRICITY

{a) Purchased

i Units (KWH)
i Tatal Amount (T in Crores)

Rate per unit (3)

{b) Own generation

(i) Through Diesal Generator :

i T Units (IGWH)

Units/ Litre of Diesel (KWH)
E Cost per unit %)

i 2. FURNACEDOIL

©  Quantity (KLirs)

i Total amount { ¥ in Crares)
Average rate { Tper Litre)

4 3. LSHS.

i Quantity (K.Ltrs.)
i Total amount { ¥ in Crores)

Average rate (¥ per Litre)

BRIQUETTES

i ~ Quantity {Tonnes)
: Total amount (T in Crores)

Average rate { Tper Kg)

5. GAS

P

Cuantity (SCM)

FEb G b e RETITIIN S

Total amount ( ¥ in Crores)

Average rate (T per SCM)

Pt S

w

CONSUMPTION/ UNIT OF PRODUCTION

R aa,

{) Electricity {(KWH/MT.)

rasa

(i} Furnace Oil { Ltrs./ MT)

lii) Briguettes (KG / MT)

(
(iv) Gas (SCM f MT)
(v} L.5.H.E (Ltrs./ MT)

2010-T1

§,94,24,200
56.65
5.70

214,824
276
14.25

13k

29.33

588f

3,409
8.80

55372595

2,56.855

S 5,
i
—t I

2501

b
i
i

583§

504298 2340/

2737

543§

60,758

012
18.36

680.671

7
344.50
0.42
23.29

37 »



e
e

- Management
Discussion and Analysis

ECONOMIC REVIEW

The Indian economy has orice again emerged s one of the most successful
cent. The growth has been broad with a rebaund in the agricultural (5.4 per
sactors (9.1 per cent). Although there have been few threats and crises in th

performers globally with the GDP growth of 8.6 per
cent), industrial (8.6 per cent), and manufacturing
e Indian economy due to the high rates of inflation

and increase In expenses of essential commaodities like food and oll, the Indian policy makers are routing a way to ensure
sustainable long term grawth.
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g : : : H

{COP trend* (%) H 35% 9.63 933 : 8.0 86

ks i3 4]

: ﬁ | ;? L
Ik‘i%f.“’.il".;%‘i‘Z"?-’-2‘.31‘3!?2:::kiizﬁ'.’tl‘;ﬁ&@’!“ﬁ:'ﬁ RTINS IENTTilaaBYIIII AN ARETITS z.;..:sn: TEVALRTAST Y LRATRIRIFIN 120TLILY L TRRTALSS AT VErTELIY {UELAREEFT ELIRARL
(Source: C50 * Growth in GOP at factor cost at 2004-05 arices)

The pace of economic actvity in the country is directl

y reflected In the tyre offtake by different automobile segments. The
prospects of the Indian economy have thus augured

well for the Indian tyre industry.
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Glabal Tyre market is worth approx USD 140 billian, with the OEM
segment and replacement segment constituting 30 per cent and
60 per cent respectively of the overall tyre markets.

N

" TYRE INDUSTRY REVIEW

GLOBAL SCENARIO

~ As of April 2011, the Global Tyre market |5 worth approx USD 140 billion, with the

" Qriginal Equipement Manufacturer (DEM) segment and replacement segment
constituting 30 per cent and 60 per cent respectively of the averall tyre markets,
Owing to excellent road infrastructure, the extent of radialisation is much higher
in the developed nations, The average radialisation levels in the medium to heavy
commercial vehicles is around 0 per cent, whereas in geographies like North
America and Europe it is as high as 95 per cent.

(Seurce: Investment Information and Credit Rating Agency of inia Limited, April 201

GLOBAL TYRE INDUSTRY COMPOSITION (%) (AS OF FEBRUARY, 20M)

. @ PassengerCarsand LCVs @@  Trucks and Buses & Farth Movers

& 2 Wheelers 3 Agricultural Aircraft

1 1

{Saurce: CRISIL)

INDIAN SCENARID

The chronicie of Indian tyre industry started in 1926. Since then, the industry has
grown rapidly, harmonising with the growth of automabile industry. A highly capital
and raw material Intensive and predaminantly cross ply {or bias) tyre manufacturing
industry, praduces alt categories of tyres, except snow tyres and aerp tyres. The
industry is dominated by the organised sector while the unorganised sector halds
rontrol over bicycle tyres. After the abysmal performance post slowdown in FY
2008, the Industry has witnessed considerable rebound in FY 2010, driven by the
economic revival, resurgence in automobile demand, sising per capita income and
ease of interest ratas.

SNAPSHOT ON THE INDIAN
TYRE INDUSTRY

4 25,000 Crores - Total turnover
71,430 Crores- Imports

T 3,000 Crores- Exports

5% - of Global tyre demand

36 - Number of companies

60 - Manufacturing plants

Top 10 companies - account for
B5-90% of the tatal preduction

{Snurcé: Investment (nformation and Credit Rating
Agency of India Limited, April 2013)
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While more and more people opt for two-wheelers, value-wise; the sector Is
strongly dominated by the Medium to Heavy Commercial Vehicle {MHCV) and Light
Commercial Vehicle (LCV) segment, a reflection directly linked to the country's
economic development. With greater access to, and introduction of, affordable
Passenger Vehicles (PV), Cars and Ltility Vehicles (UV) foilow a close second. The
two-wheeler, three-wheeler, exports and other segments such as Off The Road
(OTR), tractars, construction equipment, atc. collectively constitute the remaining
pie.

TYRE PRODUCTION IN INDIA (Number of Tyres in '000)

T 1
100 ’ —

o _EEiE_:;:
e EEEEFFEFF

1 L L i) 1. L 1

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2010

™ Others ™ 2 Whealer i~ LoV
r— PassengerCar  — Truck and Bus

(Source: ATMA, April 2011)

VALUE-WISE SEGMENT ALLOCATION (%)

Q%\ J I/,,’

i

® MHDY ® v -
3 Cars and UVS @ Others

{Source: Crisil Research, Fabruary, 200}




INDUSTRY COMPOSITION

REPLACEMENT MARKET

The replacement market dominates the Indian tyre Industry accounting for 71 per
cent of the total tyre off-take. This segment is most saught after in India as it
provides a hetter margin compared to the OEM segment.

ORIGINAL EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURERS (DEM)

This segment constitutes 21 per cent of the total market demand. With increased
launch of new cars, the OEM segment is expected ta grow around 17-18 per cent in
2011-12. :

EXPORTS

Exports comprise the remaining 8 per cent, The Indian tyres are exported mainly to
Asia, Africa, Middle East and Latin America, Commercial Vehicte {CV) tyres dominate
the exports, with more than 60 per cent share, for which the primary export
destinations are Latin America, UAE, Bangladest, Iran, Phillppines, and Vietnam.

PV tyres constitute around 18 per cent of the market demands {export destination
UAE and Nigeria). ’

{Source: Invesiment Information and Credit Rating Agency of India Limited, April 2011)

TYRE MARIKETS BREAK-UP (%) INDUSTRY GROWTH (5%}

A\l

ZTs\
o=

131

103 0.6 qpa

&  Replacement @ O0EM @ Exports

(Scurce: Crisil Research, Fabruary 2011) ' DEM Replacement Total

™ 2004-05102008-10 =1 2009-10 to 2014-15F
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ROBUST GROWTH OF AUTOMOBILE INDUSTRY

India continues to consolidate its position in the glabal space. It is the seventh largest
vehicle praducing nation in the warld, accounting for 5 per cent of global auto production,
up from 14 per cent at the beginning of 2000. The Industry as a whole is expected to
grow around 15-20 per cent annually in the coming years: It expects PV sales, including
exports, to touch 5.1 million units by 2015. Again, CV sales (which accounts for more

than 70 per cent of CEAT’s total revenue) including small, medium and large cammercial
vehicles aré expected to touch 142 million. The rise in auto demand would increase the
demand for BEM tyres, which will further transpire into repiacement demnand in next two
years. The overali demand growth would drive revenue visibly for tyré manufacturers like
CEAT far next two years. ' '
(Source: SIAM, April 20M)

PRODUCTION AND SALES TREND OF INDIAN AUTOMOBILE INDUSTRY
T rwa e rema L St s} ATEEE CEEAE BB . % AT TETTLITEE T o

{Total Numbers) :

122005 L 201 : 2010-11
; § 97.43,503 § 1,10,87.997 111,72,275 £1,40,57,064 | 179,16,035
Sales 89,06,428 §/1.01,23,988 | 95,54435 | 97.24,243 § 1,22,95,397 | 1,553,156
5 1 B 1} ‘
EEEYATRIRE, Sssuermnzmzmend Toriiomes pEREARLEFSEURIETRRINIIT «1%—'Ewa TLEEETRER i >ITITTOT

(Source: Socisty of Indian Automohile ManuFacturers, Aprll 20M)

RADIALISATION

In recent times, radialisation Is the most impariant innovation in tyre industry as it
improves driving, saves fuel and provides additional mileage. In India, the radiallsation
has been only seen in the PV segment (98 per cent), while the MHCV segment has only
8.6 per cent of radialised tyres as compared to the global average of 65 per cent.

The reason for lower radialisation was poor road Infrastructure and overloading of frelght
corridors which made radial tyres unviable in India. However, the Government has now
begun to emphasise an the improvement of road infrastructure through its National
Highway Development Programmie. It has also laid curbs against overloading of trucks on
major freight corridors. These measures would lead to a stronger demand for radial tyres
in the coming years.

RADIALISATION (%)
) 1
100 - g5
l Rl I 7 P® ‘Western Europe == North America
57 65 ™ Central Europe =3 Africa Middle East Asla
48 | I South America -1 Asia
™ Easterm Eurape =1 ndia
20 % = ‘World

(Source: CRISIL Research, February Z011)
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. RAW MATERIALS

_The tyre industry is highly raw material intensive. Thus, raw materials play a pivotal
rale in Indian tyre industry, constituting around 72 per cent of the cost of production
and 63 per cent of tyre industry turnover.

PRICE COMPOSITION OF GENERAL COMMERCIAL TYRE (%)

i
s

T /

@ Natural Rubber Nylon Tyre Cord Fabric
&% Carbon Black Rubber Chermicals .
@ Butyl Rubber PBR {Palybutadiere Rubber)
@ SBR (Styrene Butadiene Rubber) &k Others
L . ]
(Source: Automotive Tv_re Manufacturers Assuciatlun; April 2011) .
BUSINESS OVERVIEW

CEAT Limited is geared to meet customer needs in every segment. It offers a wide
array of tyres, which include heavy duty Trucks and Buses (TE8), Light Commercial -
Vehicles (LCVs}, Passenger Cars (PC), earthmovers and forklifts (Specialty segment),
tractors, trailers, scooters, matorcycles, auto- rickshaws and 2/3wheelers. The
Company markets flaps and tubes outsourced from partners, thereby becoming a
one-stop shop te cater to its wide consumer base.

Truck and Bus tyres are the highest contributor to the annual turnover of the

Company (61 per cent}. In terms of market segments, replacement market
contributes around 75 per cent in the topline.

ATEPE P IPE R T R E s b i d it il i it i ettt iiliiiitriieiidi Annual Report 2010-11 45 »



SECMENT-WISE PRODUCT PORTFOLIO (%) MARKET-WISE VALUE BREAKUP (%)
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® Trucks and Buses & 2-3 wheelers o -
@ light Commercizl Vehicles @) Farm T & Replacement- @ OEM - CE Export
8 Carf |eep $iF  Off The Road and Industrisl Vehicles
I ] L i, . 4 ]
PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

To enrichcustomer experience, the Company continuously expands its range of
products and services. To facilitate the paddy farmer, CEAT launched India's first
Rice Special tyre (Aayushmaan R2) last year for tractors used in paddy fields,
Besides this, the Company was aiso involved in the foltowing activities to act upon
various learning from its consumer feedbacl,

NEW PROOUCT LAUNCHES

LEEYN IR LIV EATTIANA 6 R TATIE S TITTRRHATTLIG LiBELpTRITE -anz2u‘utﬁ:s:-w%umﬁﬂmrmaamunmn;nauenu;
4

: i

Trucle High mileage ; high load front tyre - 10.00-201RD 12 %
LLV. Premium Buland Range of Tyres acrdss all sizes ‘ ‘&f
Last Mile Rib tyre in 165 D12 and 165 D 13 sizes 1

Motorcycla Premium ‘Gripp’ range across key sizes; Launched ‘Milaze’ and
‘Zoom' patterns in select sizes. Special tyre for mud terraln far
Hero Honda developed

Passenger New sizes introduced in ‘Milaze’ range

p At smairir Y

&
£
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—=F@ CEATPRO

CEAT actively organises
ediscational sessions known as
CEAT PRO ta spread awareness
among truck owners about

the best business practices to
imprave operaticnal efficiency.
The Company has conducted
58 such seminars (ast year
with expert speakers on lubes,
auto finarce and insurance,
vehicle AMCs, telematics, and
ather related topics for better
customer satisfaction, resulting
in higher profit margins,

~F® Tyre Service Centre {TSC)

The backbone of CEAT's TBR
channel strategy, its Tyre Service
Centre (formerly the Wheel
Management Centre) caters to
all service requirernents of a
truck fleet owner. The current

“twb TSCs provide end-to-end
solutions fo custorners to buy,
fit, service, retread and dispose
tyres at a single point. The
Company aims to provide the
convenience of 10 other TSCs in
FY 12,

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

TG Net sales increased 23 per cent
fram ¥ 2,80,747.60 facs in 2009-
1C to T 3.46,892.25 lacs Ir 2010-
1. The growth {5 attributed to
expanded product portfolio,
increased sales volume, superior
customer sarvice znd improved
capacity utilisation.

6 Secured loan almost doubled
from ¥ 31,205.17 lacs in 2009-10
to ¥ 62,413.46 lacs in 2010-11,
mainly utilised far Capacity
expansion at Halgl and
acguisition of "CEAT" brand
from Pirelll & C. 5.p.A, Italy.

9@ Operating expense increased
by 39 per cent because of the
54 per cent hike in cost of raw
materials, which impacted the
PAT. PAT decreased fram
16,104.15 lacs in 20039-10 to
¥2,228.33 lacs in 201D-11.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

Owing to increased awareness among
consumers and the steady growth

of Global and Indian economy, the
automobile industry is all set for
rabust growth, which will in turn
contribute to heatthy OEM demand.

On the other hand, tha growing

vehicle population will augmant
demand in the replacement tyre
market proportionately. Investment in
infrastructure and projects of National
Highway Development Programme
further nurtures industry escalation,
Besides, the low radialisation in CV
tyres provides ample scope for industry
expansion. However, increased imports,
aspecially of cheap Chinese tyres, In
the Indian Trucl and Bus radial tyre
segment poses a considerable threat to
the industry.




INDUSTRY RISI(S AND CONCERNS

INCREASED COST OF NATURAL RUBBER

As tyres are malinly composed of natural rubber (72 per cent of the total production
cost), increased prices highly influence the industry. Tyre sector is the largest
consumer of rubber {total consumption of rubber by tyre industry: B0 per cent}, with
a monthly demand of 75,000-80,000 tonne. Though the total rubber production is
expected to touch 8,6 lakh tonne in FY 2011, there will still be a deficit of 85,000-
90,000 tonnes. Recent floods in Thailand pushed the price of rubber ta a record
helght of ¥ 243/ke which is a serious concern far the whale industry.

(Source: The Econemic Times, March 2011) -

MONTHLY RUBBER PRICE MOVEMENT (Price per Kg. in )

Natural Ruibbier
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(Saurce: Réuters. March 201)

NON TARIFF MEASURES ON IMPORT OF TYRES AND RAW MATERIALS

Though import of natural rubbers is under Open General Licence (OGLY, the
domestic rubbar price Is set up'by the Government through the mechanism of
Minimum Statutory Price (MSP), Dften, that leads to a domestic price higher
than the international price. The Import duty on natural rubbers is also quite high.
Altarnatively, the custom duty on import of tyres is very less (nil for Bangladesh,
Bhutan, Maldives and Nepal). So even if there is scope for raw material import,
the option Is not very feasible for the Indian players and they have to depend on
domestic rubber production. .

(Source: ICRA Report, June 2009)
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INCREASED CRUDE QIL PRICE

Rising crude oil price is also a threat to
the tyre industry, as carbon, synthetic
rubber and nylon tyre cords are
petroleum by-prodiscts. ™

INCREASED COMPETITION

Afteriiberalisation, several:
manufacturers are expanding
globally by acquiring or setting up
rmanufacturing bases overseas, which
escalates domestic competition.

UNCERTAINTIES IN EXTERNAL
ENVIRONMENT

The Indian tyre industry faces major
concerns such as rising inflation,
turbulent econormic environmment,
competition from imports, and rise in
interest rates,

OUTLOOK . .

Following strategles demonstrate
CEAT's streng motivation and potential
to capitalise the growth opportunities
prevailing in the industry.

INCREASED PRESENCE IN
REPLACEMENT MARKET 70 IMPROVE
MARGINS

Lower.bargaining power of tyre
manufacturers with OEMs result in

a low profit margin of the segment
compared to the replacement market.
CEAT Shoppes and CEAT Hubs result
in wider reach among end users, This
enhanced accessibility has increased
the replacement market share for
CEAT. To leverage the opportunity
and to impraove the averall margin,
the Company is gradually shifting
towards improved product mix in the
replacement segment.



‘SHIFT OF CEAT TOWARDS HIGHER MARGIN REPLACEMENT MARKET (% of Sales)

I ¥

Increase in'shift

towards high-margin
Replacement marhet

74

I.EE.J—

18

OEM Export Replacemant
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EMPHASISING COMMERCIAL VEHICLES SEGMENT

LV segment contributes mare value to revenues. It therefare registers a higher
CAGR compared to the PV seement. Mareover, CV tyres are generally replaced at an
interval of 12 to 14 months, a sharter time span as compared to the 24 to 48 month
replacemeant period of the PV tyre. Further, usage of radial tyres is still at a stage of
infancy in CVs, which opens a huge scope for expansion. CEAT thus capitalises an
this opportunity with a greater focus on CV tyres. In FY 2010, more than 70 per cent
of the total revenue of the Company came from this segment,

COMMERCIAL VEHRICLE PASSENGER VEHICLE
{Number of Vehicles in '000) {Number of Vehicles in '000)
1 11 1] 1
Expected to _ Expected to
grow at CAGR grow at CAGR
18.3% till 2015 12.8% tili 2015
1420 ' 5,100
[ 1 1
2,797
2774
G612 ‘
608
459
L 1 1 L 1 L 1 ] 1 L 1 L L L [ 1 1 i
2004 2005 2006 Z007 2008 2003 2010 2015€ 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2019 2045E

{Source: SIAM, April 2011}
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CAPACITY EXPANSION -

Till FY 210, the capacity of CEAT
stood at 410 tonnes per day. The
Company has set ug 2 green field radial
manufacturing facility at Halol (of 150
tonnes per day Truck and Bus, Light
Trucks and Passenger Vehicle radials),
which will increase the capacity of

the Company to 560 tonnes per day.

A further value addition of 35 tonnes
per day radial tyre at Nasik plant is
expected to lead the total production of

the Company to 535 tonnes per day by

the end of 04 of FY 2012,

ACQUISITION OF BRAND CEAT FROM
PIRELLI

The Company has acguired global rights
of "CEAT” brand from the Italian tyre
malker, Pirelli for Euro 9 million. This -
acquisition is expected to double the
export revenues over the next three
years. Prior to the said acquisition, the
Company was the owner of the brand
in nine South Asian countries. Pirelli
has exclusive rights ta the "CEAT"
brand in Europe, Latin America, Mexico
and Turkey upto Decernber 31, 20M,
post which the Company shall have
complete rights to the brand.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk: Rising raw materials prices
could considerably affect the
profit margin.

Mitigation: CEAT's long presence and
experience in the industry
-contribute to the wisdom of
planning in advance to keep

© the risk to the minimum.

Risl: Demand fluctuation in
different product categories.

-Mitigation: Strong presence across

all tyre categories and
extensive domestic and
international netwark eases
the risk considerably.

Risk: Rizing domestic competition
as well as Imports from

China.

Mitigation: Superior after sales service,

* extended credit period
In addition to the anti-
dumping duty imposed
on Chinese tyres will help
the Company to manage
damestic competitionica
great extent.
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‘Management Discussion and:Analysis

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND-
THEIR ADEQUACY ?

In any industry, the processes and -
internal control systems play a
critical role in the health of the
Company. CEAT's wall defined -

oreanisational structure, documented -

palicy guidelines, defined authotity
matrix and internal controls ensure
efficiency of operations, compliance
.with internal policies and applicable
laws and regulations as weli as
protection of resources. Moreover,
the Company continuously upgrades
these systems in fine with the best
available practices. The internal control
system is supplemented by extensive
- internal audits, regular reviews by
management and standard policies
and euidelines to ensure reliability
of financial and all other recards to
prepare financial statements and other
data. The management information
. system provides fimely and accurate
. information for effective control.
Reports on key performance indicators
and variance analysis vis-3-vis the
budgets are discussed and action
plans are drawn for proper fallow up
at regular Management Committee
maetings. At each Board Meeting,
operational reports are tabled after
being discussed at Audit Committee
* Meetings.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN
HUMAN RESOURCES

The Company recognises the value of
its work force for continuous growth.
A well drawn recruitment policy, clearly
defined roles and responsibilities,
individuai performance management
systems, and performance-based
compensation paolicies facilitate the
employee progress and encourage
innovative thinking. The Company

has also identified requirements

for training and development
opportunities, to boost credibility of
manpower as well as business process.

- Such initiatives also develop a sense of

ownership within the arganisation.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management
Discussion 2nd Analysis describing
the Company's objactives, projections,
estirnates, expectations may be
“forward-looking statements” within
the meaning of applicable securities
taws and regulations. Actual results
could differ materially from those
expressed or implied. Imporiant
factors that could influence the
Company's operations include ecanomic
developments within the country,
demand and supply conditions in

the industry, input prices, changes in
Covernment regulations, tax laws and
other factors such as litigation and
industrial refations.
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Corporate =
" Covernance Rep
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1 COMPANY PHILOSOPHY

The Company's philosophy on
Corporate Governance mirrors its

belief that principles of transparency,
fairness and accountability towards

the stakeholders are-the pillars of a
good governance system. The Company
believas that the discipline of Corparate
Covernance pertains to systems, by
which companies are directed and
controlled, keeping in mind long-

term interests of shareholders,

while respecting interests of other
stakeholders and society at large. It
aims to align interests of the Company
with its shareholders and other

key stakehaolders. Accordingly, this
Campany's philosophy extends beyond
what is belng reported under this
Report and it has been the Company's
constant endeavor to attain the highest
levels of Corporate Governance.

This Report is for compliance of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement, which
the Company has entered into with the
Stock Exchanges.

Il BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In terms of the Company's Carporate
Governance Policy, all statutory

and other significant and material
information ingluding information
mentioned in Annexure 1A of Clause
49 of the Listing Agreement are
placed before the Board to enable it
to discharge its responsibilities of
strategic supervision of the Company
with due compliance of laws and as
trustees of stakeholders.

1. COMPOSITION

At.present the Board of Directors
of the Company consists of twelve
(12) members, of whom two (2) are
‘Executive’ Directors and ten {10)
are ‘Non-Executive’ Directors.

The Chairman, Or, R, P. Goenla

|s a Non-Executive Directar, Mr.
Paras K, Chowdhary, the Managlng
Director and Mr. Anant Vardhan
Goenka, the Deputy Managing
Director are the Executives
Directors, The Directors are eminent

Industi
experig
financd

the ref
judgm

lalists/professionals with
nce in industry/business/
/law and bring with them
utation of independent

nt and experience, which

they exerclise and also satisfy the
criterig of independence. However,
the Board of Directors, adopting a
more exkacting view; has decided to
treat oply the Directors, as indicated
in Para[ll-2 below, as independent
directops.

2. BOARD MEETINGS HELD
‘DURING THE YEAR AND
ATTENDANCE THEREAT

‘Ouring the financial year ended
March 31, 201, five {5) meetings
of the Board of Directors
were held on Agril 29, 2010, July
27, 2010, September 30, 2010,
October 20, 2010 and
January 25, 2011
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Repart on Corpoiats Gavernance

N

Details of Directors and their attendance in the sald Board Meetings and also at the last Annual General Meeting are

givan below:

; IS ILHL LT PR Tt e i et bas s b s b3 SR F RS A SR TR TS TEE b -irr et 5 11 srrrrERLlid FFE ¥’ T 43300
T e e O ST —

e i&%sgéig I e yihgfhg R

o e o

Bt R mnan e e e o5 sheldini::

- et z?ﬂtﬁrﬁe&fin 5i:ilae ”*ng i

Name o s e bl
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EHnnHup e el R L B SR B afles:i compantesti

i Egg’"¥§5¥§§§2§E§§§§4§§§‘§§@ﬂ§ﬂ%ﬁ' 20D e e R R

: 3 EN 7 :

: H iChairman:Mamber;

Dr. R, P. Goenka Non-Executive Non-Independent : 0f No 2 * -1 -
Mr. H. V. Goenka Mon-Executive Nor-Independent ; 5 © Yes! 8 | * -
= 4 e ] : i H

' . : i ' v { :

Mr. Paras K. Chowdhary ~ RExecutive Non-independent | 53 Yes | 7 S 24
i B ! S

Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka §Executive Non-independent 5i Yes | 5i -l -
Mr. Mahesh &. Gupta Non-Exetutive Independent & 5i Yes | 13§ 3 d
. B! L i 0 : EI

Mr. A. C. Choksey Non-Executive Independent  : 4= Yes | - BY -4
. g : i A

Mr. 5. Doraswarmy Non-Executive Independent 43 Yes Bii 3% 4
M. Halgreve Khaitan Non-Executive Independent £ 1§ No § 144 -1 9:
Mr. Bansi 5. Mehta Non-Executive Independent & 4§ Yes § 14 i 5% 55
Mr. Hari L. Mundra Non-Executive Independent 5 “Yes ? 14 1%
Mr. K. R. Podar Non-Executive Independent ¢ 3 No { 4 ; -1 -i
Mr. Vinay Bansal Non-Executive [ndependent 4 Yes 1% - -5
E4 44 hadrtrstrsssidisiissiidietitiiseissats ;?’.25!3!:'“2‘313"é‘.‘}‘éi”%H!‘?i‘,9'!‘??$?§§,iinﬁ“5“§‘?“":‘?s!?*"}f?g?‘i”éi!??f“’?“".“fé{“,?%?‘t??“‘f?:‘%

* Only Audit Committee and Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee are reckoned for this purpose.

3. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

PROPOSED FOR APPOINTMENT/

RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE

FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING [PURSUANT TO CLAUSE

49 (IV)(C)]

i}

Mr. H. V. Goenka

Mr. H. V. Goenka is the Chairman
of RPG Enterprises Limited, one
of the leading business groups
in India with over USD 3.7 billion
in annual salas. RPL Enterprises
has interests in Sectors like

Entertainment.

Switzerland. He

Power, Tyres, Transmission,
Retail, Technology and

Mr. Coenka comes fram the well
lknown family of industrialists
of Kolkata and is the son of

Dr. Rama Prasad Goenka. Mr.
Goenka graduated in Economics
and is an MBA from IMLO,

is Chairman of

KEC International Limited, RPG
Life Sciences Limited, Zensar
Technologies Limited and Vice
Chairman of CEAT Limited. Mr.

FAAEE P E T b r it i iri i pr i r bbbt i sl insr b pb e p 47474 Annual Report 2010-17-

Goenka, a past President of

the Indian Merchant's Chamber
(IMC) serves on the Executive
Committes of the Federaticn of
Indian Chambers of Commerce
and Industry (FICCI) and is a
Member of the Foundation
Board of IMD, Lausanne,
Switzerland.

Heis 53 years of age, married

and has a son and a daughter,
both of wharn are married. His
interests ara art and sports.
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Other Directorships Mr. Coenka is not Chairman He is currently engaged

—r o . . or Member of any Audit in corporate and financial
© Bajaj_ Electrlcalg Limited or Shareholders/Investars consultancy and is on the
—=¥® Zensar Technologies Limited Crievance Committee. Boards of a few well known
~=¥@ KEC International Limited . - ; campanies.
it} Mr. S. Doreswanty .
—=¥® RPC Enterprises Limited Mr. 5. Doreswamy s a Other Directarships
=¥ Raychem RPG Private Limited - professional banker with about ~=F® Pantaloon Retall India Limited
) . : 35 years of experience. He )
=@ RPC Life Sciences Limited - has held a variety of senior @ Shakti Sugar Limited
—=F& Spencer International Hotels aperational and administrative ~=F& Hexaware Technologies Limited
" Limited ’ ' assignments. He was the -~ S . ) )
‘ Chairman and Managing ~=@ Caliber Point Business Solutions
76 ;I'he State lnd[l:istrlal & . " Director of two large public . | Limited
nvestments Corporation o sector banks- Dena Bank and —=i5
o . @ Rama New I tE
Maharashtra Limited (SICOM) Central Bank of India, making - Limited Bwsprin Papers
significant contribution to their
¥ DSP Black Rock Trustee Limited

grawth and progress durmg his
tenure. : :

Member/Chairman of the following Committees

i“!' e P PR T PECE P T T e R e EFETEIR X EE SRR RERAR A5 L2 R R EEE N 28 FYATIRIWITYRIICETTOIINITINNNT Pttt Bk SR SR SREE SR TS EF ¢S TP kaEAEEAEL A TVARSARETEOT P
i .
i

Narme of the Campan .3 i %}J Hri
pany i N e B T is%g§§§ ,
Caliber Point Business Solutions Limited Audlt SR : ’ Chairman
Pantaloon Retail India Limited Audit L Chairman :
Pantaloon Retall India Limited Investors Grievance Member ]
Shaki Sugar Limited Audit Member ]
Rama Newsprints and Paper Limited Audit i Chairman ¢
Hexaware Technologies Limited : [ Audit : - . -} Member- %
Hexaware Technologies Limited Investors Grievance - # Member %
. R AR S Sy harh 3 SR SRR RN PEE SR E: £ 3 FEL T T E B i IFEL TETY ‘ :.., ._..._...._é
ii1}-Mr, Bansi &, Mehta india. He has been a director of —=F@ CGillette India Limited .
* M i © the Company since 1996. . : -
'::I;;HT:EEEZ I:n?:tgér?fiﬂzﬁ rIJT’ mpany 8 Housing Developmient Finante
Corporation Limited '
the Institute of Chaftered - Other Directorships g
Accountants of India. Mr, —=F5 Atul Limited =) ”‘. EIFS Investment Managers
Mehta is an accountant in e i o - Limited
* practice dealing with ta::cation, ® Bharat Bijlee Limited - =55 |. B. Chemicals and
accountancy and valuation of TG Century Enka Limited- Pharmaceuticals Limited
mergers and acquisitions. He . ) .
is a director on the boards of C] Clariant Chemicals (India) ~¥% National Securities Depository
several prominent companies in Limited : lelted
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=~

—=F® Pidilite Industries Limitad

—=F® Proctor & Camble Hygiene and

Health Care Limitl_ad

—=F® Sasken Communication

Technologies Limited
~=F® GBI Capital Markets Limited

—=F@ Sudarshan Chemical Industries
Limited

=% Udhe India Limited (Alternate
Director) '

Member/Chairman of the following Committees

’2"’551“{}2}.‘&‘{!!82?!?!Hk‘!-ifﬂ‘ée&&»{éi}b&&iiéi&
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Name of the Company hetamm AfAnti LT
Ciliette India Limited . Member
Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited§ Audit - Member
Atul Limited Audit ~ iMember
Century Enka Limited Audit Member
Practor & Garmble Hygiene and Health Care Limited | Audit j_l_wMgrrnberr -
IL & FS Investment Managers Limited Audit i Chairman
J. B. Chemicals & Pharmaceuticals Limited - Audit ‘Chairman
Sudarshan Chemicals Limited Audit : Chairman
Sasken Communication Technologies Limited Audit * Chairman
Pidilite Industrias Limited Audit ) ) : Chalrman

Iv} Mr. Vinay Bansal

Mr. Bansat an |AS officer of 1969
Batch (Maharashtra Cadre),
retired as Secretary in the
Department of Chemicals in the
Government of India.

Before that, he served as
Additional Secreiary Commerce,
Government of india, Chairman,
MSEB, Principal Secretary
Industries and Principal
Secretary to Chief Minister,
Maharashtra.

He has represanted the
Government of Indiz in Joint
Commissions to-several.
couritries and negotiated the
Comprehensive Economic

~ Cooperation Agreement
between Covernment of India
and Singapore. Currently, he

84

is warling as consultant in
Reliance Industries Limited.

Mr. Bansal holds 2 Master's
degree in Mathematics from
the Univarsity of Allahabad,
2 Diploma in Petraleum
Management fram Arthur

-O'Little, MDI; Boston in US

and also Diplomas in Business
Administration and French.

Other Directorships
Rewas Ports Limited

Navi Mumbai SEZ Private
Limited

Mr, Bansal is not a Chairman
or Member of any Audit

or Shareholders/Investars
Grievance Committee.

- COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

1. AUDIT COMMITTEE

The terms of reference of

Audit Committee include the
matters specified under Clause
49 (1) {D) and (E) of the Listing
Agregment as well as in Section
292A of the Companies Act,
1956. The terms of referance of
the Audit Committes, inter 2lia,
include the following:

1) Oversight of the Company's
financial reporting grocess and
the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the
financial statements are correct,
sufficient and credible,

2) Reviewing with the
management the financial
statements at the end of the
guarier, half year and tha annual
statements before submission
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- to the Board for approval with

a)

0)

d)

e)

f)

g)

particular reference to:

Matters required to be included
in the Directars’ Responsibility
Statement which forms part of
the Board's Report in terms of
Clause (2AA) of Section 217 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

Changes, if any, in accounting
policies and practices and
reasons for the same.

Major accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the
Same.

Significant adjustments made
In the financial statements
arising out of audit findings.

Compliance with the listing
and other legal requirements

relating to financlal statements.

Disclosure of any related party
transactian.

Dualiﬁcatibns'. in the draft audit
report.

Considering and recomrmending
the appointment, re-

appointment, of the statutory
auditors, fixation of the

audit fee and fee for any
other services rendered by
the Statutory Auditors and

if required, the replacement
or removal of the Statutory
Auditor,

. Reviewing with the

management, performance
of the Statutory and Internal
Auditors and adeguacy of the
internal control systems.

Reviewing the adeguacy of

the internal audit function, if
any, including the structure of
the internal audit department,
staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department
reporting structure coverage
and freguency of the internal
audit,

. Discussion with internal

auditors, any slgnificant
findings and follow up thereon.

- Reviewing the findings-of any

internal investigations by the -
in_tgrne_ll auditors into matters

where there is suspected fraud
ar irregularity or a failure of
internal control systems of a
material nature and reporting
the matter to the Board.

. Looking into the reasons for

substantial defaults in payment
to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders and
creditors, 1f any,

The Company has complled
with the requirements of
Clause 49 {11} {A) as regards
the composition of the

Audit Committee. The Audit
committee has three (3)
members; Mr, Hari L. Mundra,
Mr. 5. Doreswarmy, Mr. Mahesh
S. Gupta. Mr. Mundra is

the Chairman of the Audlt
Committee.

During the financlal year
ended March 31, 201, four

(4) meetings of the Audit
Committee were held on April
28, 2010, July 26, 2010, October
20, 2010 and January 25, 2011,

» 56

Attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings

Name of the Member

Mr. Hari L. Mundra

Mr. 5. Doreswamy

Mr. Mahesh S. Gupta

Full quorum was present at the meetings.

The Audit Committee Meetings are also generally attended by the representatives of Statutory Auditors and Internal
Auditors, the Managing Director, the Deputy Managing Director the Chief Financial Officer, Head-lhternal Audlt and the

General Manager-Accounts.

The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Committee.

The minutes of the meetings of the Audit Committee are discussed and taken note by the Board of directors,

CEATLImIted / /7 /7780008000008 0 0 F I i i bt ii i i it bt i it r b i et i il idiitiiteiifiliitiif,




N

2. SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE

The Committee reviews and deals with complaints and queries received from the investors. [t also reviews and deais with
responses to letters received from the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Stock Exchanges and Securities and Exchange

Board of India (SEB).

The Shareholders/Investors Grievance Commifttee comprises of three (3) membars, Mr. Mahesh 5. Gupta, Mr. S

Doreswamy and. Mr. Paras I. Chowdhary. Mr. Gupta is the Chalrman of the Committes.

The Company Secretary functions as the Secretary of the Committee.

During the financial year ended March 31, 201, four (4) meetings of the Shareholders /investors Crievance Committee

were held on April 29, 2010, July 27, 2010, October 20, 2010 and January 25, 2011.

Attendance at Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee Meetings

FRYIELERIRRRAIRAEVEONTWEEEAINEY x4 FEETTY

TETRRTINIRLNY EETURTIDTTENALY FIEITTRYIITRIARIARIIORY

e oriMestnet atiended

TELTRETTY

g

[ IO PTIS FO J—
[EESFRITFTITE F 33 b FEFH vk s i wrer o]

Name of the Member

Mr. Mahesh 5. Gupta _ i 4
Mr. 5. Dareswamy _ _ 4 :
Mr. Paras K. Chowdhary 4

Tha status of the complaints received from investors is as follows

Shareholders/Investors Complaints

ERFEIAE N4 FH S TP R PR PR R b Sty SR SRt S P PP PN PR S SR S E SRR SRR LS FA L SR R SRS LA S S S AL AR RIS RSS2 EE IS 20002 004 44 4

Hiianisbistisi
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Shareholders/Investors Complaints

AlENos

& bR

Complaints as on April 1, 2010

Comaglaints received during 2010-1%

Complaints dispased off during the vear ended March 31, 2011

0

7
Complaints identified and reported under Clause 41 of the Listing Agreement : 7

7

0

Comglaints remaining unreselved as on March 31, 2011

Batat TSI S PR S ET ST LR POvE-3 |

TERRTETIZNINTINED

The Board has designated Mr. H. N. Singh Rajpoot, Company Secretary, as the "Compliance Dfficer”.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Commitiee reviews the remuneration packasge for the Managing Birector/Deputy Managing Director
and recommends i to the Board: The Committee also reviews the Commission payable to the Non-Executive Directors

and recommends it to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprises of four (4) members, Mr. H. V. Goenka, Mr, S. Doreswamy, Mr. Hari L. Mundra
and Mr. Mahesh S. Gupta. Mr. Coenleaa is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. This Committee meets the
criteria laid down in explanation [V of Section Il of Part 1| of Schedule XII| of the Companies Act, 1956 and is not formed

pursuant to Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement, where the formation of the Committee is not mandatory.

During the financiat year ended March 31, 2011, three (3) meetings of the Committee were held on April 29, 2010, October

20, 20:0 and January 12, 2011.
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JMr. Mahesh S. Gupta

FhR bR

Number uf Meetlngs attented by thE Memhers

TTITI SRl EEAELELSEbATATT SAAET: 1 i TLi LZILTTEIL, =
3 * ? :
!

Name of the Member

Mr. H, V. Goenka-
Mr. 5. Doreswamy
Mr. Hari L. Mundra

.Remuneration Policy

Payment of remuneration to the Managing Directar/Deputy Managing Director is governed by the Agreements entered
between them and the Company as approved’ I:lv the anrd nf Directars ancl the sharehulders in terms of applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. : :

The remuneration structure of Mr. Paras K. Chuwdhary, Managing Directar and Mr. Anant Vardhan'ﬁﬁlenka‘ Deputy
Managing Director, comprises of salary, perquisites and allowances, contributions to provident fund, superannuatlon and
gratuity.

During the year under review, apart from the Siiting Fees pald for attending the meetings of the Board and the
Committees, the Non-Executive Directors have been paid a:.Commission in recognition of their services to the Board of
Directors. The said Commission was duly recommended by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board
of Directors. The Shareholders have vide their Special Resolution passed on july 25; 2008 appraved the payment of the
Commission.

Directors Rernuneration

Non-Executive Directors

,,,,, T TITO R ——

Director

Dr. R. P. Goenka, Chairman Father uf Mr H. V. Goenka : . .—ﬁ . : ©2,00,000
Mr. M. V. Goenka, Vice-Chalrman® §5Son of Dr. R, . Goenka 1.10.000%: : 1,82,00,000 :
Mr. Mahesh S. Gupta* - ’ 1,55,0004 2,00,000
Mr. A. C. Choksey - . ] 80,000 . 2,00,000
Mr, S, Doreswamy* - O 1,35,000§ ° ‘ . 2,00,000]
Mr, Haigreve Khaitan - ' : 20,0008 . . 2,00,000
Mr. Bansi 5. Mehta - 5 80,000f - 2,00,000
Mr, Hari L. Mundra* - 1,55,000 2,00,000 3
Mr. K. R. Podar - 60,000 ‘ ) - 2,00,000 ;
Mr. Vinay Bansal - 80,000% 2,00,000

- i . :

Includes sitting fees for atiending Audit Committee Meetings and Remuneration Committee Meetings. Slttlngs fees
for attending meetings of Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee have heen waived by the Dlrectnrs an the said
Committee.
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~=F8 Executive Directors
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Name wideresTiiithawahary L A VR :

Relatianship with other directors © . RNore TG _
£and son of Mr. H. V. Goenka, Vice :

tChairman of the Company. i

Business Relationships with the Cormpany, if any §Managing Directar Deputy Managing Director 1
ibifW2%3\‘{.3:.‘;:1212222}{?&}b%M':,‘:’::E’.i.:‘-:;'&;m&“i%fi‘!. =ELIL it ing Finduitn zua.%g

= All elements of remuneration paclkage

TREL g3 40 ke SU RV EE T L1548 2 MM SA AR FERILIRTAS SEPTRIITILECELES LERESS pa e SRt At R A i EE PSR EL L RS 53R SR RTL RN S

g .&'&3&5!?!5‘2‘52:;‘.&21%&}2‘»;i
R - g
: R e e e e R TR

Name o et R dhovhar s I S ol

Description | For April1, 2010 to March 31, 2011 For April 1, 2010 to March 31, 2011%
Salary 172,94,290.00}. 89,64,000.00;
Perguisites and allowances § 180,76,944.00+ : 42,450.00%
‘§0thers including retirals 3179487007 8,77.892.00%
TOTAL 2,85,50,731.00 ! 98,84,352.00 ¢

b

.T_he remuneration paid to the Managing Director and the Deputy Managing Director was duly appraved by a resolution
passed in the meeting of the Remuneration Committee and also approved by the Board of Directars,  °

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting -held on October 20, 2010 re-apgointed Mr, Paras K. Chawdhary as
- the Managing Director of the Company for a further period commencing from January 18, 2011 and ending on March 37,
2072, The shareholders of the Company have vide a resolution passed through Postal Batlot on March 16, 201, accorded
their approval to the said re-appointment. According to the Agreement for re-appointment of Mr, Paras K. Chowdhary as
Managing Director dated January 11, 2071 either party to the Agreement is entitled to terminate the Agreement by giving
not less than 4 months notice to either party, provided however, that the Company shall be entitled to terminate the
appoiniment at any time by payment o him 1 month's salary in lieu of such notice.

Shareholding of Directars

;'-f"*“'*'xﬂ:::;;""”":7:‘:"‘:*““’*""-”‘-5"—5W"*”""-*—-‘-il'x3'nW!ﬂ'%8!:::'.';nﬂnwtrz::::';M.umwfnwr::;x.z;Aussww*x:i;:;:‘%
E iy “, o___q:f
. Name of the Director ;‘I" gff{i!fgsh;&:esg: i
A i ‘*“"f%

Mr. H. V. Goanka, Vice-Chairman _ 13,932 Equity Shares  §
Mr. Paras K. Chowdhary, Managing Director 3,000 Equity Shares  §
Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka, Deputy Managing Director § 14,185 Equity Shares °

l [RE SR P Ra TR L R4 AR RS S P IT 1334 :E

Except for the above.. no other Directar of the 'Cnmpany holds equity shares in the Company.
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IV DETAILS ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

The details of the 1ast three (3) Annual General MeetIngs are as follows:

.;Meetingd, ’

Jl‘.' LY it b i I e, r {iarkarte
49th AGM | Friday, |uly 25, 2008 £11.30 a.m.
50th ACM ITuesday, August 25,2009 3.00 p.m. F L. Deshpande Maharashtra Kala Academy, Mumbal.
51st ACM ITuesday. July 27,2010 T.00a.m. P. L.-Deshpande Maharashtra Kala Academy, Mumbai,

Special Resolutions passed at the last three (3) Annual General Meetings:

Date of AGM
49th ACM, July 25,2008,

Payment of Commission to N
Act, 1956.

on-Executive Directors as per Sectlon 309 of the Companies

50th AGM, August 25, 2009 INa Speclal Resoiution was passed In the Annual General Meeting.

S1st AGM, July 27, 2010

Appaintment of Mr. Anant Vardhan Coenka as the Whole Time Director designated d@s the
Deputy Managing Director of the Company for a period of five (5) years commencing from
January 4, 2010 and ending on January 3, 2015 upon the terms and conditions set out in the
Agreement dated January 4, 2010 entered into by the Company with Mr. Anant Vardhan
Goenlka.

» 60

POSTAL BALLOT

During the year, the Company has
~passed two resolutions as Special
Resglutions through Postal Ballot
in accordance with the procedure
. prescribed in Section 192 of the

- Companies Act, 1956, read with the
Companles (Passing of Resolution
by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001. The
details of the same are as follows:

a) Allotment of Convertlble
\Warrants to Promoters on
Preferential Basis

The Company sought the approval
of members under Section 81{1A) of
the Campanies Act, 1956 for issue
and allotment of 17121770 Warrants
of face vaiue ¥10/- each to the
entities of the Promater Group on

a preferential basis which shall be
converted into an equal number of
equity shares af the optlon of the

allotteas, within 18 months from
the date of the aliotment.

Mr, P. N. Parikh, Practicing Company
Secretary was appointed as a
Scrutinizer for the entire postal

ballot process for conducting the

process in a falr and transparent
manner, The said resolution was

... passed as a Special resolutlon on

September 16, 2010, with the votes
casted in favour of the resolutian
being 99.90 per cent as against
010 per cent votes cast against the
resolution. o

) Re-appoirtment of Mr. Paras
1. Chowdhary as Managing
Director and approval of

- remuneration paid to him-and
payment of remuneration to
Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka,
Deputy Managing Director of
the Company

" The Company soughg the approval

of the members for re-appeintment
of Mr, Paras K. Chowdhary as the
Managing Director.pf the Company
for the period fram January 18, 201
to March 31, 2012 and for payment
of remuneration to-him for the

said period under Sections 198,

263, 309 and 310 of the Comparnles
Act, 1956 and also for payment of
remuneration to Mr, Anant Vardhan
Goenka, Deputy Managing Directar
of the Company for the financial
year 2010-T under Sectlons 198

and 309 read with Schedule XIII

of the Companies Act, 1956.

M. P. N. Parikh, Practicing Company
Secretary was appointed as a
Scrutinizer for the entire postal
ballot process for conducting the
process in a fair and transparent
manner. These resolutions were
passed as Special Resolutions on

EEATLImItEdI!II!//J’!f'f!//!/I."!."I'!/if.v'/f!."n’f.v'f’fa’f’fI//!!/if.fi!a’/f!f’ff.’/I!///Ili!/i!/ff!/f!/l!/
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March 11, 201 with the votes cast
in favour of the resalutions being
99.88 per cent as against 0,12
per cent votes cast against the
resolutions.

V DISCLOSURES

1. DISCLOSURES ON MATERIALLY
SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSALTIONS THAT MAY
HAVE POTENTIAL CONFLICT
WITH THE INTERESTS OF
COMPANY AT LARGE

There were no material and/or
significant transactions during
the financial year 2010-11 that

were prejudicial to the interest
of the Company.

During the year under review,
the Company made a payment
of ¥13,57,736/- to Khaitan & Co.
of which Mr, Haigreve Khaitan,
a Director of the Company is a
pariner.

2. DISCLOSURE OF RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Campany follows the
following policy in disclosing the
related party transactions to the
Audit Lommittee:

a) A statement in summary form
of transactions with related
parties in the ordinary course of
business are placed periadically
before the Audit Committes.

b) Details of material individual
transactions with related
parties, which are not in the
normal course of business, if
any, are placed before the Audit
Committee,

c) Details of material individual
transactions with related parties
or athers, which are not on arm
length basis, if any, are placed

before the Audit Committee,
together with Management's
justification for the same,

d) No materidl, financial and
comrmercial transactions were
reported by the management
to the Board, in which the
management had persanal
interest having a potential
canflict with the interest of the
Company at farga.

e) Details of related party
transactions are included in
the Notes to the Accounts as
per Accounting Standard {AS-
18) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

3. DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING
TREATMENT

The Company has followed the
Accounting Standards issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India, to the extent applicable,

in the preparation of the finzncial
statermnents,

4. DISCLOSURE OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Company has laid down
pracedures to inform Board
Members ahout the risk
assassment and minimisation
procedures. These procedures are
periadically reviewed to ensure that
executive management controls
risks through means of a properly
defired framework.

5. PHOCEEDS FROM
PREFERENTIAL ISSUES

During the year the Company has
allotted 172,170 Warrants of face
value ¥ 10/- each on a preferential
basis to entities of the Promoter
Group viz, RPG Cellular Investments
and Holdings Private Limited and

Summit Securities Limited. The
said Warrants, convertible into an
equal number of equity shares,
were allotted at a price of ¥ 14144
per Warrant on September 30, 2010.
The said warrants are convertible
within a period of 18 months at

the eption of the allottes, the

last date for exercising the option
being March 31, 2012. OF the said
price 25 per cent i.e. ¥ 35.36 per
Warrant was received at the time
of aliotment i.e. on September

30, 2010 and the balance shall be
receivable upon conversion. ¥ 6.05
Crares racejved from the issue has
been utilised to avgment long term
resources of the Company.

6. DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE
BY THE COMPANY, PENALTIES,
STRICTURES IMPOSED ON
THE COMPANY BY STOTK
EXCHANGE(S) OR SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE BOARD OF
INDIA {SEBI) OR ANY OTHER
STATUTORY AUTHORITY OR
ANY MATTERS RELATED TO
CAPITAL MARKETS.

The Company has complied with

all the requirements of the Stock
Exchanges, SEBI and Statutory
Authorities on all matters related to
the capital markets during the last
three years. There are no nenalties
or strictures imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges
or 5EBI or any statutory authorities
relating to the above.

Thera were na instances of non-

" compliance of any matter related ta

the capital market during the last
three years.

7 DETAILS OF COMPLIANCE WITH
MANDATORY REQUIREMENT

Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement
mandaies to obtain a certificate

I'//."//1’//:’//!////!//f//if!/ff//I/."_f’f:',",’f.ﬁ’///!//r’/i!;’//!!/////f/.’ff//f//ff AnnualﬂépurtZMD-‘l'l 61 »



from either the Auditors or
practicing Company Secretaries .
regarding compliance of conditions
of corporate governance as

- stipulated in the Clause and annex
the certificate with the Director's
Report, which Is sent annually to
all the shareholders: The Company
has obtained a certlficate from
Its Auditors to this effect-and the
same Is given as an.annexure to the
Director's Report.

8. ADDF’TIUN OF THE NON-
MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Clause statés that the non-
mandatory requirements may he
implemented as per the discretion
of the Cormpany. The Company
maintains-an office for the
Chairman, which is regularly used by
the Chairman for interactions with
the Management. The Company

Vi

.the Company’s Eode of Eunduct ar

" The quarterly results of the

has also adopted'a "Whistle Blower
Paolicy” for employees to report

to the management instances

of unethical behaviour, actual or
suspected fraud or vlulation of

Ethics policy.

The disclosures of compliance with
other non mandatory requirements
and adoption (and compliance)/
non-adoption of the non-
mandatory reguirements shall be
need based.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
Quarterly resuits of the Company
are published in major English
Dailies as well as in a Marathi Daily.

Company are normally publlshed in
the following newspapers:

~=¥6 Business Standard

~=I® The Ecuﬁqmic"rijmqésg '

—=76 Th'eFrE_elF‘ressr Journal -

~=¥® Maharashtra Times’
~=F® Navshaktl

The guarterly results of ‘thE
Company are dlsp[aved on the

Com pany 5 Websute www.ceattyres.
in

The Company provides infarmation
to the Stock Exchanges where the
shares of the Company are listed as
per the Listing Agreement entered
into with the Stock Exchanges.

The Eompany has pruvided an emall
address on its website investors@
ceat.in whereby investors can
directly contact the Company.

VII GENERAL SHAREHDLDER INFORMATION

FFLILITIESEL

. m

|

i

AGM: DATE, TIME AND VENUE

FINANCIALYEAR
DATE OF BOOK CLOSURE

DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE
LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES

(both days intlusive)
On or befare 5eptember 24,2011,

financial year 20112

Az indicated-in the notice accompanying this Annual Repoit the 52™ Annual
General Meeting of the Comparny will be held on August 26, 2011 at3.30 pm
at Ravindra Natya Mandir, P. L. Deshpande Maharashtra l(ala Academy,
Sayani Road, Pravadevi, Mumbal - 400 025.

The Company follows April 1to March 31as the finaricial year.

Friday, August 12, 2011 to Friday, August 26, 201

The Equity shares of the Company are listed on the Bnmbay Sock Exchange
Limited'and the Natlonal Stock Exchange of India Limited.
The Llstlng feés have been paid to both the Stcu:k Exchanges fnr the _

S D e

STOCK CODE Bar_nt_lay St.uck Exchange Limited - 500878
o National Stock Exchange of India Limited - CEATLTD > i
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MARKET PRICE DATA
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-:- For Equity Share of face value of ¥1D/- eath%
BsE N
High (3) Low (3) High () § - Low ()
1 April 2010 ' 166.10 14410 16595 144.05
i May 2010 144.50 124.00 145,00 111.00
Hune 2010 142.50 128,65 14245 16.80 &
July 2010 143.00 129.00 14325 128.70
August 2010 _ 165.80 13005 165.85 130.05
iSeptember 2010 19540 146.55 195.00 ¢ 146.25§
Octaber 2010 ' 180.35 154.55 180.50; 154.60
i Novermber 2010 : 16450 127.00 16470 128.35
iDecember 200 : 145.80 124.00 45805 12400 ¢
b January 20m 14140 1D.35 wi3si - mooo)
< February 201 115.00 85.60  14.00% 8745 ;
‘March 201 12.55 94,35 240 92.907
Beszrereemromeressmsmnan snsmrssmmssmrmonssensss TR PO

SHARE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY IN COMPARISON TO BSE SMLCAP

CEAT In comparison with BSE SMLCAP

200.00 - 12000.00
175.00
10000.00

150,00
& 125.00 800000
S 2
= 100.00 6000.00
ar
B 7500 ﬂ
& - aoo0.00 4

50.00 |

o0 - o 2000.00

: D.DD i 1 1 1 1 1 L 1 1 1 1 U-DD

Apr May Jun  jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar
0 10 10 UM 0 W 1M 1w 0 MmN W

=@~ CEAT ¥~ 8SMLCAP
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REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS

TSR Darashaw Limited

6-10, 1** Floor, Haji Moosa Patrawala IndUStriaI Estate,
20, Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxml, Mumbai - 400 0T

Emall: csg-unit@tsrdarashaw.com
Web: www.tsrdarashaw.cam

Tel.: 022-66568484; Fax: 022-66568454

‘BRANCH OFFICES

BANGALORE

TSR Darashaw Limited

503, Barton Centre (5t Fioor)

84, Mahatma Gandhi Road,

Bangalore - 560 001

Email: www.tsrdibang@tsrdarashaw.com

Tel: 0BO- 2532032
Fax: 080- 25580013

© JAMSHEDPUR

TSR Darashaw Limited

Bunglow No. 1, “E" Road, Northern Town,
Bistupur, Jamshedpur - 831 001

Email: tsrdlisr@tsrdarashaw.com

Tel: 0657- 2426616
Fax: 0657- 2426937

KOLKATA

TSR Darashaw Limited

Tata Centre, 1= Floor,

43, ). L. Nehru Road, Kollcata - 700 071
Email: tsrdical@tsrdarashaw.com

Tel: 033- 22883087
Fax: 033-22883062

» 64

NEW DELHI

TSR Darashaw Limited
2/42, Sant Vihar, Ansarl Road, Daryaganj,
New Qelhi - 110 D0Z

- Email: tsrdldel@tsrdarashaw.com

Tel: 011- 23271805
Fax: O1- 23271802

AGENTS

Shah Consultancy Services Limited
3, Sumatinath Complex, 2™ Dhal,
Pritam Nagar, Ellisbridge,
Ahmedabad - 380 006

Emall: shahcansultancy@hotmail.com

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

All valid requests for transfer of Equity
shares in physical mode received far
transfer at the office of the Registrar
and Transfer Agents or at the
Registered Office of the Company are
processed and returned within a period
of 30 days from the date of receipt. The
Board of Directors has delegated the
power of approval of share transfers to
the Company Secretary.

Every effort is made to clear share
transfers/transmissions and split and
consolidation requests within 21 days.
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DISTRIBUTION UF SHAREHDLDING AS AT MARCH 31 2011

A I I
; ——— Physical Demat, Physical Demat Physical | “Demat
£ to 500 30,640 39,728 81908 ¢ 3613755 2.38 10,55 &
P oso to 1,000 128 1509 86348 17,50,117 025] 3365
11001 to 2,000 51 543§ 70490 795,673 0.2t! 233
i 2001 to 3,000 13 154 33,015§ 390,843 040 114§
L 3001 to 4,000 5 66§ 16,585 237122 0.05] 0.69 1
U apm o 5,000 1 52 45308 244,320 0.01 07
;5001 to 10,000 5 89 40150§  6,68.830 012§ 195
£ 10,001 to 34243534 3 84§ 1815298 2.42,56,350 530! 70.84 ¢
; TOTAL 30,845 422254 28.855244 313580108 B43: 91.57 ;

DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES

The Company has arrangement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) as well as Central Depository Services {India)
Limited (CDSL) for dematerialisation of shares with ISIN No. INE 482A01020 for both NSOL and COSL.

Approximately 91.57 per cent of Equity share capital corresponding to 3,13,58,010 equity shares is held in dematerialised form as
-of March 31, 201,

CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDING AS OF MARCH 31, 2011

TILLIIITTIGNINANL sk ds ik 6&!*{*

No. of shares

o N MET YR I I A e i

Egn i S el bk e
£ Rl e
Febisnipeasanthy
s2iekrhiy

?Promnters Holdings {Indian and Foreign) ' 1,66,86,578 48.73
 Mutual Funds 23,79,308 6.95:
Banles, Financial Institutions, insurance Companies and others 39,28,568 n.47
i Faraign Institutional Investors 8,244,028 24
Non Resident Indians : 2,26,800 D.EEE
“iiCorporate Bodies, Indian Public and Others 1,0198,252 29.78}
HTOTAL - 34243534 ] 100.00 ¢
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OUTSTANDING GDRS/ADRS/WARRANTS/ANY OTHER CONVERT!BLE INSTRUMENTS :
The Company has issued 1712,170 Convertible Warrants to Its prumoters viz. Summit Securities Limited and RF‘I‘.‘. Cellular

«. Investments-and Holdings Private Limited

£k 55 At s dan 156 PO Fev 3

Plant Locations

g "

Mumbai Plant

ETEflEIEBEITEITSICT

Village Road Ehandup Mumba: 400 078.

Nasik Plant

82, MIBC Industrial Estate Satpur, Nasik - 422 007,

Halol, Gujarat Plant

Village Gate Muvala, Halol, Panchmahal - 389 350,

i SRR RIS s SR T N2 1SS TNRSEFRT IS PR PR TN PR e P Arh | SRS FE S PP s M S-S 7 TUSTHIEPTYEINIITIRGRITLY Y

~ NATIONAL ELECTRONIC CLEARING
SERVICE (NECS) FACILITY

With respect to payment of
dividend, the Company provides
the facility of NECS ta Shareholders
residing in the cities where such
facility is available,

In order to avaid the risk of loss/
interception of Dividend Warrants
in postal transit and/or fravdulent
encashrments of Dividend Warrants,
shareholders are requested to avail
of facility wherghy the dividends -
will be directly credited in electronic
form to their respective bank
accounts. This will ensure speedier
credit of dividend and the Company
will duly inform the concerned
shareholders when the credits are

_ passed to their respective bank
accounts. The requisite application
form can be obtained from the

~ office of TSR Darashaw Limited, the

- Registrar and Transfer Agents, of

the Company.

The Company proposes ta credit
dividend to the sharehoelder's bank
account directly through NECS
where such facility is avallable in
case of shareholders holding shares,
in demat account and wha have

» 66

_furnished thefr MICR Code to thelr

Depository Participant (OP).

Sharehalders located in places
where NECS facility is not availabie,
may kindly submit their banl
details to enable the Registrars

to incorporate the same on the |
Dividend Warrants, in order to avoid
fraudulent encashment of the
Dividend Warrants.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a Code.
of Conduct for all Board Memiers
and Senfor Manaeement of the
Company; which is posted on the
Webslie of the Company.

All Board Members and Seniar
Management Personnel have
affirmed compliance with the Code
for the financial year ended March
31, 20M. A declaration to this effect
signed by the Managing Directar

forms part of this Report.

DECLARATION- CODE OF CONDUCT

All Board Members and the Senior
Management Personnel have, for
the year ended March 31, 2011,

affirmed compliznce with the Code
of Conduct laid down by the Boart
of Directors in terms of the Listing
Agreement entered into with the
Stock Exchanges.

For CEAT Limited

Place : Mumbsi

: Paras K. Chowdhary
Dated : April 21, 201

Managing Director

COMPLIANCE OFFICER -
Mr. H. N. Singh Rajpoot .

Company Secretary

CEAT Limited

463, Dr. Annie Besant Road,
Worli, Mumbai - 400 030
Tel: 91-22-2493 0621

Fax: 91-22-6660 6039
Email: investors@ceat.in

ldentified as having bee'n.a'pproved by
the Board of Directors of CEAT Limited

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 2011

H. N. Singh Rajpoot
Company Secretary
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Certificate on Corporate Governance Report

* To The Members of

CEAT LIMITED -

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Cnrporate Covernance by CEAT Limited {the Company) for the year ended
March 31, 2011, as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is tha responsibility of the Management. Our examination has been
limited to a review of the procedures and Implementations thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the
conditions of Corporate Covernance as stipulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion an the
financial staterments of the Company.

In aur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the representations made by
the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the condltluns of Corporate Covernance as
stnpulated in Clause 48 of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

As required by the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we have to state that based on the
report issued by the Registrars of the Company to the Shareholders/Investors Grievance Committee, as on March 31, 2011 there
were na investor grievance matters against the Company remaining unattended/pending for more than 30 days.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Cormpany nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N. M. RAIJl & CO,,
Flace : Mumbai Charterad Accountants
Dated : May 2, 201 Registraticn No. 108296W

LAY N THAKIKAR

Partner
Membership Ne. 33324
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Prfit and Loss Account Cash Floi Statement - Schedules_ Notes to Accourits

Auditors’ Report

Ta the Members of CEAT Limited

1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of CEAT LIMITED, as at March-31, 2011, the Profit and Loss Account and
also the Cash Flow Statemeant for the year ended on that date annexed thareto. These financial statements are the
respansibility of the Company's management. Our respansibility is to express an opinion on these financial staterments
based on our audit. ’ ’ ’

2. We condurted our audit in accardance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstaterment. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit afso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion,

3. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditar's Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of india in terms of sub-
section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956 and en the hasis of such checks of the beoks and records of the
Company as we considered appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us during the course of
the audit, we enclase In the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to above and our commaents in paragraph 3 above, we report that:

(i}  We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledee and belief were necessary
far the purposes of our audit;

(i) Inour opinion, proper hooks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those hooks;

(i) The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Staterment dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account;

{iv) Inour opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement deait with by this report comply
with the Accounting Standards prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 referred to in sub-
section (30) of section 271 of the Companies Act, 1956;

{v) On the basis of written representations received from the directors, as on March 31, 2011, and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, we report that none of the directors of the Company is disqualified as on March 31, 2011 from being
appointed as a director in terms of clause (g) of sub-sectian (1) of sectior 274 of the Companies Act, 1956;

(vi) tnour apinion and to the best of our information and according ta the explanations given to us, the said accounts read
' together with the notes therean give the information reguired by the Comnpanies Act, 1956, in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

(@) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 201%
(b} Inthe case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the year ended an that date; and
{c) Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Far N. M, RAI|l & £0.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.108296W

CA. Y. N. Thakiar
Partner
Place: Mumbai ' Membership No. 33329

Date : May 2, 2011,
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Annexure to the Auditars’Repart

(Referred to in paragraph 3 of our repnrt of even date}

i) {a} The Company has maintained proper records shawing full parth:ulars including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

{b) The Company has a prograrnme of physical verification of fixed assets, As per the said programme, certain assets
were physicatly verified during the year. In aur apinion, the frequency of physical verification is reasonable having
-regard to the size and operations of the Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification.

{¢) The Company has not disposed off substantial part of fixed assets durlng the year.

(i (a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management at reasonable Intervals during thé year.

{b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verification of invertories followed by the management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business. :

{c} Inouropinion, the Company is maintaining proger records of inventory. The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification were not material in relation to the operatians of the Company and the same have been properly dealt
with in the books of account.

s

(i} The Company has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecured ta / fram companies, firms ar other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, sub-clause (b), (c), (d), (f) and
(g} are not applicable.

(iv) In our opinion, there are adequate internal contral system commensurate with the size of the Cumpany and the nature of
its business for the purchase of inventory and fixed assets and for the sale of guods and services. During the course of our
audit, we have not observed any major weaknasses in internal contrals.

{v) There are no particulars of contracts or arrangements referred to in Section 301 of fhe Companies Act, 1956 that need to be
entered into the register maintained in pursuance UF section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, Accnrdlngly, sub-ctause (b} is
~nat applicahle.

{vi) Inaurapinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of sections 58A, SBAA or any other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Depusrts) Rules, 1975, with regard to the deposits accepted from
‘the pubtic. As informed to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or Natlonal Cornpany Law Tribunal or
- Reserve Barnk of India or any other court or any other Tribunal.

{(vii} In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit systerm commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

{viil) We have broadly rewewed without carrying out a detailed Examrnatmn the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government far the maintenance of cost records under Section 2090){d) of the
Companies Act, 1956 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records are being maintained.

{ix) {3} Accordingto the records of the Company, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the appropriate
autharities undisputed statutary dues including Provident Fund, Investor Education and Pratection Fund, Emplayees’
State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax, Wealth-tax, Service Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and any other
statutory dues applicable to it. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information and explanations
given to us, there are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues which remained outstanding as at March 31, 2011 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b} According to the records made available to us and the information and explanations given by the management, the
details of the dues of Income tax / Salas tax / Wealth tax / Service Tax / Customn duty / Excise duty / cess, which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute, are given in the Appendix to this
report.

(x) The Company does not have any accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has not Incurred cash losses
during the financial year covered by our audit and in the immediately preceding financial year.

{xi) According te the records made availzble to us and the information and explanations eiven by the management, the
Company has not defaufted in the repayment of dues to financial institution ar banks.

Y 70| CEATUmited /747 / 770 0d b il i d it id i iidbidd fd i i i byt i i iy inid bt n il iirddsiig,
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{(xii) The Company has not granted loans and advances on the basis of securltv by way of pledge of shares, debenturas and
other securities.

(x(l) The Con‘lpa'nyris not a chit-/ nidhi / mutual beneﬁt fund',_f.sucietv.

(xiv} The Company is not dealing in or trading in shares, securities debentures and other investments.,

{xv) During the year, the Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken by others from hanks ar financial institutions.
(

xvi) In our opinian, the term loans availed by the Company during the year have been applied for the purposes for which they
were obtained.

{xvi) Acrording to the infarmation and explanations given to us and an averall examination of the balance sheet of the
Campany, we report that no short-term funds have been used for long-term purposes.

{xviii} During the year, the Campany has not made any preferential allotment of Shares to parties and companies covered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1856.

{xix) During the year, the Company has not issued any debentures. )
(xx) The Company has not raised any monay by public issue during the year.

(%xi) According {o the information & explanation given to us, no fraud on or by the Company, has been noticed or reported
during the course of our audit.

For N. M, RAIJI & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No108296W

CA. Y. N. Thaklar

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership Ne. 33329
Date: May 2, 2011,
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Balance Sheet
as gt March 31 2077

A TR TR TR T TP E T R TR RS ETR TE NS RO EAEY TE § ] i3 113 FRERE FTEFRFIF YT I IITYIETTTITYATYITFIEE

FERRITITVIIIITUIIINIIET

Tinlacs

As at March 31, 20m__ [BERESEMarchiaTionin

HERECHEDULE

SHAREHOLDERS' FUND
Share Caplial 1 34,2435 34,24.35
Convertible Warrants (Refer note no. 27 of Schedule 20 ) 65,0542 -
Reserves and Surplus Z £08,84.75 _ 594.4710 :
£4914.52 . 628,7145 &
LOAN FUNDS _ :
Secured Loaris 3 624,13.46 N2,05.1 g
Unsecured Loans 4 394,75.34 341,79.44 i
§ . ~1,018,88.80 ) 653,84.55 %
j DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY {Net) 24,10.54 20,16.83
: 1,6592,13.86 C 1,302,72.83
i APPLICATION OF FUNDS
2 FIXED ASSETS ' : -5 ‘
: Gross Block ' 1,881,55.44 1,256,41.14
Less : Depreciation 520.46.15 48748.36
Net Block 1,361,09.29 768,92.78
Capital Work-in-progress 123,39.63 233,83.80 E
g 1,484,48.92 1,002,76.58
; INVESTMENTS 3 86,52.98 58,50.77
L
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
: Inventories 7 5674630 406,07.58
Sundry Debtors 8 458,57.97 376,31.61
Cash and Bank Balances 9 4788.06 135,98.90
H Loans and Advances 10 131,55.59 ' 109,39.45
g 1,715,57.92 1,031,77.54
% less:
¥ CURRENT LIABILITIES.AND PROVISIONS ] : -
g Current Liahilities . 1 1,067,34.27 ) 753,96.24
i . Provisions . . 12 - 2711.69 . 36,35,82 .
: 1,034,45.95 790,32.06 ;
% NET CURRENT ASSETS 121,11.96 2414548
: : - 1,692,13.856 1,302,72.83 &
£ _Notes forming part of the Accounts 20 : :
As per our report attached . On behalf of the Board of Directors
For N.M. Raiji & Co., Sunil 5. Sapre HV. Goenka Paras K. Chowdhary
Chartered Atcountants Chief Financial Officer "Vice Chairman Managing Direcior
CA Y.N. Thaklkar H.N. Singh Rajpaot Hari L. Mundra
Partner Company Secretary Chalrman - Audit Commiitee
Place : Murnbai Plate : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 201 Dated : May 2, 2011
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Profit and Lass Account

for the year ended March 31, 2077

TIIITRAREERAvesiislPRIRTIINTARCR A BARGRaRd rrrEeEReNStifnadd
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Tinlacs i

25533.‘::1233.-3:3: insstesfiziiitis ﬁs.--“.,..m,m 2010-1 B
i . INCOME i
1 Sales 3,751,61.61 2,985,97.20 i
! Less:Excise duty on Sales 282.69.36 182.49.60 .
Net Szles 3,468,92.25 2,807.47.60 :
% Dptherincome 13 60,22.28 4213.52 ¢
5 3,529,14.53 28496112 ¢
;. EXPENDITURE i e
i Materlals 14 2,649,69.78 171749.89 ¢
i Costof Traded Goods Sokd 15 93,85.68 163,13.64 ¢
i Persannel 16 204,08.09 192,66.68
:  Other Expenses 17 576,8750f AR5 3978 %
i Interest i8 7849528 5683147
i Depreciatian 34,23.23 31,5879 i
i Less: Transferred from Revaluation Reserve - 4,68.32
|ess : Transferred $p Pre-Operative Expensas £.66 218 i
34.16.57 26,88.29
: 3,6371714 2.6224142
i Add / (Less) : Dacrease / (Increase) in stock 19 (149,09.09) (1,79.95) !
i 3.488.08.11 2,610,61.47 ¢
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEM ] 41,0642 2389965 ¢
% Less: Exceptional ltem (Voluntary Retirement w
i __Compensation) - 78223 -
i { PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 33,2419 23B,99.65
Less : Provision for Taxation _— i
¢ Currant Tax 714.01 74,09,05
i Short / (Excess). Provision of earlier years {11.88) e i
4 Deferred Tax 1.93.71 ,86.45
B 10,95.86 77.95.50 &
* PROFIT AFTER TAX 22,28.33 161,04.15 !
¢ Add: Batance brought forward e o 237,31.02 108.44.40
2595935F _ 26948.55:
© AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION g
: “APPROPRIATIONS } 3
¢ Proposed Dividend 6.84.87 13,69.74
Tax on Proposed Dividend 1,05.81 2,32.79:
Transferred to General Reserve 1,70.00 16,15.00 ;
9,60.68 320753
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 24998.67 23731.02 i
) 259,59.35 26948.55 &
:__Earnings Per Share - Basic & Diluted (3) :
5§ (Refer Note No.25 of Schedule 20) o 6.51
As per our report attached 0On behalf of the Board of Directors
For NM. Raifi & Co., Sunil 5. Sapre HV. Gaenka Paras K. Chowdhary

Chartered Accountants

CA YN, Thakkar
Parirer

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 201

Chief Financial Officer

H.M. Singh Rajpoct
Company Secretary

Vice Chairman

HariL. Mundra
Chairman - Audit Commitiee

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 2011

Managing Director

B A T T I d T F i b i i b i i bt i i i it ir i dtitdiiidipiiieafiyddit 7477 Annual Report 2010-11 IR



Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended March 31, 2077

Tinlacs
H -March 31, 201
CASH FLOW FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES :
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 33,2419 238,99.65:
Adjustments for : ; :
Depreciation 3416.57 26,88.29
Interest income (12.46.50) (17,08.39)
Unrealised exchange variation (net) 17.02 (3,46.23} 1
Dividend income _ (7.56.53) (1,91.10)
Pravision for Doubtful debt 57.08 88.83
Provision for Doubtful debt - Written Back (55.32} B
Provisions no longer required Written back (40.17) (2,57.95)
Pravision for Expenses ' 76047 8,38.24
Advance/Bad debts written Off 41,28 8.88
Lass on sale of fixed assets - Net 7.04 B5.91
Interest expense 78,4952 56,8314 .
L _ 100,50.46 £2,69.62
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 133,74.65 © 301,69.27
. Adjustments for : .
Trade and other receivables J(282,08.26) {(280,54.73)
Trade payable / provisians 302,54.16 271.85.72"
. 20,50.90 ' (8,63.01)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 154,25,55 293,00.26
Direct taxes paid ' (15,61.22) (60,32.30) - i
N : (56122 ' (60,32.30)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 138,64.33. 232,67.96
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of fixed assets {491,54.50) _(234.97.57)
“Sale of fixed assets ‘3521 73.83 ¢
Purchase of Investments (70,98.97) {56.94.90)
Sale of Investments 43,0040 41,06.67 &
: Interest recelved 2710.44 9,53.28
Dividend received 8,39.58 1,95.29 ¢
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (4B3,67.84} (238,5740)
: i
o . —_— SRR
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L. ash Flaw 5 tatement

for the year ended March 37, 20717
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Tinlacs g
_ i S “March 3,201 - [N B R
fC CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTI\I!TIES '
1 lssue of Convertible Warrants 6.05.42 L=
©  Interest paid (102,27.40) (64,28.09) &
; (Decrease}/Increase in borrowings 365,04.24 8,70.13 ‘
Dividend paid ( Inclusive of Dividend Distribution Tax ) (16,02.53) - 5
$ NET CASH RECEIVED/(USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) ) 252,79.73 (55,57.96) & i
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH OR CASH EQUIVALENT (A+B+() {92,23.78) (61,47.40) &
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 133,64.44 20184 8 J
*. Cash and cash equivalents - Closing balance 4740.66 139,64.44 :
: NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE AS DISCLOSER ABOVE (32,23.78) (61,47.40) é
. i
b S AR TTIT ST T M £ (e 42811 TR IR A OO P b T RALEAES AT LITIRTITINRY S RO n 6 LEETEEETIINE R e TeT T P e PRTTRIPITEIAS |

Notes :

1) Previous year's Figures have been regroupad wherever necessary.

2) Closing cash & cash Equivalents represents " Cash and Bank Balances” except ¥ 47.40 lacs { Previous year ¥ 34.46 lacs) lying
in separate bank accounts on account of unclaimed dividend which is not available for use by the Company.

3} Al Figures in brackets are Outflows.

As per aur repart attached

For N.M. Raiji & Co., ~ Sunil 5. Sapre

Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer
£A YA, Thaldar ' " H.N. Singh Rajpoct
Partrer Campany Secretary

Place : Mumbat
Dated : May 2, 2071

0n behalf of the Beard of Directors

HV. Goenka ‘  Paras K. Chowdhary
Vice Chairman Managing Director

Marii. Mundra
Chairman - Audit Committes

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 2011

FIPFIE AT IR it il b i it i e i rrrrr et bnr i rid i ff 17 Annoal Report 2010-11 75 »



Schedules

forming part of the Balance Sheet as ar March 31, 2017

AT P AT T T TS G PR E RN T e BEELeTETREE LR ERE ey AEABYTELLTY SRbaererTYT ARaskEery FERFTFTTINITTILALL E
inlacs
‘3
-Asat March 31, 2011
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised : . B
4,61,00,000 (4,61,00 DDD) Eguity Shares of ¥ 10 each 46,10.00 46,10.00
39,00,000  (39,00,000) Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each 3,90.00. 3,90.00
1,00,00,000 (1,00,00,000)  Unclassifed Shares of ¥ 10 each 10,00.00 10,00.00
' ' 60,00,00 60,00.00
Issued ; ' :
k34244222 (34244222 qu__iitv Shares of ¥ 10 each ) 14,2442 34,2442
{Includes 1,463 (1,463) Shares offered on
Right basis and kept in abeyance)
. : 34,2442 34,24.42
Subscribed and paid-up : ‘ . B
34243534 (34243,534) Equity Shares of $10 each, fully paid-up _ 34,2435 34,2435 ¢
: i 34,2435 34,2435
: S— 8 e = TebibiEerTIaRTey e T =t Zaisaiens N ,,,’%
Notes :
of the above Equity Shares

a) 6,590,576 Shares were aflotted pursuant to Schemes of Amalgamation without payment being received in cash.
b) 40,40,223 Shares were allotted as fully paid Bonus Shares by capita-lisation of Share Premium and General Reserve.

E_.‘Zﬂ:;?;i%??t’:&:.*!l::t:‘;i:&Z%i!él Erps & st MERTR ET TS A LSS SN 53 pd vk b e r e e R BT SR fard & T TEFEEAY ITTiziddidasen SNEEIEEAETY r T
i . Tinlacs
x I e
i BWI As at March 31, 201
SCHEDULE 2
RESERVES AND SURPLUS :
Capital Reserve : _ 2,7145 27145 i
Share Premium : : 165,23.65 165,23.65 §
¢ Capital Redemption Reserve : . 3,90.00 3,90.00
: General Reserve : ;
Balance - April 1, 2010 185,30.98 ' 169,15.98 i
Add : Transfer from Profit and LLoss Account 1,70.00 16,15.00
187,00.98 185,30.98
Revaluation Reserve : :
Balance - April 1, 2010 - 4,68.32 §
Less : Depreciation transferred to Profit and Loss. Account - (4,68.32) :
Profit and Loss Account . 249,98.67 237,31.02
608,84.75 5944710 &
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Schedules

forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017 .
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i - Tin lacs © :
@'*%.::w m::*::“"" > Rsiarazice - 22 Peribbitilisiiiiag -__':
B i i Hatiadiei As at March 31, 2011 jiAsi@Et W-ﬁé} z 1201035
] b * P ¥ & , FayeIed b ] B! ...‘.M_.,..I.,-m_.m}i
i i
1SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS :
- Termt Loans from Banks / Institution 514,87.00 214,95.55‘_‘:;
. Working Capltal Borrowings 53
Working Capital Demand Loan - 40,00.00 &
Cash Credit Facilities 10,88.77 23,56, 85 i
:  Export Packing Credit 98.,27.69 33,39. 58 £
£ vehlcle loan - 1215 % 1
62413.46 312,05.11

In respect nf the abnve Iuans, ¥ 62,30.67 lacs (Previous year T 41,39.46 lacs) due and repayable within a year
NOTES:

1} Term loan availed from Banks amaunting to ¥ 20,63.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ 33,57.00 lacs) is secured by first parf passu charge
on movable {except Current Assets) and immavable properties of the Company situated at Bhandup and Nasik plants both

gresent angd future.

2} Terms loans aggregating to ¥ 367,99.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ 100,14.53 |acs) from Banks /Institution is secured by a first parf
passy charge an the movable (Except Current Assets) and immavable properties of the Company, situated at Bhandup, Nasik
and Haiol both present and future and second charge ranking pari passu inter se on all its Current Assets both present and

future wherever located.

3) Term Lpan availed from Banks/Institution of ¥ 56,25.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ 81,25.00 lacs) has been secured by a first par/
passucharge on the immovable properiy of the Company situated at RPG House, Worli, Mumbai.

4) Term Loan availed from Bank of ¥ 70,00.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ NIL) Is secured by first parf passu charge on the immovable
properties of the Company situated at Bhandup Plant. The Company is in the process of creating the charge on its immavable

properties lecated at Bhandup.

5) Working Capital Borrowings availed from Consortium of Banks led by Bank of India are secured by hypothecation by way
of first pari passu charge on all its Current Assets and by way of second par/ passu charge on immovable and zll movable
properties {exciuding Eurrent Assets) of the Company situated at Bhandup, Nasilk andHalol Plants and RPC House at Worli,

Mumbal.

&} The vehicle leans availed from Banks and Financial Companies were secured by way of hypothecation of the vehicles financed

by them.

? in Iacs H

YEIZiiiiianiitooiioingyiioizeaniein - — . . _;
T iitiiili] As at March 31, 2011 :
- 1

;‘scHEDULE 4 ;
HUNSECURED LDANS ;
i Public Deposits 83,23.84 76,52.53
i Deferred Sales Tax Incentive - (SICOM LTD) 475432 40,79.90 §
i Deposit from Dealers 263.9718 22447011
394,75.34 341,79.44 i

‘glaggiﬂﬂgn o

In respet nf the have Inans ? 18 92 42 Iacs (Pre aus year 2‘ 21,08, 22 Iacs) due and repayable within a year
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Schedules

forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 20717

SCHEDULE 5
FIXED ASSETS _
I LR Sy LA 11 %
ASSETS - costT DEPRECIATION,
As at Addiions/ | Deductions / Asat Asat Faorthe year|Ondeductions/  Asat
Aprll i, 2010 Adjustments| Adjustments}] March 31,200 | April1, 2010 |  2010-11 | Adjustments & March31,200f March3), 20m
HOWNED ' ] :
- #l Land ' N :
.Freehold 408,372,241 8.22.63 - 416,54.87 - - ~£ b= 416,54.87
- {40798.45)] (33.79) | - () 3(408,32.24) {-) {-) s . {-}] -(a08,32.24) &
Leasehold 26,36.36| 354238 - 61,78.74 2,37.36 43.18 -+ -2,80.54 58,98.20
1 (26,36.36) (~) (<)} (26,36.38) {1,94.18) {43.18) ()% (23736} (23,99.00)
Buildings 128,78.49| 80,96.77 . —# 2097526 36,23.67 2,87.89 -3 39156 170,63.70
s {128,59.59) (18.90) {(-) § (128,78.49)] (33,6350 (2,60.6) ()¢ (36,23.67) (92,54.82)
Plant and Machinery 664.45.87 |436,24.39 | ‘84.2111,099,76.05] 426,84.62{ 277544 90.78: 453,69.28 646,06.77
(541,32.04) [{25,23.34) (2,09.51) # (664,45.87) ) {402,63.51) | (25,83.85) (1,62.74) £ (426,84.62) (23761.25)
Furniture and Fixtures 6,83.09 43.27 1.71 7,24.65 541.05 1617 115 5.76.07 1,48.58
(71147)| (22.83) (512145 (6.83.09 (54632}  (3140) (3727)f  (5.41.05) {142.04)
Vehicles 59756} 2,03.62 7107 730.01 3,66.93] 3477 32905 . 3,68.26 3,61.75
, (742.45) {1.67) (1,56.56) 1y {5.9756)) . -(4.02.01); (42.50) (7752)4  (3,66.99) (2,30.57)
Software 56343 10455 D.61H 66737 4,52.26 96.85 0.61 5.48.50 1.18.87
(5.21.51) (42.20) (0.28) {5,63.43)] {2,86.50)}; {1,66.04} (0.28) (4,52.25) {1137) £
Brand - -| 56,29.80 - 56,29.80Q - 117.29 - - 10729 ' CB512.51 3
' ) ) QOf o] A =) ()5 ol | Q)
Technical Knowhow - 61453 - 6,14.59 - 0.59 - D.53 _b14.00
&) (w1 I ) ) ) ) SIS ()
1,246,37.04 [625,82.00 16770 1,871,51.34f] 479,05.95] 33,91.58 1,25.44 511,72.09] 1,359,79.25;
(1.224,01.87}1(26,52.73) (42756) 4 (12453704} § (450,56.63) | (N.2713) (2.77.81)! {479,05.95) (75731.09) 3
JLEASED o ] ‘ ' §
Plant and Machinend  10,04.0 - - 70,0410 84241 31.65 - 8,74.06 130,04 %
(10,04.10} (-} {-) (10,04.10) (8.10.76) (31.65) {-) (B,42.4) {1.61.69) &
10,04.10 - -3 10,0410 84241 365 ] ) - 8,74.06 1.30.04 &
(10,0410} () {-}% (10,0410) {8,10.76) {31.65) (-1 - (B4azaNf {1,61.69) &
1,256,414 |626,82.00 1,67.70 $1,881.55.44] - 48748.36| 34,23.23 1,2544% ' 52046150  1,361,08.29
(1,234,05.57} 1{26, 52.73) (41755)* (1 256.4114) | (458,67.39} ! (31,58.78) | - (2,77.81)% (4R748.36)] (768,92.78)
ER SR BT RS AT DS UL RSP TION N srpsadars tuansid b seania I aTER s 22 aneT T
1‘ltapital Worlk-in-Progress - Incluties Advarices agamst Capltal Account 123,39.63
{233,83.80}
1,484,48.92 &
{1,002,76.58) |
Notes: )

1) Building includes ¥ 0.1 lacs {Previous Year ¥ 0.1 lacs) being value of shares held in co-operative housing sacietles.

2) Freehold Land includes Land acquired at Halol, Gujarat vide Memorandum of Understanding {MOU) far ¥1.75 lacs which is suhjett to
reglstration formalities. .

3) Leasehold Land includes Land acquired at Additional Ambernath Industrial Area, Ambernath, District Thane, Maharastra from Maharastra
Industrial Development Corporation (MIOC) vide sanction letter dated October 30, 2009. The Company has taken physical possession of this
Land on September 1, 2010 whl:h is subject to reglstratinn formalities.
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Schedules

forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2071

SEHEDULE 5§
FIXED ASSETS (Contd.)

4) Fixed assets cost includes assets revalued during |ast five years on the basis of valuation report submitted by approved valuers about their

marlet value as summarised below :

AL SHARTAVE I AT RRATNIR
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il z';} : ;:ggg, i "’M ' « i .%g‘%:g g % it

i ii%%ifg%sf R h"%%ﬁ; 2 Mlg i

féﬂ ?z“?%fsf:' .,.“éiﬁ?gggmj %}“ PROEnE )ﬁ iz i ed)UsTment *g&*

i Land 2806213 ¢ 2533 4 280,36.80 |

- Buildings 742.90 & 1433 73147 i

:Plant & Machinery i 90.59 323 87.36 &
288,95.62 3999 288,55.63

2TE 55’5%?3!‘?.1’!iit.“?2::??f§32?!.§§‘3§?55?5!59!3!!53‘&;‘&3!; FESRRERR L RN AT AT A S ER L LR F P AU RAGPHEF HEEEIEY E‘Qf’ﬁ‘ff{‘ﬁ“§5§‘i‘§f?‘hi‘!?i?!55(%15???53%5&5&42%5

5 The Pre-operative expenses (POE) apportitlned over the Fixed Assets of Halol Project capitalised on commencement of Commercial
" Production
”’ Zin lacst
%
»;&:‘;:';;zg""' 3i5 m*gzz*;g"gs:z’;z e
BRI ﬁa%lm%%%i@%%%?%ﬁ Amount
Borrowing Cost 32,58.49
i Material Consumptian 21,25.05
E Personnel Cast 14,48.26
§ Consultancy & Professional Fees 8,784
Power & Fuel Consumption B,29.17
i General Expenses 5,8713
% Bank Charges 3731
T Excise Duty 2.97.32
Travelling & Conveyance 2,91.35
¢ Repairs & Maintenance 90.57
ITOTAL - 93,18.86
£ less:
4 Sales During Triat Run 2131.94
¢ Interest/Dividend earned 1.65.86
i»NET POE CAPITALISED © 76,21.06
g:;v‘*:;:: ~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ e G R R R B SRR AT Y
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formming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

SCHEDULE &

INVESTMENTS (AT COST)

E;‘i‘ﬂ!mﬂ’zﬂ:‘:ﬂEﬂniU&iﬂ&is FRTRTRI LTI WEELT ERRERHATR SRR FTATRNIYT T fé . :;
i ' Tinlacsi
rd 3t
e ————— H
1A LONG TERM - FULLY PAID

EQUITY SHARES
UNQUOTED (TRADE) . ‘ g i
. Associated CEAT Holdings Co. Pvt. Limited. 10 LKR 100,00,000 43,5747 54,8421 15,08.60 5
" (Subsidiary) # .

Rada Tyres Limited. 710 16,06,350 .77 16,06,350 : 41.77
: 43,99,24 £ 15,50.37
# 45,15,789 (Previous year 36,84,211) :
: Shares acquired durine the year g .
& & i
5B CURRENT
UNGUOTED { NON-TRADE ) N . g i
i Face §  Units Units |
. Value ! { Nos.) (Nos.)
: @)

LIQUID ; i
Reliance Liguid Fund - Treasury Plan - Institutional 10 - -] 327103886f 50005]
IDFC Cash Fund - Super Institutional Plan 10 - -1 4999,270.225 500.05:
Temnpleton India Treasury Management Account -
Super Insitutional Plan - DDR * 1,000 &0,005.62 56,0046 - -
Kotak Floater Short Term - DOR* 101 989397707 10,00.89 - -3
ICICl Prudential Liguid Super IP - DDR* ; 10 10,00,616.65 10,00.84 - - 2
Peerless Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - DDR* 10# 1,00,06,68557§ 10,00.82 -f -1
Taurus Liguid Fund - Super Institutional Plan - DDOR* § 1,000 65,070.16 6,50.73 -F -3

. LiQuin pLUS %

E Birla Sun Life Short Termt Fund - Institutional 10 - -l 4997935.80% 5,0007%

tCIC] Prudential Flexible Income Plan Premium 100 - - 2,8372819%  3,00.00%

¢ UTI Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Plan 1,000 - - 99,989.63§| . 10,002
: LICMF Savings Plus Fund 0 - - 1.00,00,780.69 10,00.07 £
3 SBI-SHF- Ulktra Short Term Fund - Institutional Plan 10 5 - - 499754176  5,00.04
7 ) 42,53.74 43,0040

; ALGRECATE COST OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENT {A + B )} 86,52.98 58,50.77
%n_ TERET: ey i ok j‘" SE2ALEIILILEL B RSN PIEE IR ETRS U RS

* Dally Dividend Reinvestment
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Schedules

forming part of the Balance Sheer as at March 37, 20771

SCHEDULE 6

INVESTMENTS (Enntd )
Notes:
Fulluwlng Inves‘cments were atquired and sold during the year

[$3233 233124 214 IInITrTITIIE PEEIEFTEIBRIRNEIALE
i

4

I
e

W‘ot e
gg%%*% S ‘:%%séﬁga§5§‘§§§§§%§§;§ i §§§ 5

£LIQUID DAILY DIVIDEND REIN\IEST PLAN
§ Axig Liguid Fund - institutional

i - Birla Sun Life Savings Fund - Institutional.

Birla 5un Life Cash Plus - Institutional Premium

Baroda Pioneer Liguid Fund - Institutional

5
i
I
it
1
4
!

Baroda Pioneer Treasury Advantage Fund - Insiitutional

Canara Robeco Liquid Fund - Institutional

Carara Robeco Liguid Super tnstitutional Fund

DSP BlackRock Liguidity Fund - Institutional Plan

BWS tnsta Cash Plus Fund - Super Institutional Plan

BNP Paribas Qvernight Fund - Institutional

Templeton India Treasury Management Account - Super Insitutional Plan

HDFC Cash Management Fund - Savings Plan_

IRETT R R SRR SR LS E

HDOFC Liguid Fund Premium Plan
|08 Liguid Fund
Ketal Liguid (Institutional Premium}

Kotak Floater Short Term

spsrmIemesrI=zen

L & T Liguid Institutional Fund

¥ |CICI Prudential Liguld Super Institutional Plan

% IDFC Cash Fund - Super Institutional Pian

i LIC Nomura MF Liguid Fund
& Peerless Liquid Fund - Super Institutional

Reliance Liguid Fund - Treasury Plan - Institutional

Reliance Liguidity Fund

i SBI- Magnum insta Cash Fund
;" 5Bl - Premier Liguid Fund -Super Institutional

Sundaram Money Fund - Super nstitutional

TATA Liguid Super High Investment Fund

_E Taurus Liquid Fund - Super Institutional Plan

UTI Money Market Mutual Fund

i

; :LIQUID PLUS - DAILY DIVIDEND REINVEST PLAN

Birla Suniife Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional

“‘” DWS Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional _
¢ Templeton India Ultra Short Bond Fund Insitutional Plan

Kotak Flexi Debt Scheme Institutional

ICIC] Prudential Ultra Short Term Premium Plus

ICICI Prudential Flexible lncome Plan Premium

LIC Nomura MF income Plus Fund

LIC Nemura MF Savines Plus Fund

eid16E FHIETINDIRE £ i wis

Reliance Medium Term Fund

RELIANCE MONTHLY INTERVAL FUND SERIES i-Institutional

;. Reliance Money Manager Fund - Institutional

SBI-SHF- Ultra Short Term Fund - Instifutional Plan

Sundaram Ultra Short Term Fund - Super Insitutional

Taurus Ultra Short Term Bond - Super [nsitutional

UTI Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Plan

Face Value

®)

1,200
i0
10
10
10
10
10

1,000

10

10
1,00
10
10
10

0]

10

10

10
10
1o
10
10
10
1,000
1,000
1,000

10
10
10
10
10
o0
10
10
10

0y

1,000
10
10
1,000
1,000

i

|

?ilf' sy :

et
i i

71,251.04 ; 04
— 70,22,485, 8'1 :

1.84,96,845.81 ¢

~1,00,11,668.55 i

29,85,124.39

- 4,72,60,804.79 &
6,70.457.46 '
_9,25,50,393.53 ¢
 2,6346,194.89
8,55.279.84 }
1,69,30,215.87 &

T 16.31,906.92 §
1.80,13.148.68 i

29,01,508. 92 i

347975 ¢

3,91,68,015.51 'E

4,06,28,312.32 &

2.15,93,669.82 ¢

215,42 825,68 i

1732679792}

1,19.66.725.08 i

__49,53,506.29 ; 29

1,443.65 il

49,99,879.53

50,04,672.54 ;

50,05.119.85

| 1,50,04,6B318
406.33

1,30,22,378.90 ¢

70,12,843.96 &

79,28,56717 ¢

50,41,186.43 |

99,970, 73

_49.96,87783 ¢
50,170.75

96.60 i

peads eSS AT

s adEs e Al ELRIIIIN TN I IR e R b e R A R S TR T ITTOT AT T A d S B GR BN RS EITIITITIIN I Y
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Tforming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2077
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SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES
Stores and Spares (Net) _ . 250930 2772.29
Stock - in - Trade : - B | o
Raw Materials [(including in transit T 49,47.08 lacs) 248,254 " 2350090 §
(Previous year ¥ 36,65.80 lacs)] ' '
Semi-Finished Goods : 26,89.97 10,57.92
Finished Goods [{including in transit ¥ 98.82 |acs) ' _ 267,21.89 132,76.47 |
{Previous year ¥ 1,95,.43 lacs)]
56746.30 406,07.58
SCHEDULE 8
SUNDRY DEBTORS
Debts outstanding for 2 period exceeding six
months ;
Consldered Good ' | 7273 114.63
Considerad Doubtful 147.87 1,56.86 §
Less : Provided for ' : (14787 F (1,56.86) £
72.73 1,14.63
Other Debts ;
Considered Good 46759524 - 375,16.98
' : 468,6797 376,31.61
As at March As at March : '
31, 2011 11, 2010
Sundry Debtors
Secured 191,08.47 182,87.22
Unsecured 2775950  193,44.39
i TOTAL 468,67.97 376,31.61
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Schedules

- forming part of the Balance Sheet as at March 37, 2017

4448464390 bAEE BHESTNTINISIONITIN

. ——— T . i
Ean e
' i5CHEDULE 8
©#  CASH AND BANK BALANCES
f  rashonHand 18.00 19.70 %
i__Remittance in Transit 32,33.04 29,64.64
E: Wlth Scheduled Banks :
i In Current Accaunts 11,57.37 ~ 575.91%
: In Deposit Accounts 3,20.86 103,99.18 &
In Margin Deposit Accounts * 5.39 o5
: In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts : 47408 3446 %
i 47,88.06 139,98.90 %
i * Lien with Banlk ) B
SCHEDULE 10 .
LOANS AND ADVANCES
% Advances receivable in Cash or Kind or for Value to be received 40,8961 -~ 50,3508 08
¢ Balances with Customs, Port Trust ., Excise , etc. 75,66.50 ' 379079
Advance payment of Tax {net of provision) - 13,79.50 53045}
¥ Interest Receivahles - 30.56 14,9371
I OtherReceivables _ goazl _8_9_42_
¢ Loans, Advances and Deposits {considered doubtful) 13.33 33.33:
i Less : Provided for L ' (13.33) (33.33) ¢
5 131,55.59 109,39.45 ©
{SCHEDULE 11 j
CURRENT LIABILITIES i
¢ Acceptances : 638,25.21 418,02.81¢
i§  Sundry Creditors : 5
Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise - -3
§é Due to Others - 283,08.34 228,534 ¢
i _Interest Accrued but not due 5.93.22 4,06.95
i Deposit from Others £2.52 55,52 i
Other Liabilities 1389750 102.43.04
Liability towards Investors Education and Protection Fund i
& . under Section 205C of the Companies Act, 1955
¢ Due as at end of the year i - -
_ % Notdue as on March 31, 201 &
; Unclaimed Dividends 4740 3446 #
: Unclaimed interest and matured Oeposis 0.08 i 32
i . : 1,067,34.27 753,96, 24
s—f *
iSCHEDULE 12
{PROVISIONS
i Proposed Dividend ' : £,84.87
Corporate Tax on Proposed Dividend 11110
; Retirement and other Employee Benefits 19,15.72 20,33, 29
2711.69 36,35.82 ¢ :
ERREEEXTERFINT FESYE I ETLS UPFES SE TPttt ftibp bttt bbb b ket AL LSS EEEL RS LT FS i b S aTIIRIIL Byafiikiadd 113 =z
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Schedules | |

forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year.ended March 37, 20717

Tinlacs
2010-1
SCHEDULE 13
OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Sale of Scrap \ 1,61.74 ©10,04.07
Profit on Sale of Assets anf " D384
Profit on Sale of Investment ' -1 0.07
Interest {Tax deducted at Source ¥, 83.94 lacs (Previous year ¥ 2,71.56 lacs)) 1246.50] - 17,09.39
Royalty 2.71.62 . 18175
Provisions for Doubtful Debts / Advances Written Back . 55.32 : -
Provisions no longer required written back 4077 2,57.95
Dividend on lnvestments '. . . ' o
Subsidiary Company (Trade} . 720.26 7737
Others {Nen Trade) 36.27 11374
Government Grant : L . .. 17146 ' -
Miscellaneous - . 11,09.83 3 8,68.80
- ' 60,2228 4273.52
sSCHEDULE 14
MATERIALS
% Raw Materials )
Stock - April1, 2010 ] T o : 198,35.10 Q. 0 70,85.03
Add : Purchases . ’ 2,650,12.74 1,844,99.96
2,848.4784 1,915,84.99
Less : Stock - March 31, 2011 . 198,78.06 " 198,35.10
i ' 2,645,69.78 ' 1,71749.89
SCHEDULE 15 ]
COST OF TRADED GOODS SOLD .
Stocl - April 1, 2010 16,03.58 _ ENAY
Add : Purchases . 84,58.97 170,00.05
. 100,62.55 - 179,17.22
Less : Stock - March 31, 20M 6,76.87 16,03.58
o 93,85.68 "~ 16313.64
SCHEDULE 16
PERSONNEL
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 168,35.55 158,11.98
Pravident Fund, Gratuity Fund and Superannuation Scheme etc. 167813 ) 17.04.57
Welfare Expenses - 18,9441 - 17,5013
’ 204,08.09 192,66.68
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Schedules

forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2017

SRR FIbas tL Lt ETEFFpatsd i LA LEER T+
-

3
5

ERES T R E Shvorien s SRS LET SR T o0 2oL L

FiHdpnady

A b bR R

ST v el sath st st IR ITE LETFFIFIrbras] :22!‘?‘

: i
Tin Iacs i

i
¢
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SCHEDULE 17 - ;§t
' OTHER EXPENSES
| Conversion Charges 105,03.32Y i
~4  Stores and Spares Consurmed 262842 20,19, 79
i Powerand Fuet 122,60.51 108,90.74 ;
% Freight and Delivery Charges 76,00274 &3 7552_.
¢ Rent 4,67.72 5,28.30
i Lease Rent 2,130 2,56.91 1
. Rates and Taxes 13246 (ALK
[nsurance 2,26.33 23831 ¢
{  Repairs:
i Machinery 26,07.87 20814 ¢
\ Buildings 343.28 1,50.72 &
i Qthers 83.32 90,33 i
30,4047
i Travelling and Conveyance 11,8170 11,7792
Printing and Stationery 1,30.51 1,07.97 §
Directors' Fees 8.75 10.35 £
© Auditors' Remuneration : B o
{  Audit Fees 22.00 22.00
i Taxation Matters 2.52 5.55 3
t _Other Services (Certification, Tax Aud|t etc.) 226 1843 §
: Reimbursement of Expenses 2.37 439
49.05 I
Advertisement and Sales Promation 44,86.01 21,9327 ¢
& Aebates and Discounts 40,24.23 31,55.63 ;
i Commission 4195.83 36,5534 ¢
¢ Communication Expenses 5,51.79 5,58.28 ¢
i Bad Debts Written off 72.02 2.10.17 éi
Less : Pravision for doubtful debts written B i
i back to the extent provided (30.74) - {2,00. 2"5)£
41.28 i
i Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances 57.08 88.83 ¢
¢ _ Loss on Asstes Sold / Discarded 15.35 5117 §
~ i Factary Expenses B 4,67.30 213.57
i legal Charges 1,23.80 115.22 ¢
__Finance Charges 2179.20 1543.69 %
i Farelen Exchange Fluctuations (Net) 81.84 6.35.28 1
¢ Professional and Consultancy Charges 9,65.05 716481
¢ Commission to Directors 35.00 2,00.00 |
i General Expenses 2042.93 18,48.04 &
576,87.50 4653978 1
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Schedules .

forming part of the Profit and Loss Account for the yeaf ended March 37, 2077

Zinlacs §
% 2010-11 1
iSCHEDULE 18
i INTEREST A -
On Term Loans - 26,16.44 2142,06
Others : 52,33.08 | 354108
= ’ 78,49.52 ' 55,8374 {
i5CHEDULE 19 _
¢ DECREASE / (INCREASE) IN STOCK
Stock - April 1, 2010 .
{ Sermni-Finished 10,5792 1,94.25
if " Finished - . 14,7746 - 108,77.89
i , : 125,35.38 10,7214
£ Stack - March 31, 201 ,
i - Semi-Finished - 26,89.98 - | 05742 i
Finished - 258,46.20 14,7746 :
286,368 1253538 §
(161,00.80) (14,63.24)
| Differential Excise Duty an Opening and . : E
| Closing Stock of Finished Gonds - _ 1,91.77 - 2,83.29}
- - (149,09.03) ~ (n,79.95) ¢

FERY I Liddtravany " Apitikaparinste i ii=th) pis paanaad
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Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2071

SCHEDULE 20
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

7

A}

B

—

o

D)

SIGNIFICANT ACEOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The Finantial staterments are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and in accordance with the standard on Aceounting
notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 and referred to in section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956,

FIXED ASSETS

fixed Assets are stated at cost / revalued cost wherever applicable. Cost comprises of cost of acqulsition, cost of
improvements, borrowing cost and any attributable cast of bringing the asset ta the condition for its intended use, Cost alsa
includes direct expenses incurred upto the date of capitalisation / commissioning,

Leased Asseis comprisa of assets acquired under Finance Leases which have been stated at cost of acquisition plus entira
cost component amortisable over the useful life of these assets.

BORROWING COST

Borrowlng costs include interest, fees and other charges incurred in connection with the borrawing of funds and is
considered as reverue expenditure for the year in which it is incurred except for barrowing costs attributed to the acquisition
{ improverment of qualifying capital assets and incurred till the commencement of commercial use of the asset and which is
capitalised as cost of that asset.

DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method, at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.
Certain Plants have been treated as Continuous Process Plants based on technical and other evaluations.

" Leasehaold land is amortised over the period of the lease.

Software expenditure have been amortised over a periad of three years.

Technical Know-how and Brands are amortised gver a period of twenty years.

E) INVESTMENTS

F)

[nvestments being fong term are stated at cost. Provision against diminution in the value of investments is made in case
diminution Is considered as other than temporary, as per criteria laid down by the Board of Directors after cansidering that
such investments are strategic in nature,

Current Investment is stated at lower of cost or fair value.

INVENTORIES :

Raw materials, Stores and spares and Stock-in-process are valued at weighted average Cost. Finished Goods are valued at
lower of cost or net realisable value. Material-in-transit is valued at cost.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Gross Sales include excise duty and are net of trade discounts / sales returns / sales tax,
Interest is accounted on an accrual basis.

Dividend is accounted when right to receive payment is established.

AL FTIET IR i i s b Tl i il b Fi g i il p i it i if} 7 Annual Repart 2000-1 87 »



Schedules B S :
forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2077 ' ‘
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

H) EXPORT INCENTIVE
Export Incentives are recognised in the year of entitlement and credited to the Raw Material Consumption Account. .

|} GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Grants relating to Fixed Assets are reduced from the cosi of Fixed Assets and Grants related to revenue are shawn :
- separately as part of Other Income. ; :

J) FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Forelgn currency transactions other than those covered by Forward contracts are recorded at current rates.

Forward ;jEEmra in respect of forward ekchange contracts are recggrrised over the life of the cnntract.
Maonetary Assets and Llablhtres denaminated in foreign currency ; are restated at year—end retes
All exchange gains and losses arising out of transaction/restatement, aré accounted for In the Profit and Loss Account.

K) LEASE RENTALS

The cost components in respect of Finance leases is being amortised over the primary lease penod or ef‘fectlve life rJf the
‘Assets as depreclatmn on Leased Assets and the interest compnnent is charged as a pertod cost.

Ser:ondary Lease rentals are being charged o Profit and Loss Accuunt

Leases that do not transfer substantiaily all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating Ieases and
recognised as expenses as and when payments are made over the lease term.

L) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Revenue expenditure on research and development is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurrad,

Capital expenditure is shown as an additfon to the fixed assets and are depreciated at applicable rates.

M} EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

a) Defined Contribution plan

+ Contribution to Defined Contribution Schemes such as Provident Fund, Superannuation, Employees State Insurance
Contrlibution and Labour Welfare Fund are charged to the Profit and Loss account as and when Incurred.

b} Defined Benefit plan

The Company also provides for retirement / posi-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity and Lee\re ehcasr'rrnent: ‘
Company's liability towards these benefits Is determined using Project Unit Credit Method. These benefits are pravided
N based on the Ar:tuarral Valuatlnn as en Ealance Sheet date by an Independent actuary

c) Shnrt term beneﬁts are recognlsed asan expense inthe proﬁt and Iuss account of the yearin whlch the related sarvice is
rendered.

d) long term leave benefits are prowded as per actuarial valuation as on Ealance Sheet tate by an :ndependent actuary
using graject unit credit methaod. :

g} Termination benéfits are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.
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Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

N) TAXES ON INCOME
. a} .Current Tax:Current Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961

b) Defe}réd.Tax Provislon: Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable
income for the year, and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted on the Balance Sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

3
M

[ZEXT PSS ¥+ gkt i

H
H
3
H
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&
<

sErprase

L. L -
e R T T e smw..mm"“%@ i
% TR §§ ﬁ%g*ij;; H "M"'g%igg

GiiFEIITIOIIIITTIRTI IS RS H A La bR SEITTION RS b4 R LR ERITITRITTETY

CesIZITITRNTITTTOCFRYN A AP RERARILINING
i

Tinlacsi

YR EFEGERTE I E L b dE LTI

B R R B 2010-1
i2) Contracts remaining to be executed: i
fi
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to he executed on Capital 91,65.87 2B8,13.38
#i Arcount and not provided for - net of advance payments E
Investment commitment - 10,96.52 w
o

3) Contingent Liabilities: i
i a) Direct and Indirect Taxation Maiters on which there are decisions of ‘
the appellate authorities in the Company's faveur, but appeals made i
by tax autharities ' i
Income Tax 24136 2,04.60
Wealth Tax 6.73 673k
;s Excise Duty / Service Tax 40,7231 40,75.05
Sales Tax . 47.59 156 &
b} Direct and Indirect Taxation matters in respect of which the Company
i is in appeal
Income Tax 14.41.26 10,3341 5
i Excise Duty / Service Tax 2,62.07 1,64.96 2
Sales Tax 437018 60,14.86
i ) Disputed demands of Octroi Buty 1,70.77 1,56.86 4'
d) Bills discounted with Banks and Finance Companies 2752.04 20,35.86 3
: &) Corporate Guaranitees given on behalf of others 25,50.00 25,50.00 i
- Covered by indemnity undertakings from RPG Enterprises Ltd. i
f) The Company has given Indemnity in respect of Lease transactions - - "l
entered into with ICICI Bank Ltd., liability for which is indeterminable
* g) Export obligation under Export Promotion Council Guarantee Scheme 396,07.89 -
i4) Ciaims against the Company not acknowledged as Debts (Estimated): ;
{ i) inrespect of labour matters 6.48.00 6,27.24
i) other claims 12,3510 11,0618 ¢
JUEP T T I i T b i b E I i f i i il T i id it i iididdifirii it/ Annual Report 20011 | 89 3



Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2077
SCHEDULE 28 (Contd.)

T - S - _— san . ——
g“‘“ § ) Zin lacsh)
i T Ui 2010-71 0850

#5) Managerial Remuneration . .

i Salaries 3,22.58 1,85.29 &
Allowances and Perquisites 2119 . 2226
Contribution to Pravident and Superannuation Funds ‘ 40.57 1 2977

3,84.34 24732 ¢
sassveasraza - _— " OIS

.Notés: -
1) Managerial Remuneration Is subject to appraval of the Central Government.

2) The Managerial remuneratian is computed as per the provisions of Section 198 of the Campanles Act, 1956 read along
with the provisions of Schedule XIll there to,

6) Cumputation of Net Profits in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956.

#4 i TRARRTIITENIT TLEIIZERATH fhs 21 ERAETRITETE TEIERRRERIEA R T RITOITITTIES fﬁii&mﬂ:a":
Fin Iacsi
w1011 i
2228331 161,04.15
£Add / (Less) : . . )
Provision for tax 10,95.86 77585.50 &
Remuneration to Executive Directors 3,84.34 . 24732
Commissioh to Non Executive Directors 35.00 2,00.00
Sitting Feeta Directars 8.75 10.35
Provisior for Doubiful Debts / Advances (Net) 26,34 {112.46)
Loss on Assets sold / discarded ‘ ‘ 15.35 ' 5117
Profit on sale of Assets (8.1} (0.38) §
1 Profit on sale of Investments - (0.07) g
|Excess of Expenditure over Income of the preceding year ) - (33,53.34)
!NEt Profit for Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 37,84.86 20942241
1% Commission to Non Executive Directors restricted to 35,00 . 2,00.00
; . FeBATEEITRTITIINIINA S RIS ALY IR ....mm,-i;ll - uif"*."*"'*'""‘ﬂ!?“"ﬁﬂﬂ‘
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Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2071
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

7)

Production, Sales and Stocks of each class of manufactured goods / traded goods:

IrITTIeIT

PERTFIS NI CTS FAF PRI RG240

EETYTTANTEYPIRA AR IR L6 AGLAASLIETIDIT

“:’?2‘??',_2?5t:;2!2]2‘&!&&i&$1saaé&i$.§.ii§§.‘1§12::?:5!?2??’.3‘.‘!‘??*?!??95?%Htéi&ix‘

Tinlacst

?’f%‘"i - -
Eﬁ" e # i A € ; lx%
i Autornative Tyres & i ; : i : #
ENos.inlakhs ™ - 9 B559: 65594 3365 . 9400 249} 6.98 92.87 ;
: (4947)?‘ (47.26) i (4.82)5  (84.50) (2.73) : (3.36) (88.70) i
Bvalue -t -% 98,6138 -%  B45I7i  219,90.54F  3,34520.85 ¢
! : =) ()3 (82,5797)i ()% (869357 =  (98,61.38) éi (2,646,54.58) !
i Automotive Tube  § ! : : ; j
iNos. in Lakhs E 4947 - 10.09%  1i046! 0.01¢ 1726 103.29 1
B i (49.47) % (-) {10.66) ¢  (70.56) - (23.72) (10.09) : (3. 84)2
Value N - -l 255545 - 571 397410% . 350,88.21%
: ; (=) .(-) & (30,58.82) ()i (777831)%  (255545)F  (294,70.64) ¢
Automotive Flaps £ 4 ; 3 :
_ ENas. in Lakhs - -3 39E  26.92% - i ER 7Nt
() i (-) i (289):  (25.20) (240) ¢ (3.90) (26.58) ¢
£ Value f - - 5EIANE - - £,58.07 & 55,5140
i (-)'§; ()i {a7747) 2 i (52877) (6,63.41) (48,71, 82) ;
{Others - Value - - 0BO: - 1.09 0.36 115 5
‘ (-) (0.80) § (=) () (0.80)- (016):

HTotal Value - % 130,81.04 -% 84,5897 266,23.07 3,751,61.51 ;
-3 (177.95.06) ¥ {-)# (170,00.05) ¢ (130,81.04) § (2,589,97.20) %
] £ i : i i
Frusieenst fiasEiEize; ™ creTreraiedsiiesabsARIETIIpITIANIEALTIS rErREIThIs sz aspek

1) installed Capacity is as certified by the Management.

Praduction guantity includes the fnllowmg procured under conversion basis.

»7:3:::3::::.‘:::;:!13!%;éé::ff?vw srRvEanEITIEL e Er e B Ur B L s bt b el et e SR LR Fat L L Lt LT T LTI T X T eyl drbierhartrd 3 & ket LT R S ea T L EE F T 201 " i
HEHHESHEET R R S ] | Current year
i Automative Tyres 55.23 46297
t i b
£ Automiotive Tubes 110.46 7056t
£ Automative Flaps 26.92 2520 &
iTOTAL 1,92.51 1,42.05
""""""" *EEEIY EIITIITITRITREIASSRETILAEE ARG P bt Ly rRLBEREREFAEE ‘ﬁ?ﬁf!??i§§§é§a§xizéi‘iié-av&A;é
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- Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March-37, 20717

SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)
8) Raw Materials Consumed

¥inlacs
2010-1 3
_ Quantity (M.T) Vitue | Quantity(MT).. Value
] Rubber 96,853 . .1,706,33.69 88,538, ... 966,98.86
Fabirics 17,298 . 414,08.42 . 16,064 331,65.74
Carbon Black 46,048 256,58.04 41,161 -200,86.37
Chemicals 23,951 184,71.27 21,056 144,92.07
. Dthers 87,37.36 73,06.85
) TOTAL '2,649,69.78 1,717,49.89

8) Value of Imports calculated on CIF basls:

—_— SR — STt
{Eagicyla 2010-1 t
2 Raw Materials 934,20.70 594,921
Traded Goods 48,79.42 58,4347
Components and Spares 1,82.50 1,97.34
Capital Goods 278,91.03 6,02.64
ZI3 . THEEERE ST ITT 2 3T S g
10) Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
- T " LITATERIEEIT STITINERERCIAREY Pr— pam e 2 rrTTrITT
Tin lacst
Particul 201011
{ |nterest 5,34.64
b Travelling I 90.51 I
Others I 45212 §
LTI TITIIIASTARLNATEND : I .
11} Value of Imported/Indigenous Raw Materials / Stores and Spares consumed:

ETTEL ¥

TEIETIELLS RRRTALY

e

oz

Tinlacs

2010-11

L % Value PO Value

Raw Materials - : L
Imparted 18,77 1,027,22.09 34.20 556,58.02
Indigenous - 61.23 1,622,47.69 67.80 1,160,91.87
' 100.00 2,6449,69.78 100.00 1,717,49.88
Stares and Spares ‘
imported 13,93 3,66.03 13.31 2,68.92
Indigenous 86.07 22,62.39 86.63 17,50.87
: 100.00 26,2842 100,00 20,19.79

3 92| CEATLimited // /4770517
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Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2077

SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

.

12) Dividend Remittance in Forelen Currency :

Faa

‘:;iiii'ﬂg59!H‘.‘."?:;"!?!33133".’:::::51:;';’33 LRI 22 RS 1S A5 RS a-bia vt i e vt S FFENFI IR E Y PR LTS AL SR TR S it A A S P F AT IS 1T ,V,,,_.ﬁ,‘»:liéhsiélkééiﬁF'E‘{!?!211!1:212:5;2:&“&%:

Fin 13:5;

2010-11 !gé%&még%% ‘%’é ?j

Amount remitted (Net) 71.30 i

Number of Non-resident Shareholders 2 -
iNumber of Shares on which remittance was made 17.82,385 -
i Year for which the Dividend was paid 200910 ' -3
%“::I:::Z‘i;u»n»n:éﬂ”’ﬁ».-._----u.-ale&ntrﬂ'%.‘??ii....--_.«....w.w«xw«i"e":,‘.iNu,.,N.-,.-_—-A.—A‘Z'E'ZR"”"?é}’-"""" "7"€;“‘*5‘{':1::"1:'2?5”?“s%g

13} Earnings in Foreign Currency:

;ﬁi&”!?”.‘_‘uu;;i;iﬁiki.ﬁ‘! e

gsﬁ%ﬁ“&g “ !

!2&22!

Export Sales calculated on FDEI basis

REEFSIRIRTELER S L4 R 0ot S PP EAFRRNS RN EL T 1020 2o Lo AL USRS T

FTOTTITIITIAAIANELL

%2 *ﬁ?fki?!ll‘iliiiﬁzi%kiEﬁi‘it&?!???ﬂ?it:lz:i.ﬁi{

]
Tin Iacs%z

2010-1

Rovyalty

£ Dividend

T e

480,24, 50

621,54.55
2,71.62 1.81.75 SE

¥

72026 7737

i
i

i
i
i
u;ill&i&‘&‘@“” LT SRR R RT YT TTTOUTI SR ERGdE FETITTITISILLL ETTRENTYITIO AL SEFPEERRICTSL
‘14) Research & Develupment Expenses
R S F R S T L A T I T T L A i S e T I I DR R S e ¥R P T T TR T Db A B4 2R 7T TI20T504

TR

: 1
i Capital

. i
SEYRTTTITITIZLGLA %k{?,‘:lﬂ::’%’

flii st b FER R ES SR 640 e L F L S e 1]

&
gin Iacsg

201011 - pimad2008R10

5, Revenue

1,55.02 40.77 §
41749 § 2,81.85 §

1
i
-

rurIIITiLsbanescaprTInTT e SR ks b s as s B TITT FLLE 454

15) Operating Lease

fectutnirr ey FAETES S

TEARLEYRATYAIILL

Tha Company has entered into a sale and lease back agreement with the leasing company far vehicles, resulting in a

non-cancellable operating lease as defined in "AS 19" {Leases).

l.ease rentaf on the said lease of ¥ 2,21.30 lacs (Previous year ¥ 2,56.91 lacs ) has been charged to Profit and Loss

Account.

"!V: R lwaddd E %Y FIFONIITIINNIL L3 wEBSEWERTEOEITIIOTNINS AR EELFAFLIRNATISTINILLNNNGE REARTITITEIT RS b fasRFTSLI —-n‘-—‘“ﬁl&’&’?"
%

it in Iacs :
. 3
3

1 Ascn

i
i For a period not Iaterthan one year

March 31, 2011

%Far a period later than one year but not later than five years

3
I

L L A e T D LI R A A T I T TEe B E PN T IS FARSRAE AT RS IRTITIIIS

1,56.33 i
140.22 | 2,78.86 £

RUIIITITINILG znuszw'-"
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Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2071
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.}

16} Consequent to commencement of commercial production for Radial Tyres on March 25, 2011 at Halol Plant near
Vadodara, Pre-Operative expenditure of ¥ 76,21.06 lacs has been capitalised on varlous Fixed Assets which are put to use.

17) Pre-Operative Expenses pending capitalisation .

U Zinlacs
iGeneral Expenses ' 161.00 2,68.89
Depreciation ) 322 15.53
Travelling and Conveyance 49,37 1,62.251
Technical Knaw-how _ : _ - 13124
Consultancy and Professional Fees 1,48.85 2,93.95
HWBorrowling Cost ~ ' : 10,39.73 - 19,0478
§Personnel Cost . 24542 4,6740
tPower & Fuel . 1,06.62 -
17,54.21 32.44.04
Less : Interest / Dividend earned . 2811 1,06.46
TOTAL 17,26.10 31,37.58 |

18) Exchange Differences recognised in Profit and Loss Account

Net forelgn exchanee gain recognised in Profit and Loss Atcnunt is¥ 6,18, BU Iacs (Previous year loss #1,75.36 lacs)
out of which ¥ 81.84 lacs loss (Previous year loss ¥ 6,35.28 lacs) has been shown separately whereas net gain of

¥ 7,00.64 lacs {Previous year gain ¥ 4,59.92 |acs) are included under appropriate heads of items in Profit and Loss
accounts.

19) Retirerment Benefits
The required disclosure under the Revised Accounting Standard 15 is given below

Brlef description: The type of Defined benefit plans is as follows.

Gratuity

The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of Indla is a defined benefit plan. The
present value obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method.

Leave Encashment

The present value cbligation of Léeave Encashment is determined based on actuarial valuatiun‘us'ing projected unit
credit methad.
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Sc'hedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 31, 20771
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.}

I

i)

i

Change in Deﬁned Beneﬁt obhgatlnn durmg the year ended March 3‘I 20M

E e S T T ER Tt b a At T I I bt b et R L = b S P S DRSS oo b4 BEEEFEEFITIIITIE

Tin IacsfE
S s
R 2010-1 sl
§5r.N0. i Particulars Gratuity Leave | Gratuity | Leave :
§ i (Funded) | Encashment | (Funded) Encashment | i
i i {Unfunded) (Unfunded)
i i
' 1. : Present value of Defined Benefit obligation as at § 4768.74 76402 42,33.88 7,29.66 & Ez
: »Aprll 1,2010 i
i2, , {iCurrent Service Cost 1,898 37475 19630 341.87 §
' 3. Hinterest Cost / Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation 3,81.50 5491 84899 (59.71) & ,5
?‘4. {Beneﬁts paid (9,37.28) {2.7.98) | (5.10.42) (24770} | %
5. % Present value of obligation as at March 31, 201 47,82.50 766.39 ] 4768.75 76412
sEié'y'ilin “ﬂr:::::zzfz-lef%i%#i:ﬁ?:::::::::?:::5!2! FE ‘J‘-525;;‘i;ﬂ:‘::::.:‘::::’.‘f.‘if??f;5‘;;;
Changes 1n Fair value of Plan Assets during the vear ended March 3 ‘2011 .. -
i gin Eacs:
2010-11
‘Sr No. ,Partn:ulars Gratuity Leave Gratutty Leave
? (Funded) | Encashment  (Funded) Encashment | ;
! i (Unfunded) {Unfunded) :
i, 1 Fair value of plan assets as at April 1, 2010 40,95.29 - 36,62.03 - ;'
12, ‘Expected return on plan assets 3,94.23 - 3,57.04 -
i3, iContributions made 6,83.85 1,55.43 5,86.65 2,4770
£4.  iBenefits paid (9,37.28) {1,5543) 8  {510.42) (24770} 3
§ 5. i Actuarial gain / (Loss) on plan assets - - - -
B. §Fairvalue of plan assets as at March 31, 2071 42.36,09 - 40,95.30 -¥

Expenses re:ngmsed in the statement uf Pruﬁt & Loss Atcnunt fnr the year March 31 2011

§ : ELTTITTITITIITIAATALY TIRRE LI RAPARS, LRI AR SRR TEISTRTAINIIRATTRIASTININ ‘,
H Tin Iacs

N

S b e i Siiissin 38 J Eissdiiddidans wmr ‘iﬁ‘"‘z’f“ Hi
A ] 200 e
15r.No. ‘F'artin:ulars Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave |
: i {Funded) | Encashment | (Funded) | Encashment ,
! 3 (Unfunded) (Unfunded} !
b i 1
#1. iCurrent Service Cost 18918 |  37475) 19630 3,41.87
H2. filnterest Cost / Actuarial {gains) and losses (Net)]  3,81.50 54.97 8,48,99 (59.71) &
i3, Expected return on plan assets {3.94.23) - (3,57.04) - i
£4, ‘Total included in employee benefit expense 5.56.81 1,57.70 6,88.25 2,8216 ¢
: i i
FrrrrerrdvininacerssrabbiiinadedanaiaieiBbaditastayiEIiag LIZIIITEANTIIIT TISTIFTRTETIIRNYR S

Amount recognised as an expense / (lncnme) and mctuded in Schedule 16 “Salaries, Wages aﬂd Bnnus |nc1ude5

¥1,99.36 lacs (Previous year T 5,23.36 lacs) towards Leave Encashment, “Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund and
Superannuation Scheme, etc” includes ¥ 5,70.07 lacs (Previous year ¥ 6,93.15 lacs) towards Gratuity.

JROFI iR i i I i ai i i i it il ii it fpidib e in s iar i n 7477/ Annual Report 2010-11
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Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March-37, 2077
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

Iv) Net Assets / {Liabflity) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011, .

gin [acs%
: : 2010-n 7
Sr.No, fiParticulars Gratuity Leave
S {Funded) | Encashment | (Funded) | Encashment
{Unfunded) {Unfunded)
1. Present value of the defined benefit obligation | -47.82.50 766,39 4768.75 76412 3
as at March 31, 20M ' =
2, "rFairvalue of plan Assets as at March 31, 201 42,36.08 -] 409530 -
3. Net Assets / (LIability) recoenised in the (5,46.41) (766.39) (6,73.45) {(7,64.12) :
Balance Sheet . ,
ek

v) Actual return on plan assets for the-year ended March 31, 2011 )
tyrrorer : ¥it 2 = %mﬂ:ﬁ%ﬁmYﬁﬁik!ﬂxmz:&l%ti!ﬁwﬂ;
¥inlacs;
5r.No: §Particulars - = A Gratulty Leave { - Gratuity Leave 3

- {Funded) | Encashment § ' (Funded) | Encashment

{Unfunded) {Unfunded)

1. Expected return on plan assets 3,94.23° -] 35704 -

2. Actuarial gain / (loss) an plan assets L= -1 - -

3. Actual return on plan assets 3,94.23 - 3.57.04 -

vi) Percentage of each category of Plan Assets to Total Falr Value of plan Assets

Tin Iacs%

2010-11

i
Al

3 D— Yt Taie
Sr.No, [iParticulars Gratuity Leave Cratuity Leave |

\ Ho : (Funded) | Encashment § (Funded) | Encashment
{Unfunded) {Unfunded) f
1. Insurer Managed Fund - 100% - 100% - g
|
113 FTITIVE LS Eisnraesy AT EFEENYAEn T
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Schedules

| forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2077

'SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)
vii) Prmcipal Actuanal assumption at the Eaiance Sheet date

SEETRRTITARIT

iR o 2000m |
";Sr.Nu. itParticulars Gratuity Leave Gratuitv Leave : v
i ! : (Funded) | Encashment | - (Funded} | Encashment
‘ {Unfunded) (Unfunded) !
JHL iDiscount Rates 8.00% . 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%
2. $Annual increase in salary 4.00% 4.00% . 4.00% | 4.00% |
5_ ? LIC LIC Lic LIC §
i (1994-96) (1994-96) | (1994-98) (1994-96)
i3, [Mortality Rate Ultimate | Ultimate | Ultimate Ultimate |
Pt
FEES E it rddetabntosrrrti it ontatabat bid it SLERERTE LT TEITLTTE EETETE TN S5 4o bairynt- Doy FEVRY, '“""""""’_’:IE’I!.}QjH?%f?iuwizi

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority and
other relevant factors, such as supply ant demand in then employment market.

vIu)UEtalls of Previous Years

b es 3382 525 R RS EELELITTI LS EERERES TS Pr iy bbb b i ddr s hbdb bbb S AL A SRS S 2 SRR S SR LRI RS TSI Fhts M i hat s b Ebrt S5 £ TR PR3 EERLER RIS ITIITITITT I ISR I T IN RN Ay

, ?inlacsf‘

,g T é&;wm. ;-m, . T w::mw o § :
PalclBEEE ] 200 ﬁag*mﬁ ]

sGRATU|TY FUNDED Eé :

&"2:

i Present value of Defined Benefit obligation asf 478250 ] 47,6875 f 42,3388 3660487 34,9448

'at the year end, w
:g Fund value as at the vearend 42,36.09 4D,95.BD i 36,62.03 : 36,91.58 33,01.05
-Surplus / (Deficit) (5.46.41) (6,73.45) {(5,71.85) 3110 (1,93.44}

» Net Assets / (Liability) recognised in the 54641 (6,73.45)F {571.85) 55 - (1,95.00}
:Balance Shest :
ELEAVE ENCASHMENT (UNFUNDED)

\Present value of Defined Be 7.66.39 7.64.2 7.29. 55 § BABSS: 75253
nefit obligation as at the year end. ? :

S

i

{Fund value as at the year end - - -4 - -
iSurplus / {Deficit) (7.66.39) (76412)4 (729.66) & (648.95) ; (752.53) :z
iNet Assets / (Liability) recognised in the (766.39) {76412)° i {(7.29.66} z (6.48.95) ¢ {752 53) E
;Balance Sheet :; % .Z
g : ) H ;; i i

ix} The cuntrahutmn expecteci to be paid to the Gratuity fund durlng the annual perlod begmmng af-ter the Bafance
Sheet date is T 8,218 lacs (Previous year T 8,84.76 lacs).

%) Long term liability includes ¥ 61.32 lacs (Previous year ¥ 70.56 lacs) on account of Compensated Sick Leave
absences.
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Schedules | S

forrming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2077

SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)
20) Micro and Small Scale Business Entities:

There are no Micro and Small Enterprise, to wham the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 30
days as at March 31, 2011, This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
" Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the Auditors.-

21} Major:tnm'pnnents of Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities:

AT S ITITIATITITY L 3 TEEVEYELITIVT I T IERRALIALFRR AR RIS I T I3 B PR R T
o 4 in lacs

L 2010-1 -
; Assets
Carrled forward tax losses ’ 10,86.18 -
: Disallowance under section 43B of the Income Tax Act 785,57 ) 6,88.20 &
Voluntary Retiremnent Scheme 2,29.88 35.07 ¢
- Minimum Aliernative Tax 714.0 : =
- , 28,1564 7,23.27|
Llability i
4 Difference between book and tax depreciation 52,26.18 - 274000
; 52,2618 274010
Deferred Tax Liability {(Net) o . .. {24.10,54) » (20,6.83)

R

_22) Disclosure of refated parties/refated party transactions:

a) Related parties: (As certified by the Management)

1) Enterprises directly/indirectly controlled

Assoriated CEAT Huldmgs Company (Pvt.) lelted
CEAT-Kelani Associated Haldmgs Eompany {Pvt.) Limited (*)
Assariated CEAT (Pvt.) Limited, :
CEAT-Kelani International Tyres (Pvt} L!ITIItEd
AssnﬂatEd CEAT Kelam Radlals Limited
Rado Tyres Limited ~
i} Key Management Personnel
~¥© Mr. Paras K, Chowdhary, Managing Director
=6 Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka DépLity Méﬁagihg Director
{*} Indicates no transactions during the year with these related pariles,

§44444

2
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| hedu/es

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2077

SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

b) The foliowing transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ﬂrdiﬁarv rourse of

business :

_ _ gin !acs?,
s T T T T | SHEHILY *zfgf“ff‘fé‘g
e ] e L
[ TRANSACTIONS ) I L
‘1 Reimbursement of Expenses ' SRC] S i%}ii
12 Dividend received 72026 - 7137
'3 Royalty Received/Receivable 27162) - 18175 1
i:4. Imports of traded goods 43,04.65 384182 ;
£5. Canversion charges paid/payable 88167§ 68395 i
le_ Advance net of recavery 35004 _‘l}i[lii
 AMOUNT DUE T0 / FROM RELATED PARTIES o
1 Debiors for Expenses 2098y _10_@1
:2. Loans, Advances and Deposits given 19236fF 18668
43, Royalty receivable 14751 - 10337 ,
§4, Creditors 79790  ms3aai

Transactions with Mr. Paras K. Chowdhary, Managing Director and Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka, Deputy Managing
Director, being the remuneration paid to them have been giver in Note No. 5 of Schedula 20.

23) Disclosures as required under clause 32 of listing agreement.
i) l.oans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Assoclates T Nil {Previous year T Nil)

i} Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans where there is no repayment schedule, or no interest or interest below
Section 372A of Companies Act, 1956: T Nil (Previous year ¥ Nil) ‘

ii) Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to firms / Companies in which Directors are interested: ¥ Nil (Previous
year T Nil) .

iv) Investment by the Loan in shares of the Company as at March 31, 207 is T Nit (Previous year T Nil)

24) Segment Reporting:

Considering the organisation structure, nature of products and risk and return profile based on geographical
distribution, the tyre business is considered as a single segment.

25) Earnlngs Per Share (EPS):

;v"‘;:::'!ii&&';:.’!3?Wh&I::?”ha&l:?”fiia?:::",‘k!iii.’::?‘?ﬁ'2:2:‘.‘,’1‘!i72::?‘"3;Ff."f:°;«7:-"2?7.\f::::2.."‘:"2i LEEFTIIE gRiEzdd TEArIi R 1;‘551:1’13,‘5‘7;:_‘524it-'é‘.?’ii*;?‘:
] Tinlacss
§;§;;“m~ ﬁ“’:*‘;ﬁ;"‘;géﬁ?‘zi’;‘."?“““3’? FiisE BT 5*.'"2;:;5'_* FEREELE AR, SESIEE TR PR $APETASEE ﬂgggg
R 200 Hiizoen0iitn
i?ja) Weighied Average Number of shares at the begjnning and end of the year 3,42,43,534 342,43,534
ih) Net Profit after Tax availahle for Equity Shareholders 22,2833
x, q .
it) Face value Per Share (%) 10 i
#d) Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share @ B.51
‘;ésw::s‘a:'s_:::-sss;::zz‘&a:;:&.z;;::-ﬁ.f_-‘; F2iFFERIN SRISTINEHIEIITES STILEFTERIIL -

r‘/f//i///i/!////l‘II/H//H//‘ff’/i///fi!.’HH.v'.'/.’HH!HHHH!.’H!.’HHHHH Annual Repart 20010-11 [ 99° 3



Schedules

forming part of the Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2077
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

26) Auditor's Remuneration:

Other Services shown in Schedule 17 Includes an A

mount of ¥1.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ 0.80 lacs) Audit Fees paid to
Cost Auditor.

27) The Campany has allotted 1712,170 Convertible Warrants of face value 10 each at 2

September 30, 2010 to the promoters of the Company on a preféfentlal basis (25% of the price l.e, ¥ 35.36 recelved
by the Company). The warrants are convertible into an equal number of equity shares at the option of the ailottee
within a period- of 18 months from the date of aliotment (l.e. before March 31, 2012). :

price of ¥ 1,41.44 per warrant, on

28) Provision for Taxation includes provisian for Wealth Tax ¥ 6.64 lacs (Previous year ¥ 9.05 |acs).

29) Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to current Year's classification.
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: and Company s General Business Profile (in term of amendment to schedule VI part V) is given below.

;1. REGISTRATION DETALILS

- Reglstration No. - 11041 | State Code
Balance Sheet Date . Mois] [z]ol1l1]

; . Date Month Year

* 1. CAPY{TAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR {AMOUNT IN T lacs)
Public Issue Rights Issue
L] [T InJi]L] C LT LU T T T InJife)
Bonus Issue Convertible Warrants
[T ! [ T InJrit] C 1 [ [ 1 Telois].Talz]

{Il. POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS {AMOUNT IN T lacs)

Tatal Liahilities.

Total Assets

As per our report attached

Far N.M. Raiji & Co.,
Chartered Accountants

CAY.N. Thakkar
Partner

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 201

PRI EE i iniintinid

[1[slsl2[1]3[ [8]6] [ ] [1lelslz[1T3] [afs6]
Saurces of Funds

Paid-Up Capital Reserves and surplus

[T T3jajz2lal.[3s] [ [ | lefols[alal . [7[s5]
Secured Loans Unsecured Loans

[ Telz2]al113] .Tals] [ [ | [3]olajz]s[.13]al
feferred Tax Liabllity (net) Converiible Warrants _
[ T2Jaf1]o] [s5i4} [ 1T T [ [ Tefal[s[ . Jal2]
Application of Funds

Net Fixed Assets Investments )
[1Talsjalals] a2} [ 1T [ Je[e[s[z[.[s]8]
Net Cugrent Assets Miscellaneous Expenditure

[ [alzlilij1]. [a]&] C L [ [T T T T Iwfilte]

Accumulated Losses

1

[ Infoefe]

. PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY (AMOUNT IN ¥ lacs)

Turnover Total Expenditure ‘ )

(3]sl2]af1Jal fs5]3] [ [3l4lslsfafal . T3]4]

{includes aother incame)

Profit before tax Profit after tax )

T (s[3fafal.T1139] 1 [ T T272l218T.]3[3]

Earning per share in ¥; Dividend rate (Fb)

C Tl . Is501] C L [ [T T [ T 1T lafol
' GENERIC NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPLE PRODUCTS / SERVICES OF THE COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)

tems Code No. (TCCode) [ 4 0 1 1] [4 0 1 2| 4 0 1 3|

Product Destription Automotive Tyres Flaps Tubes

Signatories to Schedutes "1 to "20”
On behalf of the Bogard of Directors

Paras K. Chowdhary
Managing Director

HYV. Goenka
Vice Chairman

Sunil S, Sapre
Chief Financiai Officer

Hari L. Mundra
Chairman - Audit Committee

H.N. Singh Rajpoat
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 20T

f///n’f.’f!/.’f!/f!//f!//f‘r'i/a’/ff!/l!fll!/f!/!f//fl!ll!/f.’ Annual Report 2010-1 101 »



Statement Pursuant to Section 212(3)
of the Campanies Act, 1956 relating ta subsidiary compan v

EEREEET \;u&!iﬂ;wi TEIIA x.-.*.w'z:_'::,‘w‘,_.uoaa:m;antu‘.xawﬁnnsmﬂtnéwmx;usﬁnz«w SESSRL L bR 15 sr b ST R n-e iy .x*_—.:;';ﬁe::::aéén:aiﬁem:;%g::::::u::z::i!-::nnu:n’.:‘w:
T inlacs g
NAME OF THE SUSIDIARY A SHUAT CERR BURDINGS
: S COMBANYABVTLIMITEN:
1 Number of shares held in the subsidiary comgany : 1,00,00,000 Crdinary shares of §
LKR 10/- each fully paid
2 _Percentage of holding in the subsidiary company : ‘ I - 100.00%
3 Financial year ended . March 31, 201
4 Profits/{losses) of the subsidiary company for its financial year so far as it concerns ‘ 1
the members of CEAT Ltd. which have not been dealt with in the accounts of CEAT Ltd.
vor the year ended March 31, 201
Far the year ' ‘ 43.36 ¢
For the previgus financial year ' - ' o - o ' - ﬁ
Total accumulated upto the year ' 4336 %
5 The net aggregate of profits/(losses) of the Subsidiary Co. which have been deait |
within the accounts of CEAT Ltd. far the vear ended March 31, 2011 : 3
For the year ' 3,95.25 B
Far the previous financial year . : ' 2,52.98 ;g
- _Total accurmutated upto the year ) 5.48.2311
e !‘.'.:2-"3?:4'!11‘.:;3i%!!!}ﬁk&ﬁlliﬁiﬁIﬁ%m&‘&w!.m{iii

Note : ) :
The profit for the period has been converted at the average rate during the period l.e. 1LKR = ¥ 0.4063

On behalf of the Board of Directars

Sunil 5. Sapre HV. Goerika ) Paras K. Chowdhary
Chief Financtal Officer Vice Chairman Managing Director
H.N. Sirgh Rajpoot - ) Hari L. Mundra
_ Lompany Secretary Chalrmari - Audit Committee
Flace : Mumbai . Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 201 . Dated : May 2, 2011

Statement pursuant to exemption received under Section 212.(8)
of the Cormpanies Act, 1956 relating to subsidiary company : '

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY g

Narme - Associated CEAT Haldings Campany (Pvt.) Ltd.
Country - 5ri Lanla

Regorting Currency - LKR

Exchange Rate - 1LKR = Rs. 0.4051 (as on March 31, 2011
pe== T

ATIITLAY IITYELETTINE RTINS YT LT S ET T "“‘f“' :w : 1 I AL Y R TI IR e TT TS YT N
4 i T in lacs
S R R amin e TR RINA
Capital - 10,00.00 _ 4,05.10 4
Reserves 31.89 12.92 3
Total Assets = 10,31.89 4,18.02 ¢
Total Liabilities 7 10.31.89 41802 2
investment Other than lnvestment in Subsidiary ’ - -t
Turnover : 10,84.05 44045 i
Profit Before Taxation - 10,79.27 4,38.61
* Provision for Taxation - -
| Profit After Taxation . 10,79.27 _ . 43861}
¢ Dividend 16,70.00 6.48.23
i H
[P L ST L R RS FITTIUREAYBTILNG ERA S 3 AR AT YL 20 2wl PET S 03 TSP pib st R by ek it S Py Lo ST
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Auditars’Répart

To the Board of Directors of CEAT Limited on the Consolidated Financial statements of CEAT Limited and its subsidiary.

We have audited the attached Conselidated Balance Sheet of CEAT Limited and its Subsidiary (herein after referred as CEAT
Group) as at March 31, 2011 and also the Consakidated Profit and Loss Account for the period from Agril 1, 2010 to March 31, 2001
annexed thereto and the Conselidated Cash Flow Statement for the period ended on that date. These financial staiements are
the respansibility of CEAT Limited's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

" We conducted our audit in accardance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that
‘we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
‘misstatement. An sudit includes examining, an a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
“staternents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made Dy management,
¢ well as evaluating the overall financiai staterment presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
‘ppinion. .

'\We did not audit the financial statements of CEAT Limited's subsidiary whose financial statements reflect total assets of
Z60,8317 lacs as at March 31, 2071 total revenues of 7 154.42.95 lacs and cash flows amounting 1o T 42.64 |acs for the year then
ended. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by other auditors whose report has been
furnished to us and our opinion is based solely an the repart of other auditors.

We report that the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by CEAT Limited in accordance with the reguirements
. of Accounting Standards (AS 27) Consolidated Financial statements prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006.

: Based on our audit and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. we are of the opinian, that
" the gttached Consolidated Financial Statements read together with notes therean, give a irue and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India; '

() Inthe case of the Consolidated Balance Shest, of the state of affairs of CEAT Group as at March 33, 2010;
- {p) Inthe case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and

{c} Inthecaseof the Consolidated Cash Flow Statermnent, of the Cash flow for the year ended on that date.

For N. M. RAI)I & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.108296W

CA.Y. N. Thaldar

Partner

Place: Mumbai ' Membership No. 33329
Date : May 2, Z01.
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Ny ansa//dated Balance Sheet

3s at March 37 2077

PATISEATITASTINGNIY Rasrriasanytlaed $0 0w ST _..naz:xsr'.'n TIIR% :!rﬁ&r&-mmn ThiBeTyL !i"'&lm-»ti' LEFITTIN AT I 8

e e

,’.‘;Xﬂ&!aﬁi PARE S Lt W TR A T e Y S i 2T AN R o

i ' a Fin lar:?g
f . . . : :
g } : CHEDULEY  As at March 31, 2011 1 ;
H
SOURCES OF FUND §
SHAREHOLDERS' FUND , il
Share Capital 1 34,24.35 34,24.35 E
Convertible Warrants (Refer note no. 13 of 6,0542 : - 5
Schedule 20)) ' : - 4
Reserves and Surpius ' -2 £13.20.04 534,96 42
' - 653,49.81 629,20.77
4 ) fl
i _PREFERENCE SHARES ISSUED BY SUBSIDIARIES 23.03 88.78
¥ MINORITY INTEREST - 10,40.99 &
LOAN FUNDS - - ' ‘ ¥
Secured Loans I 644,04.69 34504.86 !

Unsecured Loans 4 406,46.80 347.97.01
' - 1,050,51.49 £93,01.87 ;‘1
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (NET) 25,55.37 204042 %
1,729,79.70 1,353,92.83 ¢

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

FIXED ASSETS 5 i
Grass Black 1,923,49,93 ' 1,292,84.71 3
l.ess : Depreciation and Impairment 530,29.49 495 25.69 E

Net Blocl 1,393,20.44 797.59.02
Capital Work-in-proaress 127.23.41 234,00,83 i
1,520,43.85 1,031,59.85 ;
COODWILL ON.CONSOLIDATION 20,48.03 31,2773 ;
INVESTMENTS 5 42,95,52 43427
i _ CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES ' _ g
z Inventories 7 586,93.96 ~ 41719.90 i
Sundry Debtars 8 4897772 390,32.96 §
Cash and Banlk Balances 9 48,90.36 160,37.08 §
L.oans and Advances 0 130.69.93 114,78.22 g
p 1,256,31.97 1,082,68.16 i
i less: ﬁ
{ CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
: Current Liabilities 11 1,081,87.09 769,73.25 ¥
Pravisions 12 28,52.58 37,31.83 - 3
1,110,39.57 807.05.08 _ﬁ
NET CURRENT ASSETS 145,92.30 275,63.08 ;
_1,729,79.70 1,353,92.83 E‘
¢‘a"‘.ﬁl\' Dtes*taofr Mn:g‘H_uw ‘f.; qh pu=21% i, Dy‘rltc%"xil’t"‘Nmiﬁ'AW‘di'éthgzg.l”4#'& R TR TR R T e T s j

As per our report attached On behalf of the Board of Directars

HV. Goenka
Vice Chairman

For N.M. Raiji & Ca.,
Chartered Accountants

Sunil S, Sapre
Chief Financial Officer

Paras K. Chowdhary
Managlng Director

CAYN. Thakkar
- Partner

H.N. Singh Rajpoat
Company Secretary

Hari L. Mundra
Chalrman - Audit Committes

Plate : Mumbai
tated : May 2, 2077

Place : Murmbai
Dated : May Z, 201
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Loss Accmu,_ :

£' ansa/ldated Praflt and Loss A ccaunt

for the year ended March 31, 2017
WG I T S I TR AR IT Y R AL LI IR A LIIT R Tt ns s ST PR L AL J T S dgd 2 L TP ITag LI II T RRA NI TT MR ETIRREASIINNT BAEEIT IS QAR RTITE A LTIDE RV HITITE S SEIATEAVRTRTEFEEILT, ‘F?iﬁ;:'??‘?is’"
E Zin Iacs i
LIS s T ,,,ﬁ-m z?‘v‘f‘if S IR R ‘
,_ mﬁ fﬁ:‘?‘%’g ?}! gg‘;;v&g? f;h psﬂ’? j} gw 2010-11 ;ﬁ’yw 1T, _»ggxéﬁlﬁ.ﬁff?s
?meuME -
1 gales 3,885,0849 3,032,92.28
Less : Excise duty on Sales 282.69.36 182.49.60 !
¥ Net Sales 3,602,353 2,850,42.58__5'
& Other Income 13 52132 41,05.88 |
- ; 3,654,52.25§ _ _2.8914B.56]
 EXPENDITURE i
¥ Materials 14 2.750,50.98 1,733,32.00%
§__ Cost of Traded Goods Sold 15 7719.03 1544663 §
; Personnel 16 213,63.93 196,33.08 :
i Other Expenses 17 600,24.72 473,B0.69 ¢
i Interest 18 79,95.83 572759 ¢
:__ Depreciation 36,00.65 32]2.83
4 |ess: Transferred from Revaluation Reserve - 4,68.32
1 Less : Transferred to Pre-Operative Expenses 6.66 218 i
i ] 35,93.99 27459.33 ¢
k| , 3,75748.48 2,642,69.32
'z Add / (Less) ; Decrease / (Increase) in stock 19 {152,64.91) 3,98.84 :
3| 3,604,83.57 26466816 %
-: PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION AND EXCEPTIONAL ITEM . 45,68.68 2448040 ¢
i Less:Exceptional ftem {Voluatary Retirment : i
¢ Compensation) 7.82.23 -3
: ;- PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 41,86.45 244,80.40
7 Less: Provisign for Taxation it
¢ Current Tax 9,.82.56 74.89.34 ;
il__ Short / (Excess) Provision of earlier years (11.86) 30,28
#  Deferred Tax 47140 44372
b 14,4210 79,6274
¢ PROFIT AFTER TAX 274435 165.17.66
i__Less: Dividend on Subsidiaries Preference Shares 1037 1,37.52 ;
; i 273418 163,80.14 %
% Less: Minority Interest - 87.57 1,32.41%
| # PROFIT AFTER MINORITY INTEREST 26.46.61 1624773 &
- Add:Balance brought forward 238.74.60 108.44.40
: ; AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 265 21.21 270.9233 =
: ;; APPROPRIATIONS ’ 5
Proposed Dividend G,84.87 13,69.74 %
: _Tax an Proposed Dividend 1,05.81 23279
‘ #  Transfereed to Ganeral Reserve 170.00 16,15.00 %
L 5 9,60.68 321753}
¢ Balance carried to Balance Sheet 255,60.53 2387460 |
i 265,21.21 2709213
. {__Earnings Per Share - Basic k& Diluted (3) i
i {Refer Note Nn12 of Schedule 20) 773 4745 %
‘%iwiJuNOtEg form‘“-‘g part Df thE AEEDUHtS&»bJ:IZS‘!‘??3“9&5«'»‘2’:::::2’?}!3?&h"4x‘w:'::7...'~_ -y saacdt L1 h ¥aardLLLIITY :i:;
As per our report attached (n behalf of the Board of Directors
For N.M. Raiji & Ca.. Sunil §. Sapre HV. Goenka Paras K. Chowdhary
Chartered Accountants Chief Financial Officer Vica Chairman Managing Director
CAYN. Thakkar H.M. Singh Rajpoot Hari L. Mundra
Partner Company Secretary Chairman - Audit Committee
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 20T Dated : May Z, 201
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Lonsolidated Cash Flow S tatement

for the year ended March 31, 2077
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4
e

BEATYIT LY

A LTS

i Tinlacs g
i : i
[ March 31, 2011 - ik} N
A EASH FLOW FROM DF‘ERATING ACTIVITIES : g
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX 41,8645 244,80.40 il
Adjustments for
Depreciation 35,93.99 2749.33
Interest incame . {12,47.88) {17.09.39)

> Unrealised exchange variation {net) B.57 (9.46.,23)

i Forgign Currency Translation Reserve on Consalidation (90.82) {94.27) i
Dividend income (36.27) (115.92) ;
Provision for Doubtful debt 57.08 86.97 :
Provision for.Doubtful debt - Written Back (55.32) -

Provisions no longer required Written back - (4037 (2,57.95)
Provislan for Expenses : 7.83.10 2.83
Advance/Bad debts written Off 41.28 9,31
Lass on sale of fixed assets - Net 7.86 50.79
' Impairment of Assets 30.37 -
Interest expense 78,95.83 57,2759 g
10,4762 55,03.06
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 152,34.07 298,83.46
Adjustments for: ‘
Trade and other recelvables {200,96.72) (290,81.35)
Trade payable / provisions 3014116 273,32.05
10,44.44 (1749.30) &
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 162,78.51 2823416 ¢
Direct taxes paid ' (19,09.30) (54.63.54) i
L (19,09.30) ' (54,63.54)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A) 143,69.21 22770.62
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES H '
Purchase of fixed assets . . (500,76.09) (236,41.38)
Fixed Assets Adjustment due to Consolidation - {34.45.45) &
Sale of fixed assets 36.52 88.95
Purchase of Investments (42,50.10) (56,90.72)
Sale of Investments ' 43,00.40 56,15.30
Interest receiver 278268 8,88.47 &
Dividend recelved 119.32 115,82 §
Goodwill on Consolidation {17.20.31) (3.27.73) T
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {B) (488,07.60) (263,96.74) |
S S AT TIE eI RS 4
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C ansal/dated C ash Flaw 5 tatement

for the year ended March 31, 2011

i:.?.‘.’ioi:'f!‘“‘ti:f.‘f?’i:;
i

:f!?1';;:.:555{;7-3?“'&Z;ZZT?%&&S:‘:FMG»&:"’.‘PU&;,.2.!3“&&.':.7?#“65:“

PEadIITIFRALITTRRLEII T RO STITIRELD

. Notes:

_ 3) All Figures in brackets are Outflows.

As per our report attached

© For N.M. Raiji & (0.,
¢ Chartered Accountants

Sunil 5. Sapre
Chief Financial Cfficer

CA Y.N. Thaldkar
Partner

H.N. Singh Rajpoot
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 201
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;L;ﬁ il _,1 i gﬁfé%dﬁ%?*zg*&g E %;r‘%gg&;gg:;:%%% March 31,2011 gg:“"“ R0
iff CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTWITIES _
; Issue of Convertible Warrants 6.05.42 ;
i Interest paid (103,73.72) § (64,30:19) &
f {Decrease)/increase inborrowings 357,49.62 45,43, 88 i
i Dividend paid ( inclusive of Dlvidend Distributian Tax ) {1595.84)§ (1,26. 58)
& Preference Shares on Consolidation - (B5.76) 88. 78
Minority Interest on Consolidation (10,40.53) 10,40.99 :
T NET CASH RECEIVED/(USED) IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) 232,78.73 (4,8312)
I(\]AE:B&DEIE}CREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH OR CASH EQUIVALENT (111,59.66) (41,09.24) ‘
Cash and cash equivalents - Opening balance 160,02.62 201186 %
'r Cash and tash eguivalents ~ Closing balance 4B8,42.96 160,02.62 §
: k NET.(DECREASE) / INCREASE AS DSCLOSED ABOVE {111,59.66) {41,09.24)
DB EEITIEREITIIIESLETRISEFINI L ST Tsid EEY BaTReBIETIITASITRANEAVIATAS P LT PRt ST Pt st L1 Atk FEub i 4 PREIITIE A FATIL o :

311) Previous year's Figures have been regrouped wherever flecessary.

2) Closing cash & cash Equivalents represents " Cash and Bank Balances * except ¥ 47.40 lacs ( Previous year ¥ 3446 lacs) lying
in separate bank accounts on account of unciaimed dividend which is not available for use by the Company.

On hehalf of the Board of Directors

HV. Goenla
Vice Chairman

Paras (. Chowdhary
Managing Director

Hari L. Mundra
Chairman - Augit Committee

Place : Mumbai
Dated : May 2, 2011
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.S'cbedu/e:

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

AT 4L raval ] Lt Lae

!‘L‘L’_‘EE

k W ; b ] L As at March 31, 20M
SCHEDULE 1
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised ; _ _
4.61,00,060 (4,61,00,000) Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each 46,10.00 46,10.00
3%,00,000  (39,00,000) Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each - 3,90.00 ‘ 3.90.00 ¢
1 1.00,00,000 (1.00,00,000) Unciassifed Shares of 7 10 each 10,00.00 10.00.00
; : ] - 60,0000 - -60.,00.00
{‘;_ Issued : - i
’:5 34244272 (34244272) Equity Shares of €10 EEI;h 34,2442 _ 34,2447 =
] (Includes 1,463 (1,463) Shares offered on ) i
‘ Right basis and kept In abeyance) - - i
: 34,7442 34,2443
Subscribed and paid-up : %
34243,534 (3,4243,534) Equity Shares af 710 each, fully paid-up 34,24 35 34,24.35
34,2435 34,24.35
SCHEDULE 2
JdRESERVES AND SURPLUS
%_ Capital Reserve : 2,7145 . 27145
? Share Premium : 165,23.65 ) 165,23.65 &
?‘; Capital Redermption Reserve : . : , 3,90.00 3,90.00 ;
-g General Reserve ; “ 3
' Balance - April 1, 2010 185,30.98 .J.169,15.98 i
i Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 1.70.00 1615.00 i
3 187,00.98 185,30.98 ¢
Revaluation Reserve ; i
& _ Balance - April 1, 2010 . - 4,68.32
¢ _ Add : Revalued during the year 58.52 - B
(Net of Deferred tax on Revaluation Surplus) %
Less : Depreciation - ‘ = {4,68.32) i
i 58.52 -4
1. _Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (Arising out of Consulida_tlon) {1,85.09) (94.26) §
\_Profit and Loss Account ' 255,60,53 738.74.60
! 613,20.04 5949642
] :
‘1‘ i
SCHEDULE 3 i
ASECURED LOANS
; Term Loans from Banks / Institutian 533451 225.85.71;
4 Working Capital Borrowinges A i
£ Workine Capital Demand Loan : : - 40,00.00
i __Cash Credit Facilities 12,31.89 44.66.36 |
% __Export Packing Credit 98,2769 33,39.58 §
Vehicle Inan . - 1215 8
644.04.69 345.04.86
iq fhnmTEy s Ry FRTER R TR e RS TR VLN S SRS g ST ek P 3 ”11%%2!‘!—2&&%53}3‘!‘3;&3!@%

In respect of the above loans, ¥ 82,22.52 lacs (Previous year ¥ 53,87.85 lacs) due and repayable within a year

3 108] CEAT Limited i'!f’i!/ff/.’/!/!!//!/!/!!//!/!!/I!/lf!/fii/!///!f'ffa’fn’f/.’I/."f/fi/!//f//f/!/!//!//!!/
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Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017

SCHEDULE 3
SECURED LOANS (Cantd.)

NOTES:

j) Term loan availed from Banks amounting to ¥ 20,63.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ 33,57.00 tacs) is secured by first pari passu charge
on movable (except Current Assets) and immovable properties of the Company situated at Bhantup and Nasik plants both
present and future.

2) Terms lnans aggregating to T 367,98.00 lacs {Previous year ¥ 100,14.53 |acs) fram Banks /Institution is secured by a first par/
. passucharge on the movable (Except Current Assets) and immovable properties of the Company, situated at Bhandup, Nasik
and Halol both present and future and second charge ranking pari passu inter se on all its Current Assets bath present and

future wherever located. '

3) Term Loan availed fram Banks/Institution of ¥ 56,25.00 lacs (Previous year ¥ 81,25.00 lacs) has Been secured by a first pari
| passucharge on the immovable property of the Company situated at RPG House, Worli, Mumbai.

4) Term Loan availed from Bank of ¥ 70,00.00 lacs {Previous year ¥ NIL) is secured by first pari passu charge on the immovable
properties of the Company situated at Bhandup Plant. The Company is in the process of creating the charge an its immovable
praperties located at Bhandup,

'5) Working Capital Borrowings availed from Cansortium of Banks led by Bank of India are secured by hypothecation by way
of first pari passu charge on all its Current Assets and by way of second pari passu charge on immovable and all movable
properties (excluding Current Assets) of the Comgany situated at Bhandup, Nasik and Halol Plants and RPG House at Worli,
Mumbai.

‘6) The vehicle loans availed from Banks and Financial Companies were secured by way of hypothecation of the vehicles financed
by themn.

7) Term Loan avalled from Banks of ¥ 8,40.76 lacs (Previous Year ¥ 11,15.58 lacs) is secured by gari passu charge on the Land,
Building and Plant and Machinery of Subsidiaries.

-B) Term Loan availed fram Banks of T 36.20 lacs (Previous Year ¥ 55.25 lacs) is secured by Stocks and Oebtars of Subsidiaries and
secondary mortgage gver their Plant and Machinery.

9) Term Loan availed from Banks of ¥ 218.79 lacs (Previous Year ¥ 14,94 lacs) is secured by Stocks and Debtors of Subsidiaries
and corporate guarantee.

110)Term Loan availed from Banks of ¥ 5,97.50 lacs (Previous Year T Nil lacs) is secured by Land, Building and Plant and Machinery
of two Subsidiaries.

11) Term Loan availed from Banles of ¥1,64.85 lacs (Previous Year ¥ 4.47 lacs) is secured by Plant and Machinery of Subsidiaries.

TR RRSERAAS ST IR TR RS LS LRI T Y I B R R LRSI IR PR S LBESIIIYTR R LTITITIR A A DT T B L T R PR S AI TIPSR AL TR T P R ARELTIETITRR AR L AR T ?3!?%%5&3&}1{:?.’!'?Hﬁcé{.::;:.::_;!'

ks
2

Zinlacs
e A0 | N
(iSCHEDULE 4 '
- UNSECURED LOANS 1

i  Term Loan from Bank " o L.1.55 _ 154.39 %

Public Deposits 83,23.84 76,52.53 !

¢ Deferred Sales Tax Incentive - {S1COM LTD) 4754 32 40,79.90 ¢
¢ Deposit from Dealers 270,57.09 2291019 }
i - 406,46.80 3479701
g::::xr_““’;-‘n::!n”““":;;,553;;;;;;1—_:;53;;z;;‘;,zg:gn’g.‘u;x?gﬂai.‘:H!g$ﬁ&iz:ﬂ't;’fs!éi::i:‘:ﬁﬂfﬂ’iﬂ"""”’ Fiaq ”’***‘*“’xm‘“m‘“‘“”*“’“iﬁ

In respect of the above loans, T 18,48.63 lacs (Previous year ¥ 22,38.52 lacs) due and repayable within a year

n’///l!.’fI/l.’///i!."ff!/i/."."n’!.".’i!/if."."f!f.’i!fff:'."fl."/i!/i/:’/!/.l’.’f!.’i!!//!."i! Annual Report 2010-11 | 103 3



Scbedu/es

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March F1, 2017

SCHEDULE 5

FIXED ASSETS
‘7 BEL T IIEN B Sanprrt T Lia b FETL L e I cRgevtELd AYTTIILLAS -t AL R ETIITI AT SIS
H
i
'g— .
ASSETS ' . cosT ' DEPRECIATION
e ¥ 1
t Asat | Additions/ |Deductions /3 AsatMarch | Asat jForthevear yones Marh !
,, April 1, 2010 | Adjustments Ad]ustmensz Nnz2on  §Apinz200 3 20100 Adjustm_gnna@m.zun 21,20 Marchsn.znné
4 i ents % i
OWNED i & B
t Land o 4 ¥ }
| Freehold 447119) 823031 - -f a2zmazz] 0 o} -k - -l 42294.22%
{4143775) | (33.79) (035)3  {414,7138) (% {-) (- ) G (wa4739)
i Leasehold 26,36.35| 354238 - G787 2,37.36 4318 -§ - 2.80.54]. - - . sBo8.20
{26,36.36) - ()% {26,35.36) {19418}k  (43.8) (=)} (2.3738) (] (23.92.00)
Buildings 131,94,65| 81,0548 -3 13,001 3746195  3,04.38 -5 405057 C ) 724958
1 (31,6272) (31.93) LI (319485 ) (34,79.87)F (2,66.32) B a9} | O (944846)1
Plantand i o o H ) . ]
Machinery £9010.54| 4415577 97841 11306847 43277304 291818| 92364 4610312 30.37] 669,34.98%
.| (66514.03) | (27.06.02)| (2,09.514 (6390,10.54) (408,01.30)% (26,38.74) | (16274) 8 (43277300 =) (257.33.24)§
Furniture and i :? i B
Fixtures 772481 . 5760 o 193% B281s] . 59555 - amng 1318 64243 - 1,85.72
(8.00.858)| (22.83) (51.20) 7248)] (6042  (3140) {3727} (5,95.55) {-} {1.76.93)
Vehicles 63186| 2,01.52 7122 7.64.36 3,74.52 40.35| 3295 3,82.02 - 3,82.34
B {7,74.44) (4.08) (56.56)% (63196} (409648 (42.50)| (7752)% (3.74.62) B (25734
1 software 5,6343] 10455 0.6 66737 452250  gs85| 0.51_? 54850 oy A2
H - {5.21.51) 1 (42.20) (0.28) (5.6343))  (2.86.50)F (166.04)| (0.28)% (4,52.26) S 9 {111.17)
% Brand ; -| 55,29.80] . -¥i 56,29.80 -4 1729 ~3 117:29 -1 55728
i 0 ) (-)E - B S O o] T [B}
Technical ' 2 L .
# Knowhow - Bas i 61459 4 o059 - 0.59 ‘1 suao0
. ) ) )5 - (—)5‘ (SR (—)_% ) G =i
1,282,80.61| £32,36.82 171.604 191345.820 486,83.28§ 35,69.01] 127234 5212506 30.37] 1.391,90.40
(12584766} | (28.50.85) | (417.90)1 (12828060 (a5772.90¥ (31.8878) (2,77.81) £(486,83.28) -| (795,9733)
JLEASED g
Plantand B T : '
Machinery | " 10,04.10 - - 10,040 84241 65| - B74.06] 130,04
- {10,04.10) {-) =5 ooao]  (Banzel (3165 ()i (84241 ) {1,61.69)
10,0410 - - 10,04.10 B,42 41} 31.65 -t 874.06 - .1,30.04
{i0,04.10) (~) (-8 {10,0410) (8.10.76) {31.65} () (8,42.41) {-) {1,51.69)
1,292,84.71] 632,36.82 1,71.60 1.923.49.93] 495725.69 '36,00.66 1 1,77.23% 5209912 30,37 1,393,20.44
(1,268,51.7p} | (28,50.85)|. (41780} {1,292,84.71) {465,83.67)% (32,19.83) {2,77.81) % {495,25.69) ()} (797,59.02)]
ﬁCapitaIWurl(—ln:iﬂrugress-Inll:lrudes Ad\}é}E?ag‘alnst‘_Capital Account w e N - 127,23.41 1
q-apital v Bress -| _ ; e e e o)
1,520 43.85
_ lg.nan!ss.ssg

» o CEATLImitEdJlf'!/.v'//!/1’;’z'///f’l!/!!/fa’////ffff’ff/f’/.v’f'!!f'ff/.’f.v'a’l//ff/.’i!/!ff!/f/!:’//f///!.’//!/f




Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2071

SCHEBULE 5
_EIXED ASSETS (Contd.)

Notes:
1) Building includes ¥ 0.11lacs {Previous Year T0M jacs) being value of shares held in co-operative housing societies.
"2) Free Hold Land includes lang acquired at Halal, Gujarat vide Memarandum of Uncierstandmg {(MOU) for ¥ 1.75 lacs which s subjett to
registratlnn formalities

"3} Lease Hald Land includes fand acquired at Additional Ambernath Industrial Area, Ambernath, District Thane, Maharashtra from Maharashtra

. Industrial Develogment Corporation {MIDC) vide sanctlon letter dated Octraber 30, ZDDS The Company has taken physical possession of this
tand nn September 1, 2010 which is subject to registration formalities.

- 4) Fixed assets cost includes assets revalued during last five years on the basis of valuation repart submitted by approved vaivers about their
market value as summasised helow :
i: PR Rty v"A_l"‘3Z:Z:,'Qa;‘:2:‘%%i::’:!!tss:::"ﬂ‘&‘2.‘?!‘*:-‘—":3’?5&5:.!?‘»a‘i:.?" FITITRERTTINNILIIY
12*"" 4 w 2hidy FEES ‘1"“' Fsp gt prozIrasia b5 L h.::w‘ “* -. Fid h.“* %, “ 4 S 2
i %};g}g i e B W"‘“‘“ﬁ%ﬁ ‘ﬁ’é“*égéffééf

) g”%?dﬁ?}’? gfmt % zﬁf%}’% 'y ﬁa 11} '=L§§_§8 ?: 12 ‘! b % faafl ixgw ,.r/ _ % J’
i it '“f el : § 5&04& Vel “fmofs MFBI ,;2 Efz :
D ‘ 'i
iland ' 280,73.68 i 2533 ?é :
gﬁﬁuildingsk___ H 74290} Ef 1143 g | 7347
£Plant & Machmery’, e 19288 323% 1,88.95 :
- E 290,08.76 39.99 | 289,68.77
L’?Nf TTRFREsLITIRBELLT ”'??‘;b., PRPREALIT IR R bl ST e AT TIPSR ITTITINNEIITIPRSRLL :"‘ﬂﬁx,i"‘:v-'sn;‘,“::?"ﬁh-SZ.:T"?h-...‘“hta&“"'155‘., ?isf:‘.‘,.‘?!ﬁxu eI TTERSSIITPFERRIITINNALLT
. 5) The pre-uperative BXpanses (PUE) apportu:ned aver the fixed assets of Halol Project capitalised an commenicarment of Commercial
Production
?(!‘:333 L3IRTTLALF TSRS EEEFIAAET TS S ETTIRSPRLIT PN REASTIETRLLL “7!6#: SR et Errinsa b EEERIPS L LIRSS LR TEAE ?!tb!
% inlacsh
? SRSt 15 H Hip T T
% ;8L ;é-ﬁ:i ‘?&z{%\séﬁ ?ggff"& f F E“fzégnaﬁg g i Amount
Borrowing Cost . ' 32,5849
i Material Cansumnption . ‘ L 21,25.05
,ﬁ Personnel Cost ‘ o 14.48.26
¢ (Consultancy & Preofessional Fees 8.78.41
¢ Power b Fuel Consumgtion | 62517
i Ceneral Expenses 5,8713
i Bank Charges 3130
i Excise Duty - 2,97.32
"¢ Travelling & Conveyance 2,91.35
i Repairs & Maintenance 50,57
i TOTAL 99,18.86
5 Less: < ,
i Sales During Trial Run 21,3154
i__Interest / Dividend earned N 1.65.86
Be
! _ NET POE CAPITALISED 76,21.06
?’,’%-3?.:21:5""1{3:':.'!:&"ZFZ:f’fii:I:.’.’.ir'a" 2FEERRIT 53 SILEFSENIT FralZ FITTIED
. B) During the year an impairment charge of ¥ 30.37 lacs was made on Plast & Machinary of Subsidiaries that were identified as non-

perfarming Assets

7) The Plant & Machineries of the Subsidiary Companies were revalued during the year 2010-11 by an independent Valuer & Surplus of
Z.1,02.06 lacs arising from revaluation was transferrad {o Revaluation Reserve.

/l/.’f/."i///I/."H/’i!//f/.".’/f."fl/i!a’//!.’fI!/H."n'/.v’."H/’.’I!.’l!!i!.’/f!///!.’f!//a’/ Arnual Report 2010-11 m»



" Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheer as at March 31, 2077

SCHEDULE &6
INVESTMENTS (AT COST)
ﬁ&lﬂ:ﬂm:mn:m&m«n‘mmﬁmnmw*!:nmzmugmwuniu_... TITGE I IS HETTRETLTIT A, “MW:.:.ﬁ:.’:;;h»e.zrﬁnmnwsm:’zuemuurmw.:aﬂﬁ
] : : ' Tin Iacs%
: ﬁgﬁ‘gﬁ =0 Asat ; : 1L
. March 31, 4 atchi3!
: 2011 il ?
- s} s
L 3 : [
§A  LONG TERM - FULLY PAID ; i 2
1 :
£ EQUITY SHARES : i
il____UNQUOTED {TRADE) _ ‘ (
i Rado Tyres Limited. 10§ 16,06,350 41778 16,065,350 41.77 ¢
k . 4177 41,77 |
1 _ Td
‘ ;
Y'B  CURRENT ;
UNQUOTED ( NON-TRADE ) — i
i
J;Ez Units Units i %
@ | { Nos.) ‘ { Nos.} g
| i il
LIguiD ! i
Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan -Institutional 10 - -4 32,71,038.86 5,00.05 ;]
IDFC Cash Fund - Super Institutional Plan 10 - - : -1_4889270.22 4 . 500,05 ﬂ
Templeton India Treasury Mzanagement Account - ;i
Super Insitutional Plan - DOR * 1.0008  s0.00562f - so0045) - -0
Kotak Floater Short Term - DDR* |__10% 989397707 10,00.89 - -4
i ICICI Prudential Liquid Super (P - DDR¥ 10{ 10,00,616.65 ] 10.00.84 - - g
d Peerless Liquid Fund - Super Institutional - DDR* 10 £ 1,00,06,68557§  10,00.82 - -
Taurus Liguid Fund - Super Institutional Plan - DOR* 1,000 ¢ 65,070.16 6,50.74 - ey
| T *s :
LIQUID PLUS ' B i
Birla Sun Life Short Tarm Fund - Institutional 10} - - -J_49,97535.80%  5,00.07
fCICI Prudential Flexible Income Plan Premium - 100§ - - 2,83,72819 3.00.001
UT! Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Plan . 1,000 - -1 9998963} 10,!‘_10%
LICMF Savings Plus Fund 10 | - - 4100,00,780,69 ¢ 10,00.07 ¢
SBI-5HF- Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional Plan 10 3% - - 499754176 ¢ 500.04
1 1 42,5375 43,0040
1
E AGGRECGATE COST OF UNQUOTED INVESTMENT {A+B) 42,9552 ' 434217 ¢
%!z”manmm W A ISR YA, zzm&m:;iﬂ:tuthnnéx;::mm I &‘ﬁ'i;un:ﬁﬁﬁ‘.?l; ¥ dwuaﬂiumumzmwzg

* Daily Dividend Reinvestment

» 12 CEATLImIted/f/!i////f/n’//if!fff’f/I//I!/if!/i!//[//!/!//.’/I{/ff/f’f!f/f!/!//f/n’!//f’/i//!/l//ff’f’i




5chedu/es

farm/ng part of the L onsolidated Balance Sheet as at March 7, 20717

'SCHEDULE &
INVESTMENTS {Contd.}
‘Notes :
: Fallowing investments were acqmred and sold dunng the year
T I ETIA N PR RSN RS TY S ITITILESAERTRININE SRy LISREAE T dES {S AT ATEEEELITIIVE SAILY SATRENTRATIITCYSAGE :5!‘%&&5?:7::?‘5952‘:2225”5»’322:3’.‘!7!-?5i:::i“:?&i" TTerbEEsIITIRERFIFINTS ﬁi
§ re— - ’ LE
b g':g;.»“ i m § 53 : wa tﬁifzgg g‘f%f ;, gsé zflg; ‘;gg;rm igmg: fgmé 2;553 g; ‘,? g % ;51
% ﬁﬁﬁﬁz f»% .. NS Mz?.?g ¥£§§ ; ; ini ,-,._ﬂitrgggiﬁ 1 mmﬁm :gi ‘ ? §§§.§ iéi’i%?i
; LIQU!D DAILY DI\IIBEND RE!NVEST PLAN .
i Axis Linuid Fund - Institutional : 1,000 71,291.34 i
. Birla Sun Life Savines Fund - Institutional. . 0f  7022489.81%
* Birla Sun Life Cash Plus - institutional Premium 1a __2_33513_1_51_07 7 &
% Baroda Pioneer Liguid Fund - Institutional 10f 1,8496,84581%
% Baroda Pioneer Treasury Advantage Fund - institutional i 10 1,00,11,668.55 i
% Canara Roheco Liguid Fund - Institutional . 10 29,85,124.39 4
" Canara Robeco Liguid Super Institutional Fund ' 10 |_4.72.60,804.79 ¢
1" DSP BlackRock Liguidity Fund - Institutional Plan 1,000 6,70,45746 ¢
% - DWS Insta CashrPlus Fuad - Super Institutional Plan : 10§ 9255039353
i BNP Parlbas Overnight Fund - [nstliutional 10 |..2.6346194.89
¥ Templeton India Treasury Managemment Account - Super |r|51tut|cma| Plan 1,000 8,55,279.84 ;
i HDFC Cash Management Fund - Savings Plan 10 - 1,69,30,215. 52;;
# - _HDFC Liguid Fund Premium Plan 10)__16.31906.82¢
¢ 108l Liguid Fund 104 1.80157148.68 &
i Kotak Liguid (Institutional Premium} 10]._718,04,108.61 }
Kotak Flogter Short Term 10 1434547772 32
L & T Liguid Institutional Fund 10} _1.03,81,908.09 %
ICICI Prudential Liguid Super Institutional Plan ] 1009 25,01,508. 92 i
- i IDFC Cash Fund - Super Institutional Plan 10 ?
© ¢ LIC Nomura MF Liguid Fund : . 10{__3.91.68,015.51 i
Y _ Peerless Liguid Fund - Super institutional 10| 4.06,28,312.32 ¢
- Reliance Liguid Fund - Treasury Plan - Institutional 10§ 21593.669.82
" Rellance Liguidity Fund 10 21542,82568
i 58| - Magnum Insta Cagh Fund ‘ 100 173,26,79792 3
% 5Bl - Premier Liguid Fund -Super Institutional 10 1,19,66,725.08 §;
~ Spndaram Money Fund - Super Institutional 10)_ 49,53,506.29 §
TATA Liguid Super High [nvestment Fund i

“Taurus Liguid Fund - Super Institutional Plan
UTI Money Market Mutual Fund :

s

EQUHJ PLUS - DAILY DIVIDEND REINVEST PLAN
Birla Sunlife Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutiona]
DWS Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional

TAIFTIIR B EAIDITE N 3l LT

Templeton {ndia Ultra Short Bopd Fund Insitutionz! Plan | 50,04 D4 672 54 i
Kntak Flexi Debt Scheme institutional 0] 50,0519 85_~
ICICY Prudential Uitra Short Term Premium Plus ' 10§ 150.0468318;
“H4 [CIC) Prudentiat Flexible income Plan Premium 100 406.33 i
% LIC Normura MF income Plys Fund 10} 13022,378,30
% LIC Nomura MF Savings Plus Fund 1 7032,843.96¢ 16
; Reliance Medium Term Fund 1§ 292B567] 55717 i
I RELIANCE MONTHLY INTERVAL FUND SERIES |-Institutional 100 5047, 185 43°
£ Reliance Money Manager Fund - Institutional 1,000 ElEl 970.73 £
#__ SBI-SHF- Ultra Short Term Fund - Institutional Plan - i8] T 4,096.26%
 gundaram Ultra Short Term Fund - Super Insitutional - ' 10§  49,96,827.83 ¢
¢ Taurus Ultra Short Term Bond - Super Insitutional 1,000 50170.75
4 UT| Treasury Advantage Fund - Institutional Plan 1000f 96.60 1
e BRI T A ARSI TT PO TITI AR AFAIIETE Frdhas TIFFEEL ‘::‘:’!&#Ei‘::???!é’ii!.‘::jé,iK:Zi:Z:‘,E*.?z;an:i,“.i-i'- ¥ s
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Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31,2077

AT A T I  e - — 5 — IS A T ISR S x
;1 : ‘ Tin Iac:?;
RediNE

I SCHEDULE 7
INVENTORIES ‘

_ Stores and Spares (Net) ) . , 71561F 29,18.72
| Stock - in - Trade : ‘ , '
Raw Materials [(including in transit ¥ 50,46.27 lacs) 254,80.35 21,8792

i (Previous year ¥ 36,83.59 lacs)] '

% Semi-Finished Goods - 2948941 38,8113
Finished Goads [(including in transit 1,02.94 lacs) 27549.06 ' 1373213
{Previous year ¥ 1,95.43 lacs)] _ )

586,93.96 41719.90
SCHEDULE 8

i SUNDRY DEBTORS

2 Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six
months )

Considered Good 7273 ' 1.14.63
Considered Doulrtful 17777 | 213.77
Less : Provided for g (17777 1 (213.77)
_ , 72.73 : 114.63
i Other Debts ‘ :
Considered Good 489,04.99 _ 383,18.33
489,77.72 390,32.96
As atMarch  As at March
31, 2011 31, 2010
Sundry Debtors }
Secured ' 197.68.39  196,88.57
Unsecured 292,09.33 1934439
i TOTAL 489,77.72 390,32.96
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Schedu/es

forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011
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g
Tin Iacs i

;z'g"z 'iﬁm p;

A As at March 31, 2011 i‘k 5 gifg:.

na s ishiaibity
iSCHEDULE 9 i
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
4 [CashaonHand 18.00 19.70
¢ Remittance in Transit _ 3239.04 29,64.65 |
% With Scheduled Banks : '
In Current Accounts 12,59.67 26,14.08 §
i tn Deposit Accounts "~ 3,20.86 103.99.18 i
i In Marein Deposit Accounts * - ' 539 5,01
g In Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 4740 34.46 &
i 48,90.36 160,37.08 ?i
i * Ljen with Bank i
, : - P
"*SCHEDULE 10
i LOANS AND ADVANCES - - o
i Advances receivable in Cash or Kind or for Value ta be received 40,89.61 | 56,7276
£ Balances with Customs, Port Trust, Excise , etc.: 75,66.50 379079 §
i Advance payment of Tax {net of provisian) 12,53.849 34334 4
‘¢ interest Receivables 30.56 15,64.52 &
‘i Other Receivables ‘ 89.42 11,0701
'i __Loans, Advances and Deposits {considered douhtful) : 13.33 333354
i Less: Provided for 1333} (33.33) £
i : 130,69.93 114,78.22 ¢
iscuenuus 1
: CURRENT LIABILITIES i
¢ Acceptances 638.25.21}: 418,02.81¢
- & Sundry Creditors : i
4 Due ta Micra, Small and Medium Entergrise -L -
i Due to Others 297,0745 735,31.99 §
B Interest Accrued but not due 5,93.22 4,06.95 i
}i Deposit from Others ' i : 62.52 55. 52 H
1 Other Liahilities . 139,51.21 10,81 20 i
E’ Not due as an March 31, 207 ‘ f
! Unclaimed Dividends : 4740 3446
g Unclaimed interest angd matured Deposits 0.08 0.32%
| 1,081,87.09 769,73.25¢
i i
»SEI-EEDULE 12
' PROVISIONS ) ' i
13__ Proposed Dividend 70175 13,69.74
¢ Corparate Tax on Proposed Dividend 1m0 2,3279¢
% Retirement and other Employee Benefits ] 20.39.73 21,29, 30! :
£ i 28.52.58 3731.83; ”i
. g:'!??ki:?::?ﬁéii?::’.?tﬁﬁi‘::‘:! FETIITSEESIIILASFITENILFFRALIL ¥ FEPRTTETERY RTINS ERINTITESASIIIIN FAEEITITIINSERSST !?t&i.’,:::??kix;:.‘:?”ih“:f:!}&!&’;
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Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Profit and.Loss Account for the year ended March 37, 2017

s

TSR ErEY

Tinlacs E
2010-11
SCHEDULE 13
OTHER DPERATING INCOME :
Sale of Scrap 11,86.09 10,04.07
Profit on Sale of Assets 9.32 0.38
Profit on Sale of investment - 0.07
Interest 12,47.88  17.09.39
Royalty 1,35.81 1,34.90
Provislons for Doubtful Debts / Advances Written Back 55.32 -
Provisions no longer required written back 4017 2,57.95
Dividend on Investments - 36.27 115.92
Covernment Grant - 13,7146 -
Miscellaneous 11,30.80 8,83.20
5213.12 41,05,88
SCHEDULE 14
MATERIALS
Raw Materials
" Stock - Aprif1, 2010 - 201,06.67 60,97.61
Add : Purchases 2,753,78.39 1,873.41.06
) ' 2,954,85.06 1,934,38.67
Less : Stock - March 31, 2011 204,34.08 201,06.67
2,750,50.98 - 1,733,32.00
SCHEDULE 15
COST OF TRADED 0DDS SOLD
Stock - April1, 2010 16,68.40 9,43.63
Add : Purchases 68,41.9 161,71.40
: 85,10.31 - 171,15,03
-Less : Stock - March 31, 207 7,91.28 16,68.40
7719.03 154,46.63
SCHEDULE 16
PERSONNEL .
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 178,25.77 161,22.74
Provident Fund, Gratulty Fund and Superannuation Scheme etc. 17,7791 17,35.21
Welfare Expenses ' 19,60.25 17,7513
- 213,63.93 196,33.08

BREMTTIATARE AT
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5chedu/es

forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2077
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P vtodvngy S8 Pt mh il 4

% SRR 2010-11
SCHEDULE 17 U |1
'uUTHER EXPENSES
4 Conversion Charges ' 105,67.55 w______ﬁjﬂﬂf}_&ﬂf'
ffi Stores and Spares Consumed 281588) Z21.08.214
©  Powerand Fuel 1286859 M267
¥ Freight and Delivery Charges 7785850 64,3148
:  Rent agizof 53388
& Lease Rent 2,34.34 2,63.93 §
't Rates and Taxes 13246 38708 ';:
i Insurance B 2.36.889 223.29¢
§  Repalrs:
i Machinery 26,60.70 709832
i Buildings 3,814t 16782}
i - Others 34.82 9135
g 12693 f
j__ Travelling and Conveyance ' 13,28.97
¢ Printing and Stationery . i 141968 11234
i Directors' Fees B 875 1035
Auditars' Remuneration : e ' i
“ Audit Fees 23.99 22 87
i Taxation Matters 2.52 5.55
Other Services (Certification, Tax Audit, etc.) 23.03 19.03 ;
g Reimbursement of Expenses 2.37 440
‘ 51.91 :
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 45,5724 2243, 79 i
Rebates and Discounts 46,56.94 33.88 47
Commission 41,95.83 36,55.34 ¢ 3
Communication Expenses 5,73.28 5,67.02
Bad Debts Written off 72.02 2,060 ;
Less : Provision for doubtful debts written : +
back to the extent provided (30.74) (2,01.29) »
i | | w28 i
% Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances n 57.08 i
"% Loss on Asstes Sold / Discarded o 47.55 51 17
. i Factory Expenses 5,16.43 2,27 07 i¥
% Legal Charges 1,26.01
¢ Finance Charges 2206298
:  Foreign Exchange Fluctuations (Net) 73.38
" {_ Professional and Consultancy Charges 9,71.83
i Commission to Directors ) 35.00
-+ General Expenses B 20,82.81 16,0142
600.24.72 473,80.69 |

'f/f’/!/'."fp'/.".’la’.".’///if/.".’ff'."if/.".’/!/."f/f'/////.’l:’/f’f/.v'//f!a’.’lf.’/f!!f’f/!/.’/!// Annual Repart 2010-11 7 »



Schedu/es

forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 77, 2077

W 2 . T -

4

i

:

i Tiniacs
E‘ 2010-11
SCHEDULE 18
INTEREST _ - ‘
_On Term Loans 273787 21,85.51
_Others ' . 525796 35,41.08
' ' 73,95.83 57,2759 |
i i
“SCHEDULE 19
DECREASE / (INCREASE) IN STOCK
Stock - April 1, 2010
Semi-Finished 12,78.7%9 18,77.649
Finished 118,68.30 113,84.96 ;
) 131,47.09 132,62.65
4 . Stock - March 31, 201, i
Semi-Finished ‘ 29,48.94 12,78.79
Finished . 266,54.83 118,68.30 B
296,03.77 131,47.09
{164,56.68) 115,56
Differential Excise Duty on Opening and _
Closing Stack of Finished Goods 1,91.77 2,83291
(152,64.91) 3,98.84 §

» 118 EEATL]mEtEdf’f//!a’!/f’f}/!!//I!flf//!//fl/."f'/!//f.ff'/f/l‘f/!/i!///!///!///!/!/i!///a’/lf’f.f//!//f/{




Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011

SCHEDULE 20
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS .

7

2)

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

Consalidated Financial Statements of CEAT Limited and its subsidiary company incorparated outside India are prepared
tased on line by line consolidation by adding together the hook values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and
expenditure as per audited consolidated financial statement of the subsidiary. '

The consolidated financial statements are drawn up by using accounting policies as disclosed in the notes below and are
prepared to the extent possible in the same manner as the Company's Individual financial statements. Intra-company
raceivables and payables, income and expenses are eliminated. Separate disclosure is made of minority interest. Minority
interest represents-the minority shareholders' proporticnate share of net assets and income of Company's subsidiary. The
financial statements of the following subsidiary have been considered for consolldation along with its interest in ather
Subsidiaries/Associates.

‘,‘.ﬁkmf!‘?iﬁu!?!*S&.i;;ﬁ:‘!i;»&1‘.‘2133}!?;:::525552::::{33?:::::5&i':::!.‘.‘.‘f“;i::!i!ﬁ:::—'.?‘?"*;-"—;:!‘:‘!#;1:::2!55!53::,.’3&!3“:2,‘!?$F»;:m‘ifu:&.’:?ﬂ?i&:’::!&*i&i::ﬂHx'“.'.i:!!hzill:.‘!?“u»:ﬁ*'?ii

e SE
T

: Associated CEAT Holdings Co. (Pvt) Ltd. lsri Lanka _ | 100.00% 54.84% &

. .

2010-1

i1

—,1»—-._:1'!)4&".‘::!1'35;1"::7:'3::F?i’;:.'!!'?‘«)‘i’::::‘tf“?i’-;:F::Z‘l‘"552‘::.",‘f?}‘w'T:::.?_E:'-?ﬂ:::b"?;:‘::!:Fi’:::‘l:i‘,i\r:.':z!i‘jsuu-mi‘”ﬁ‘d.‘:.'!‘ﬁEi_:-‘s-’f-u& ¢
The difference between the costs of investments in subsidiaries over the boaok vaiue of the subsidiaries’ net assets on the
date of acquisition is recognised in the consalidated financial statements as soodwill where the difference is positive and as
capital reserve where the difference is negative.

“':E“?h‘:?’.‘?“i;?::.’5"!‘1"‘:

The financial statements of the foreign subsidiary for the year anded March 31, 2011 were converied into indian currenty as
per Accounting Standard (AS11) “The effect of changes in Fareign Exchange Rates".

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) FIXED AS5ETS

ixad Assets are stated at cost / revalued cost wherever applicable. Cost comprises of cost of acguisition, cost of
improvements, borrawing cost and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to the condition for its intended use. Cost
also intludes direct expenses incurred upto the date of capitalisation / commissioning.

Leased Assets camprise of assets acquired under Finance Leases which have been stated at cost of acquisition plus
entire cost component amortisable over the useful life of these assets.

B) BORROWING COST
Borrowing costs include interest, fees and other charges incurred in canneciion-with the borrowing of funds and is
considered as reverue expenditure for the year in which it is incurred except for borrowing costs attributed to the
acquisition / improvement of qualifying capital assets and incurred till the commencement of commerciat use of the
assat and which Is capitalised as cost of that asset.

C) DEPRECIATION .
Depreciation is provided on the Straight Line Method, at the rates prescribed in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.
Certain Plants have been treated as Cantinuous Process Plants based on technical and other evaluations.
.easehold land is amertised over the period of the lease. '
Software expenditure have teen amortised over a period of three years.
Technical Know-how and Brands are amortised overa period of twenty years.

In case of a subsidiary cormpany, depreciation is provided for on a straight line basls at such rates as will write off various
cost of the assets aver the period of their expected useful lives.

M’i/I//f!.’//f//!/!!!.",’/!."I!."f'l/f‘/,’!/.’/!//f//!f/!//!/ii!f’f/;'/.’!!."i/!ifa’!.’f!.’f Annual Report 2010-1 m »



Schedules -
forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the vear ended March 31, 2017
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.) -

o)

E)

F)

G)

H)

)

The principle annual rates of depreciation used are as follows:

Buildings -~ 5%
Plant & Equipment - 5to 20%
Motorvehicles - 20%

The depreciationﬁ:harge in respect of the subsidiary company is not significant in the context of the Cunsoli_dated .
Flnancial Statements, '

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Subsidiary Companles: At each reporting date an assessment is made as to whether thers |5 an indication that an
Asset may be Impaired. Where the ca rrying amount of an Asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the Asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future Cash Flows

are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the -
time vaiue of money and the risk specific to the Asset. An impairment loss is reversed if there has heen a change In

the estimate used to determine the recaverable amount, An Impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the

Assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss has been recognised. - : :

INVESTMENTS

Investments being long term are stated at cost. Provision against diminution in the value of Investments is made in case
diminution is considered as other than temparary, as per criteria laid down by the Board of Directors after tonsidering
that such investments are strategic in nature.

Currant Investment is stated at lower of cost or fair vaiue. _
In respect the subsidiary Company the Investment is stated at Cast less provislon for diminution in value if any.

INVENTORIES

Raw materfals, Stores and spares and Stock-in-process are valued at weighted average Cost. Finished Goods are valued
at lower of cost or net realisable value. Material-in-transit is valued at cost,

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Cross Sales include excise duty and are net of trade discounts / sales returns / sales tax.
interest Is accaunted on an accrual basis. :

Dividend Is accounted when right to recelve payment Is established,

EXPORT INCENTIVE
Export Incentives are recognised in the year of entitlement and credited to the Raw Material Cansumption Aecount.,

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Lrants relating to Fixed Assets are reduced from the cost of Fixed Assets and Grants related to revenue are shown
separately as part of Othar Income.ass Account. o

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS »

Foreign currency transactions other than those covered by forward contracts are recorded at current rates, ' -
Forward prémiq in respect of forward exchange contracts are recagnised over the life of the contract.

Manetary Assets and Liabilities denominated In foreign currency are restated at year-end rates. _

All exchanege gains and losses arising out of transaction / restatement, are accounted forinthe Profit and Lns.s Account,

The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiary are translated in Indian Rupees, which Is the functional
currency of the Company, as follows:
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Schedules

forming part of the Consoligated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2011
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

Assets and liabilities at rates of exchange ruling at year end. -

Income statement items at the average rate for the year.

Exchange rate differences arising on the translation of consolidated foreign subsidiary is transferred to the Foreign
Currency Transiation Reserve.

K) LEASE RENTALS

The cost components in respect of Finance leases is being amortised over the primary lease period or effective life of the
Assets as depreciation on Leased Assets and the interest camponent is charged as a period cost.

Secondary Lease rentals are being charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Leases that do not transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases and
recognised as expenses as and when payments are made over the lease term.

L) RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Revenue expenditure on research and development is recognised as an expense in the year in which it is incurred.
Capital expenditure is shown as an addition to the fixed assets and are depreciated at applicable rates.

M) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

—r

a) Defined Contribution plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Schemes such as Provident Fund, Superannuation, Employees State Insurance
Contribution and Labour Welfare Fund are charged to the Profit and Loss account as and when incurred.

_ b) Defined Benefit plan

The Company also provides for retirement / post-retirement benefits in the form of gratuity and Leave encashment.
Company's lizbility towards these henefits is determined using Project Unit Credit Method. These benefits are
pravided based on the Actuarial \aluation as on Balance Sheet date by an Independent actuary.

¢) - Short term benefits are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account of the year in which the related
service is rendered.

- d) Long term leave benefits are provided as per actuarial valuation as on Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary
using project unit credit method. '

e) Termination benefits are recognised as an expense as and when incurred.

f) In respect of foreign subsidiary, the provision for gratuity has been made as per 5ri Lankan Accounting Standard
16 - Employee Benefit. Expenditure in respect of Subsidiary Is not significant in the context of the consolidation of
financial staterments.
N) TAXES ON INCOME
a) Current Tax
Indian Company: Current Tax is determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1361.
Eoreign Company: Tax on incame is recognisad in accardance with the applicable local laws

b) Deferred Tax Provision: Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between the accoumting income and the taxable
income for the year, and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted on the Balance Sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient
futusre taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

f'f!//:’/!///.’i!.".’lf'.".’J'.".’f/'."l!f’flf.’[!.’l!."/;'.v'p'f'!.",’fH’i.n'///!ii!!/!!.’f/."/f!ir’!/f! Annua! Report 2010-11 121 2



Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2077
SCHEDULE 20 {Contd.)
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| Tin Iacsg
R 2010-11 A %
13} CONTRACTS REMAINING TO BE EXECUTED: . H
Estimated amount of contracts remainin g to be exéruted an Capital Account 91,65.87§ - 258,13.3?ﬁ
and not provided for - net of advance paymeints g
4 Investment commitment o . - 10,96.52 g
4) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES: j
a} Direct and Indirect Taxation Matters on which there are decisions of ihe
i appellate authorities in the Company's favour, but appeals made by tax ' 5
3 authorities .
income Tax ' ' 24136 2,04.60 |
_ Wealth Tax -~ - - : 673 " B73
k Exclse Duty / Service Tax ' 403,721 .. 40,75.05
L Sales Tax 4753 ‘ISE;
b) Direct and Indirect Taxation matters inrespect of which  the Company is in L
Jppeal ' ' ' _ _ ¢
Income Tax 14,4126 10,3341 1
Excise Duty / Service Tax ‘ ©2,62.07 1,64.96 ¢
: Sales Tax _ . 1 43,7018 £0,14.86 |
i o Disputed demands of Octroi Duty . 1.70.77 . 156.86 Y
d) Bills discounted with Banks and Finance Companies : : 2752.041 20,35.86
e) Corporate Guarantees given an behalf of athers - Covered by indemnity : L
undertakings from RPG Enterprises Ltd, S _ 25,50.00 25,50.00 E R
Corporate Gurantee given to Indian Bank & Hatton National Banlk by CEAT . . E
: Kelani Holdings {Pvt.) Ltd. On behalf of Assaciated EEAT {Pvt.) Ltd. - 4,53.68 47851
é_ f} The Company has given Indemnity in respect of Lease transactions entered : ' i
i into with ICICI Bank Ltd., liability for which is Indeterminable ‘, - -
' 8) Export obligation under Export Promotion Council Guarantee Schame 396,07.83 -4
| | &
js) CLAIMS AGAINST THE COMPANY NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBTS ;
g {ESTIMATED): . i
i i) inrespect of labour matters N 6,48.00 E 5.27.24 §
;;_ ii) other claims ' ‘ 1235100 mosa8 u
6) RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES ) ' %
Capital o 1,55.02 40.77}%
I Revenue ' - . 41749 28185}
% | "
E’ ¥ TIERLITIE ,,.,;;.ﬂ“.':r;znnnqu.\:naitv:.:.‘«a!&t::i&?:’:ﬂgf::;m::ﬁztﬁ"'“""" RIS LTI LRIt e st pnad ant TR ;
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5chedu/es

forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31,2077
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

7} OPERATING LEASE
i aase rental of

Subsidiary Companies, has been charged 1o Profit & Loss account.

-K.Z"’??S'm"’?«‘& SIS TSRS ITDAERIITIFALITN ’{ﬂ;.,’n.t'x LTTTERREAIIY

S TTe LR LS

I
]
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e
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¥ « i 4 Sty ; £
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As on

March 31, 20M

.,_Fur a period not later than one year
%For a period |ater than one year but not later than five years
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¥ 2,34.34 lacs (Previous year ¥ 2,63.53 lacs), of which ¥ 13.04 lacs (Previous year I 7.02 lacs) related to
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s

E
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LEREEE P

A) RETIREMENT BENEFITS - HOLDING COMPANY

The required disclosure under the Revised Accounting Standard 15 is given befaw

, : Brief description: The type of Defined benefit ptans is as follows.

GRATUITY

The employees Gratuity Fund Scheme
present value obligation is determined

LEAVE ENCASHMENT

Syl o b S ETT I 54

reERSELITERiRINITT

managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined benefit plan. The
based on actuarial valuation using projected unit credit meihad.

The present value obligation of Leave Encashment is determined based an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit

method.

i) Change in Defined Benefit obligation during the year endad March 31, 2071

FEITE PR FAR AT RS LT TGS ARI I REALITTR R TEFECINL

T ET TSI FIT s LT PSS

TERBRISINTRILLITIRGIL

i
52.'.
H

'H&»;‘I‘”iim.p’??i‘ A LTTERAS TR R FWIREFETRII Y

ﬂ.; giﬂsns& r*z;_:;g

20101

F IR ER

2005

B3R EINTERIRILT

SrimasiTaaniiRt ey gf;- i -,otfmﬁ

i Particulars Gratuity Leave § Gratuity :

l (Funded) | Encashment § (Funded) | Encashment
: {Unfunded) (Unfunded)
'I ;Present value of Defined Benefit obligation as at 4768.74 764128 42,33.88 729.66 ‘
@Apnl‘i 2010
2 F Eurrent Service Lost ~§ 1Bams 37475 19630 34181
3 alnterest Cost / Actuarial (gain) / Loss on obligation 3,81.50 5491 948959 (59.71)}'
£4.  Benefits paid (3728)| (2738 | (G047)|  (24770)]
:5_ : EP resent value of obligation as at March 31, 2071, 47,82.50 766.39%F 4768.75 76412

/.’f/!'l!//lf'/n’!/,’f//////:’fff!.’f!f'.’l/.’f!a’f{!///
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forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the yeaf ended March 31, 2077
SCHEDULE 20 {Contd.)

i) Changes in Fair value of Plan Assets during the year ended March 31, 2011

‘zaufr,mns:m;.zswmz;z--.—_:;:sx::x:;w:-.-.:mg'_::;;::sz:;mmm;a::'..:uﬁ’:-.::.as::;mnmuuuufz TN LT S T B A LTI A T TS 15 0TS A TIT A (e T IR AT e
i Ein Ien:sé5
is Gl HE Y 4 " ET5 oy

R 2010-11 LR ,
#Sr.No. fiParticulars ' Gratuity Leave | Gratuity Leave i%
] 3 {Funded} | Encashment {Funded) ! Encashment u
b - S | (Unfunded) § (Unfunded)
i _iiFair value of plan assets as at April 1, 2010 40,55.29 -1 36,62.03 - ’i
52  Expected return on plan assets N zman _ -1 35704 -1
i3 i Contributions made ' 6,83.85 15543 F 5.B6.65 24770 ¢
i4.  zBenefits paid (3,37.28) (1.55.43) | (510.42) (24770) §
{5, HActuarial gain / (Loss) on plan assete _ - - - ~ 4
6 %Fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2071 42,36.09 - ¥ 40,95.30 -k
:o. i
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iif) Expenses recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss Accaunt for the year March 31, 201
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#Sr.No. f Partlculars Cratuity. Leave} - Cratuity| - Leave 3
f : , (Funded) | Encashment |- (Funded) Encashmentg‘i
p (Unfunded) {Unfunded) &
- o 13
i1 iCurrent Service Cost | - 11,8918 37475] 19630 341.87%
2. interest Cost / Actuarial (gains) and losses (Net) ~ | - 3.8150| = 5aq7 8.48.95 {59.71) ¢
i3 lExpected return on plan assets (3,94.23) -1 (3s5704) -
ti4 ETDtaI included In employee benefit expense 5,56.81 1,57.70 6,88.25 2,82.16 3
+ : —
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Amount recognised as an expense / (incnrr_ie) and included in Schedule 16 “Salaries, Wages anid Bonus” includes
¥1,99.36 lacs {Previous year ¥ 5,23.36 lacs} towards Leave Encashment, "Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund and
Superannuation Scheme, etc” Includes ¥ 5,70.07 lacs (Previous year ¥ 6,93.15 lacs) towards Gratuity.

iv} Net Assets / (Liability) recognised in the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2011
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AR 20101 Srinbsug R
i‘Sr.Nu. ?;Parti:ulars ' Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave 'g
i i : ‘§ (Funded) [ Encashment (Funded) | Encashment ;
g. (Unfunded) {Unfunded) "
‘"1 i Present value of the defined benefit obligation as 47,82.50 766.39 47.68.75 " 76412 f
i Yat March31,20m ' i
2 Li Fair value of plan Assets as at March 31, 2071 42,36.09 -f 4058530 - E
‘3:}3. iiNet Assets / (Liahility) recegnised in the Balance (5.46.41) {(766.39) {6,73.45) (76412} ;‘
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Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2077

SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

v) A:tual return an plan assets for the \,rear ended March 31,201
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e e it 2010-1 i
é r.No. i Particulars Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave |
"’ i (Funded) | Encashment §  (Funded) | Encashment
- (Unfunded) {Unfunded) ;
1. {iExpected return on plan assets 3,94.23 - 3.57.04 -4
52, i Actuarlal gain / (loss) on plan assets - - - di
i3, ?Actual return on plan assets 3,94.23 - 3,57.04 -
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vi) Percentage of each category of Plan Assets to Tnta1 Fair Value of plan Assets

, * *gu.-...; ;-u 3ib 14 F‘g % i 53 ;g 3? g-w?z iEE
5 B i 2010-1 o i? :
1Sr.No, i Particulars Gratuity Leave Gratmtv Leave ;

ii '* (Funded) | Encashment § (Funded) | ‘Encashment
(Unfunded) (Unfunded) & i
£ “insurer Managed Fund | 100% - 100% -1

vii) PI‘I[’]EI]:IEII Actuarial assumptlon at the Balance Sheet date
SEETIIAEFIFRALEIRASIF4ENATIINNENES LIIEFIERRIEVION FERIITIVRSENT Trar e eI LIS EAYRRAATITT AN PR BALLILLIN P RRTALIITTS RERLITTATAREALNITTERTSaeS ST IVRASEILIRITYLFRRILA]
;:gsﬁ;}:?f?fy:;f;ﬁg' 2010-11 : fiiistris ,
;if%Sr.Nn ;;Partlculars Gratuity Leave ratuitv o Leave
i ; (Funded) | Encashment | (Funded} Encashment 3
{Unfunded) “(Unfunded) i
1. Toiscount Rates 8.00% BD0%Y  8.00% 8.00% !
52, ,Annual increase in salary 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% *
LIC LIC LiC LiC
& {1994-96) {1994-36) § (1994-95) (19‘34-96) i
3 i Mnrtallt\,r Rate Ultimate “Ultimate Ultimate Uitlrnate

’f;'."i}.v’.’.[!/."f!fn’lf'.’l!/.’!//!!.’/!//1!/’:’!/.’;’»’.’!/!.’/!//

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, taka account of inflation, seniority and
ather relevant factors, such as suaply and demand in then employment market.
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Schedules

Torming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ena’ed March 31,2017
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

viil}Details of Previous Years
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;GRATUITV FUNDED 2 i £

¥Present value of Defined Benefit obligationasat | 4782.50) 476875] 4233.88( 3660483 3494481

ithe year end. ; § ﬁ ;

1Fund value as at theyearend 4236.09| 4095307 366203 36.91.58, 33,01.05 %

:Surplus / {Deficit) (5.46.47) (6.7345)% (571.85) 310§  (1,93.44) 4
§Net Assets / {Liability) recognised in the Balance - 5464 (6,73.45) i (5.71.85) ; g (1,95.00)

| Sheet 1 : i £

LEAVE ENCASHMENT {UNFUNDED) b 3 |

:Present vaiue of Defined Benefit abligationas at | 766,33 76432 1 © 7.29.66 64895 752.53 %

the year end. . 5 i E

v - »gFund value as at the year end ' - - - b = -3

) Surpius / (Deficit) (766.39) {7.64.12) (7,29.66) (6,48.95) {7.52,53) g

iNet Assets / (Liahility) recognised in the Balance (766.39) (7.6412) 1 (729.66)]] (648.95) % (752.53) i,

¢ Sheet : _ | : 1 f|

A S SV S N

ix) The cantribution expected to be paid to the Gt"atmty fund during the annual period beginning after the Balance Shest
date is ¥ 8,21.18 lacs {Previous year¥ 8,44.76 lacs).

© x) Long term lability includes ¥61.32 lacs (Previous year ¥ 70.56 lacs) on account of Compensated Sick Leave absences,

B) RETIREMENT BENEFITS - SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

; . .. Tin Iacs' '
atirtiaTs e e I T
Balance as at April 1, 2EI1U - 96.02 78. 27§
Provision far the year ' : ‘F2 25.47 1
: 1,2714 1,03.74 ¢
Payments made during the year ‘ (5.94) (772) i
Balance as at March 31, 2011 . 121.20 86,02
TRARRS T S35 BETTL L R IR LI AL P VAT I £ TR b p TS "!’“"”t“ﬂ""“" GESITLALEITRITING n 7| TELLY TEIIIIGIAPTILY
Retirement Benefit Obligation as at year end has been computed based on the Gratuity formula Method.
The Principal assumptions used in the computation are as follows
FIAIIIITILLS & Rt +ESITIE e 1344 ¥R TR TR T T LR
% o
st gt MU G o T
Discount rate 10% 2% _j
Expected Annual salary increment rate I 10% 12% ﬁ
Retirement Age | 55 Years 55 Years §
i
RS Lo HREAAT < TR P TRTEY ] FEFELE RIS SALTEh A Fad P Tl L PSR A S 6 B e b N L e w e L R b 7] ;1;_:;!
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Schedules
forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2017
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

Provision for the year is made up as follows.
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9 MA]OR COMPONENTS OF BEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES:

b

D e e ot i) MLl

i Assets

“Carried forward tax lasses 10,86.18 7099
iDisallowances 78557 5983
fiVnIuntary Retirement Scheme 2,29.88 35.071
FMinimum Alternative Tax 7:14.01 -

f;f[urrent Service Cost 14.87 11"915{
£ Interest Cost 9.33 844}
iUnder / (Over) provision in previous year 6.92 510
§ 3112 2547 ;
- gg:::.::;;a;“:r::m%«;:::::eeL:::r::fwga':::::5;:mzzﬂa:;:::m:@;::::sn»:::::zv;‘.‘::::ﬂzu::.‘:::‘h;::z??h;::::eu“-. : ..;,;;;::»g.;;;:”m,-;;_-;_;é
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28.15.64

L
F Liability
5 Difference between book and tax depreciation 53,2746

784479

i 53,2746

284479}

E};Sub Total {25.11.82)

2 Less : Deferred Tax on Revaluation Surplus : 43.55

(20,4042}

H
i
4

§éneferred Tax Liahility (Net} _ - ‘ (25,55.37)

{20,40.42) §:

&
ErAeRERTITASSEFEIIZIEY O ettt d T FItertrtd L ¥ brine man L 3 L PRt gt LSS TP T4 FEEFAIITTTRIG B TEER Al III DI TSR AT IINT

10 DISCLOSURE OF RELATED PARTIES/RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

a) Related partles: (As certified by the Management}
i} Enterprises directly/indirectly controlled
~=¥® Rado Tyres Limited
li} KeyManagemnent Personnei
~=F& Mr. Paras K. Chowdhary, Managing Director
—=F@ Mr. Anant Vardhan Goenka Deputy Managing Director

FAEIIITTY
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Schedules

forming part of the Consolidated Accounts for the year ended March 37, 2077
SCHEDULE 20 (Contd.)

b) The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary course of

business ;
T&sésiﬁuiu@wu:a,ev_‘.:.;;u:::.é:m:;55::.‘“:%32:;771&3::%‘4"*—”{‘:."‘;“=4~'— BT I IR T S T eas u::xuwrma&#_r:;um:znm:g
i Tin IacsE
e
R erPEISBS: LTy [ 5 § !
;w mr'wé'-::; ?&ng‘él!g@ j:iig £1543% 2010-11
| TRANSACTIONS | i
£1. Conversion charges pald/payable 8,81.67 6,83.95 |
§2. Advance net of recavery 35.00 -3
f; w"wﬂ
:
[ AMOUNT DUE TO / FROM RELATED PARTIES B 3
) i1. Loans, Advances & Deposit given ' 192.36 1,86.68 ﬂ
U RZCreditors . - . - : N : 273 3614 *!
) ,:ws‘z.::m;.!xmmmnﬁxa-o:-:;:.&tw.::':unn:aas«.?-:‘.::zn7::::;4@.grr'.;z;;urlma.:.!z:z:z;vz:;'.usu::;:%!z!ﬁun"“ - I s tu;g

11 SEGMENT REPORTING

Considering the nrganisétiun structure, nature of prbdutts and risk and return profile based on geographical distribution, the
tyre business is considered as a single segment, i '

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

TTITEIASATIIALRNITIL T L Y § L A T I S 3 DT R L T S B Y TOT T s e o T T T BT ITIEI A RO b E T n g AT TR T T RS

: : Fin Ian:sgE
e T -

i s T o |
a) Weighted Average Number of shares at the beginning and end of the year . 3,42,43,534 342,443,534 l?
1b) Net Profit after Tax available for Equity Shareholders 26,45.61 162,47.73 g‘
:c) Face value per shares (T) . . . 10 10t
i

d) Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share (%) 773 4745 i
;r - - — - ] i P 5
gZmzwﬂﬁﬁiiim?-%'!!iﬁ.'xiwnkm&-“:"l::';;’xé'm'!::.:?.i?5‘:'_223-&&!31:&.35&’.‘:”_3-3-“1!:ﬁi@?ﬁ’:”—ut!!:‘;};él'ﬂw:ﬁi!!m:% " . “"'"‘.t!:.;"'x‘i": ?l‘.'“—':?i?"‘_:::"}

13 The Company has allotted 1712,170 Convertible Warrants of face value ¥ 10 each at a price of ¥14144 PEr warrant, on
September 30, 2010 to the promaters of the Campany on a preferential basis (25% of the price i.e. ¥ 35.36 received by the
Company). The warrants are convertible into an equal number of equity shares at the option of the allottee within a period of
18 months from the date of allotrment (i.e.before March 31, 2012), J o

14 Pravious year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary te conform to current year's classification,

Signatories to Scheduies “1 to 20"

As per our report attached ' On behalf of the Board of Directors

For N.M. Ralji & €n., Sunil S. Sapre HV. Coenka Paras K. Chowdhary
Chartered Accountants Chief Finzncial Officer Vice Chairman Managing Director
CA YN, Thakkar H.N. Singh Rajpaat Hari L. Mondra

Partner : Company Secretary Chalrman - Audit Committer

Place : Mumbal Place : Mumbal

Dated : May 2, 201 Dated :-May 2, 2011
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Persons constituting group coming within the definition of "group” for the purpose of Regulation 3 (1} (e) {i) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 1997 include the following:
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Accurate Commodeal Private Limited Pedriano investments Limited o
Adapt Investments Limited : ] Peregrine Enterprises Limited ;
Adorn Investments Limited Petrochem International Limited
Alipore Towers Private timited - Phillips Carbon Black Limited o E
Allwin Apartments LLP RPC Cellular invesiments & Holdings Private Limited _
Amber Apartments Private Limited - RPG Enterprises Limited
‘Atiantic Holdings Limited RPG Industries Private Limited
| BN Elias 6 Company Privatebimited "RPG infrastructure Investment Private Limited !
Best Apartments Private Limited | RPG Life Sciences Limited o
Blue Niles Holdings Limited  ~ | saregama India Limited
Brabourne Investments Limited Secura India Trust -
Carpiwal Investments Limited Sentinel Tea b Exports Limited :
CESC Limited Shaft Investments Private Limited
Chhatarpati Investments Limited Solty Commercial Private Limited -
Crescent Power Limited South Asia Electricity Holdings Limited ‘
Crystal India Tech Trust _ Spencer & Co Limited E
Paleshin Bharat Petrochem Private Limited _} Spencer International Hotels Limited -
Doon Dooars Plantations Limited . ¥ Spenter's’ Travel Services bimited _ﬂ
Dotex Mercandise Private Limited spencer’s Retail Limited
Eastern Aviation & Industries Private Limited Spotboy Tracom Private Limited
Eltara Enterprises Private Limited Sri Krishna Chaitanya Trading Co Private Limited 4
FGP Limited Sri Parvathi Suthan Trading Co LLP o
Goodhope Sales Private Limited Stellar Energy Trust ok
Goodiuck Dealcom Private Limited Stylefile Events Limited A;
Haidia Energy Limited Summit Securities Limited
Harrisons Malayalam Limited Swallow Associates Limited
Highway Apartments Private Limited | Tirumala Dealtrade Private Limited - o
Harizon Master Trust Trade Apartments Limited i
idea Tracom Private Limited - Ujala Agency Private Limited i
Indent Investments Private Limited B Universal industrial Fund Limited ' I
Instant Holdings Limited _ - Vayu Udaan Aircraft Private Limited i
Integrated Coal Mining Limited Wonder Land Limited ' __:‘g
KEC International Limited Zensar Technologies Limited , i
Kestrel Investments Limited Rama Prasad Goenlka & Sons (HUF) :

' Kutub Properties Private Limited } Harsh Anant Goenka (HUF)

Matabar Coastal Holdings Limited o ] sanjiv Goenka & Others {HUF) )
Monitor Porifolio Trust _ Srl, Rama Prasad Goenka -
“Noida Power CompanyLimited ___ §omt. sushila Goenka ' : i
Nucleus Life Trust 5ri. Harsh Vardhan Goenka ' ;

Prism Estates Tru st Smmit, Mala Goenka

Fuﬁ"in fnvestmernts Limited o % 5ri. Sanjiv Goenka -
Rainhow Investments Limited Smt. Preeti Goenka N
Ritushree Vanljya Private Limited ' Sri .Anant Vardhan Goenka 3

Off Shore Indiz Limited
Organised Investments Limited

St .Radha Goenka ,
Sri. Shashwat Goenka B
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
CEAT LIMITED

Registered Office: 463, Or. Annie Besant Road, Waorli, Mumbai - 400 030.
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
TSR Darashaw Limited, 6-10, Haji Moasa Patrawala Industrial Estate, 20, Dr. E. Moses Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011,

52" Annual General Meeting

Friday, August 26, 2011 - 3.30 p.m. - Ravindra Natya Mandir, Mumbai

Members ar their proxies are requested to present this farm for admission, duly signed in accordance with their specimen signatures
registered with the Company. The admission will, however, be subject to verification of signature(s} and such other checks, as may
* be necessary. Under no circumstances will any duplicate slip be issued at the entrance to the meeting hall,

I/We hereby record my/our attendance at the 52" Annual General Meeting being held on August 26, 2011 and /or at any adjournment
thereof. .

Name of tha Sharehotder (In Block Capitals) Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy

Note: Refreshment Coupans, if any, will be given only against this Attendance Slip.

PROXY FORM
CEAT LIMITED

Registered Office: 463, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400 030.
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
TSR Darashaw Limited, 6-10, Haji Moasa Patrawala Industrial Estate, 20, Dr. E. Mases Road, Mahalaxmi, Mumbai - 400 011.

HWe of
being member(ﬁ) of CEAT
Limited hereby appoint 1) of
or failing him 2) of
., w0t falling him 3) ' of

a5 my/our proxy 1o vote for me/fus and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on August 26, 2011

and/or at any adjournment thereof.
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Their respective signature{s) is/are as under; As witness my/our hand(s) this day.of ) 20M.
Signed by the sald
1) i Affix
/-
2) Revenue
E} . Stamp ,
| Folio No, ‘ DP ID No. Clent ID No.

NOTE: The praxy must be returned so as to reach the Registered Office of the Company or the office of the Company's Régistrars not
less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.




Panna Lal Shaw

Fleet Owners and Transport Contractor, West Bengal

We were previously using brands such as Birla and MRF. However on request from your sales team and
regional manager we have been tontinuausly using your praduct for the past one vear. The service of the
product is satisfactory. The marketing team is very good as they continuously interact with us. Moreaver
the service engineers and the regional manager is easily accessihle and therefore our grievances are

easlly addressed.

— T _)

Satpal Jeetu

Trucle owner, Haryana

This is ta certify that we are using CEAT Mile
XL and Mile Xt RIB for last six months, We
have 8 trucks flying on North from Haryana to
Dethi with the payload in 25 tonnes. Mileage of
shove tyre is quite satisfactory.

B. K. Kesarwani
Owner of a transport company, U.P.

| am an owner of 45 vehicles and ali are 10
wheelers. My vehicles operate from Faizabad
to Lucknow - Kanpur - Jhansi. Our complete
operation is on sand and stane, My truclks
carry foad of 40 tonnes. Since last 1year | am
using CEAT tyres (FM Super, Lug XL, HL and
RO Super). tam futly satisfied with the service
of the tyre. Company officials are alsa helpfui
\L/ and they help me in my need.




wWww.beidiotsafe.com

CSAT

BIKE TYRES




